. Sacramento City Unified School District
swrmens | IS BOARD OF EDUCATION
city Unified | Children
School Distriet| |7 st MEETING AND WORKSHOP

Board of Education Members Thursday, January 7, 2016
Christina Pritchett, President, (Trustee Area 3) 4'30’p 1 Closed éession

Jay Hansen, Vice President, (Trustee Area 1) )
Jessie Ryan, Second Vice President, (Trustee Area 7) 6:30 p.m. Open Session
Ellen Cochrane, (Trustee Area 2)
Gustavo Arroyo, (Trustee Area 4)
Diana Rodriguez, (Trustee Area 5)

Serna Center

Darrel Woo, (Trustee Area 6) Community Conferen(ghe Rooms
Elizabeth Barry, Student Member 5735 47" Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95824

2015/16-13

Allotted Time
4:30p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER /ROLL CALL

20 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

3.0 CLOSED SESSION

While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also
recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye. Closed session
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope. They primarily involve personnel issues, pending
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.

3.1  Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated
Litigation:

a) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code
section 54956.9 (Workers” Compensation Settlement Authority Case No.
ADJ3443631 and OAH Case No. 2015030166)

b) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government
Code section 54956.9

¢) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code
section 54956.9

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining CSA,
SCTA, SEIU, Teamsters, UPE, Unrepresented Management
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6:30 p.m.

6:35 p.m.

6:40 p.m.

6:45 p.m.

6:55 p.m.

7:10 p.m.

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

3.3 Government Code 54957 — Public Employee
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment
CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance will be led by ShelbyAnn Reed, an Eighth Grade student from
Albert Einstein Middle School.

. Presentation of Certificate by President Christina Pritchett.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

AGENDA ADOPTION

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

7.1 Recognition of John Still K-8 School Meadowview Collaborative 10 minutes
Volunteers (Reginald Brown)

PUBLIC COMMENT 15 minutes

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance. Speakers may be called in
the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area. We ask that comments are limited to two
(2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.
By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion,
refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

CONSENT AGENDA 2 minutes

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion. The Superintendent or a Board
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately.

9.1 Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session:

9.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements,
Ratification of Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Change
Notices and Notices of Completion (Gerardo Castillo, CPA)

9.1b  Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn)
9.1c  Approve 2016-2017 Adult Education Calendar (Cancy McArn)

9.1d  Approve Minutes of the November 19, 2015, Board of Education Meeting
(José L. Banda)
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7:12 p.m.

7:27 p.m.

7:42 p.m.

7:47 p.m.

7:52 p.m.

7:57 p.m.

8:07 p.m.

8:32 p.m.

10.0

11.0

9.1e  Approve Resolution No. 2865: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends

(Christina Pritchett)

COMMUNICATIONS
10.1 Employee Organization Reports:

= CSA

= SCTA

= SEIU

= Teamsters

= UPE
10.2  District Parent Advisory Committees:

= Community Advisory Committee

= District Advisory Council

= District English Learner Advisory Committee

= Gifted and Talented Education Advisory Committee

= Sacramento Council of Parent Teacher Association (PTA)

10.3  Superintendent’s Report (José L. Banda)

10.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett)

10.5 Student Member Report (Elizabeth Barry)

10.6 Information Sharing By Board Members

Information
3 minutes each

Information
3 minutes each

Information
5 minutes

Information
5 minutes

Information
5 minutes

Information
10 minutes

BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES

11.1 Board Reconsideration of the Adoption of School
Attendance Area for Washington Elementary School and
Its Impact on Theodore Judah Elementary School — Item
Previously Introduced and Approved at the November 19,
2015, Board Meeting (Mary Hardin Young, Tu Moua,
and Jim Dobson)

11.2 Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2015, Submitted by Crowe Horwath LLP
(Gerardo Castillo, CPA)
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10 minute presentation
10 minute discussion



8:52p.m.  12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information

12.1  Business and Financial Information:
e Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 3 Ending
November 20, 2015

8:54p.m. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES /LOCATIONS

v~ January 21, 2016, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,
5735 47™ Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting

v" February 4, 2016, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session; 6:30 p.m. Open Session; Serna Center,
5735 47™ Avenue, Community Room; Regular Workshop Meeting

8:56 p.m. 13.0 ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the
public meeting process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to
accommodate you. [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to
an open session item are available for public inspection at 5735 47" Avenue at the Front Desk Counter and on the
District’s website at www.scusd.edu
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City Unified BOARD OF EDUCATION

School District
Agenda Item 9.1a

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Approval of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements
Ratification of Other Agreements
Approval of Bid Awards
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment
Change Notices
Notices of Completion

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

T

Division: Business Services

Recommendation: Recommend approval of items submitted.

Background/Rationale:

Financial Considerations: See attached.

LCAP Goal(s): College and Career Ready Students; Safe, Clean & Healthy Schools;
Family and Community Engagement

Documents Attached:
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements
2. Other Agreements

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A

Submitted by: Gerardo Castillo, CPA, Chief Business Officer
Kimberly Teague, Contract Specialist

Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS - REVENUE

Contractor Description

ACADEMIC OFFICE

A16-00055 12/4/15 — 6/30/16: Grant funds to build teacher and
S.D. Bechtel. Jr. leadership capacity to transform teaching and learning of
Foundation mathematics. Funding will be used to strategically provide

meaningful professional learning experiences that support
grade K-8 students’ acquisition of deep conceptual
mathematics understanding.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

A16-00052 7/1/15 — 9/30/17: Grant for Special Education Preschool
California Program Staff Development. Funding for training days and
Department associated costs, including registration, substitute staff,
of Education materials, and presenter fees.

STUDENT SUPPORT AND HEALTH SERVICES

A16-00053 1/1/16 — 6/30/17: Funds will be used for the District's Mental
Kaiser Foundation Health Wellness Project (MHWP) to build on structures and
Hospital Fund for programs already in place at both the district office and
Community Benefit school sites to create school environments that are more
Programs at the East responsive to and supportive of the needs of traumatized
Bay Community children by increasing the capacity of school site staff and
Foundation community partners to understand and support the needs of

traumatized students through Mindfulness training, practice,
and trauma-informed care trainings.

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

A16-00054 12/1/15 - 11/30/16: Promoting Healthy & Safe School
The California Environments Grant: To improve long-term health and
Endowment education outcomes for K-12 students in South Sacramento

by promoting preventive health measures, improving youth
social-emotional skills and developing youth leadership skills.

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

Contractor Description

EACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

SA16-00447 1/1/16 — Completion of Services. Provide architectural, civil

HMC Architects engineering and landscape design services as needed for
AC paving replacement at Luther Burbank High School
(Emergency Repair Program Project).
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Amount

$567,772
No Match

$2,506
No Match

$95,000
No Match

$100,000
No Match

Amount

$263,202
Emergency
Repair Program
Funds



EACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

SA16-00465 1/1/16 — Completion of Services. Provide architectural and
Lionakis Architects engineering services as needed for replacement of the main
electrical panel at Kit Carson Middle School.

SA16-00476 1/1/16 — Completion of Services. Provide architectural and

HMC Architects civil engineering services as needed for concrete walkway
repairs at Luther Burbank High School (Emergency Repair
Program Project).

SA16-00477 1/1/16 — Completion of Services. Provide architectural and

HMC Architects engineering services as needed for roof repairs/replacement
at Peter Burnett Elementary School (Emergency Repair
Program Project).

HUMAN RESOURCES

SA16-00508 1/1/16 — 6/30/17: Provide services as requested related to
Atkinson, Andelson, 2015/16 and 2016/17 negotiations process.
Loya, Ruud & Romo

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

SA16-00184 8/30/15 — 6/30/16: Continuation of implementation of City

City Year Year's Whole School, Whole Child Model at Leataata Floyd,
Fr. Keith B. Kenny, Oak Ridge, Rosa Parks and Fern Bacon
schools focusing on outcomes in three key areas:
attendance, behavior and course performance in English and
Math. City Year will place fifty AmeriCorps (City Corps) near-
peer members, ages 17-24,to serve in these schools
throughout the school day (before, during and after school).
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$96,000
Measure Q
Funds

$96,781
Emergency
Repair Program
Funds

$117,766
Emergency
Repair Program
Funds

$90,000
General Funds

$530,000

Title | and After-
School Education
& Safety Funds
($100,000 In-kind
match)



SA16-00447
-’
Sacramento City Unified School District

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION FORM

AC Paving Replacement at Luther Burbank High School
Date: January 7, 2016

Pursuant to the Master Architect Agreement dated April 8, 2014 between HMC Architects and
Sacramento City Unified School District, Architect hereby submits a scope of work upon the terms
described below and in the Master Architect Agreement.

TERMS

A. Project Description

“Project” shall mean the work of improvement and the construction thereof, including the Architect's
services as follows:

Provide architectural, civil engineering and landscape design services for AC paving replacement at
Luther Burbank High School (Emergency Repair Program Project).

B. Compensation

For the Basic Services provided pursuant to the Master Agreement and this Project Authorization,
Architect shall be compensated in the manner identified below:

Flat Fee

Architect shall be compensated $263,202.00 for the Basic Services under this Master Agreement.
Architect acknowledges that the flat fee price for the Basic Services includes contingency compensation
in the event that more time and costs than originally anticipated may be necessary to complete the Basic
Services.

C. Reimbursable Expenses
Pursuant to Section 4.3, Architect’s total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed
$0, which is Architect’s estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

D. Asbestos

The language identified in Section 5.7.15 X is L] is not applicable to this Project.




SA16-00447

E. Section 8.2

Consistent with Section 8.2, the following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and
effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be
written on an "occurrence" basis, with specific limits set forth: Commercial general liability insurance,
excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 general aggregate;
Personal and advertising injury aggregate, with a per occurrence limit of $1,000,000; Automobile liability
insurance covering motor vehicles shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit.

District hereby authorizes Architect to proceed with the work upon the terms described herein and in

Master Agreement.

HMC ARCHITECTS

Dated:

Mitchell Carp, Senior Vice President

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Dated:

Gerardo Castillo
Chief Business Officer




SA16-00465
Y 4
Sacramento City Unified School District

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Electrical Panel Replacement at Kit Carson Middle School
Date: January 7, 2016

Pursuant to the Master Architect Agreement dated January 15, 2015 between Lionakis Architects and
Sacramento City Unified School District, Architect hereby submits a scope of work upon the terms
described below and in the Master Architect Agreement.

TERMS

A. Project Description

“Project” shall mean the work of improvement and the construction thereof, including the Architect's
services as follows:

Architectural and engineering services as needed for the electrical panel replacement and reconfiguration
of yard as required at Kit Carson Middle School.

B. Compensation

For the Basic Services provided pursuant to the Master Agreement and this Project Authorization,
Architect shall be compensated in the manner identified below:

Flat Fee

Architect shall be compensated $96,000.00 for the Basic Services under this Master Agreement.
Architect acknowledges that the flat fee price for the Basic Services includes contingency compensation
in the event that more time and costs than originally anticipated may be necessary to complete the Basic
Services.

C. Reimbursable Expenses
Pursuant to Section 4.3, Architect’s total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed
$0, which is Architects estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

D. Asbestos

The language identified in Section 5.7.15 X is [ is not applicable to this Project.




SA16-00465

E. Section 8.2

Consistent with Section 8.2, the following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and
effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be
written on an "occurrence" basis, with specific limits set forth.: Commercial general liability insurance,
excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 general aggregate;
Personal and advertising injury aggregate, with a per occurrence limit of $1,000,000; Automobile liability
insurance covering motor vehicles shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit.

District hereby authorizes Architect to proceed with the work upon the terms described herein and in
Master Agreement.

LIONAKIS ARCHITECTS

Dated:

Laura Knauss, Principal

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Dated:

Gerardo Castillo
Chief Business Officer




SA16-00476
-’
Sacramento City Unified School District

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Concrete Walkway Repairs at Luther Burbank High School
Date: January 7, 2016

Pursuant to the Master Architect Agreement dated April 8, 2014 between HMC Architects and
Sacramento City Unified School District, Architect hereby submits a scope of work upon the terms
described below and in the Master Architect Agreement.

TERMS

A. Project Description

“Project” shall mean the work of improvement and the construction thereof, including the Architect's
services as follows:

Provide architectural and civil engineering services for concrete walkway repairs at Luther Burbank High
School (Emergency Repair Program Project).

B. Compensation

For the Basic Services provided pursuant to the Master Agreement and this Project Authorization,
Architect shall be compensated in the manner identified below:

Flat Fee

Architect shall be compensated $96,781.00 for the Basic Services under this Master Agreement.
Architect acknowledges that the flat fee price for the Basic Services includes contingency compensation
in the event that more time and costs than originally anticipated may be necessary to complete the Basic
Services.

C. Reimbursable Expenses
Pursuant to Section 4.3, Architect’s total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed
$0, which is Architect’s estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

D. Asbestos

The language identified in Section 5.7.15 X is L] is not applicable to this Project.




SA16-00476

E. Section 8.2

Consistent with Section 8.2, the following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and
effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be
written on an "occurrence" basis, with specific limits set forth: Commercial general liability insurance,
excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 general aggregate;
Personal and advertising injury aggregate, with a per occurrence limit of $1,000,000; Automobile liability
insurance covering motor vehicles shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit.

District hereby authorizes Architect to proceed with the work upon the terms described herein and in

Master Agreement.

HMC ARCHITECTS

Dated:

Mitchell Carp, Senior Vice President

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Dated:

Gerardo Castillo
Chief Business Officer




SA16-00477
-’
Sacramento City Unified School District

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Roof Repairs/Replacement at Peter Burnett Elementary School
Date: January 7, 2016

Pursuant to the Master Architect Agreement dated April 8, 2014 between HMC Architects and
Sacramento City Unified School District, Architect hereby submits a scope of work upon the terms
described below and in the Master Architect Agreement.

TERMS

A. Project Description

“Project” shall mean the work of improvement and the construction thereof, including the Architect's
services as follows:

Provide architectural and engineering services for roof repairs/replacement at Peter Burnett Elementary
School (Emergency Repair Program Project).

B. Compensation

For the Basic Services provided pursuant to the Master Agreement and this Project Authorization,
Architect shall be compensated in the manner identified below:

Flat Fee

Architect shall be compensated $117,766.00 for the Basic Services under this Master Agreement.
Architect acknowledges that the flat fee price for the Basic Services includes contingency compensation
in the event that more time and costs than originally anticipated may be necessary to complete the Basic
Services.

C. Reimbursable Expenses
Pursuant to Section 4.3, Architect’s total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed
$0, which is Architect’s estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

D. Asbestos

The language identified in Section 5.7.15 X is [ is not applicable to this Project.




SA16-00477
E. Section 8.2

Consistent with Section 8.2, the following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and
effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be
written on an "occurrence" basis, with specific limits set forth: Commercial general liability insurance,
excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 general aggregate;
Personal and advertising injury aggregate, with a per occurrence limit of $1,000,000; Automobile liability
insurance covering motor vehicles shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit.

District hereby authorizes Architect to proceed with the work upon the terms described herein and in

Master Agreement.

HMC ARCHITECTS

Dated:

Mitchell Carp, Senior Vice President

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Dated:

Gerardo Castillo
Chief Business Officer
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AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES

I PARTIES

This Agreement for Special Services (the “Agreement”) is made between the law firm of
ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO, a Professional Law Corporation,
hereinafter referred to as the “Law Firm,” and SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as “District.”

IL RECITALS; PURPOSE; MATTERS

The District desires to retain and engage the Law Firm to perform legal and, upon
request, non-legal consultant services on the District’s behalf, and the Law Firm is willing to
accept said engagement on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. The Law Firm
agrees to provide such services to the District, including representation in administrative and
court proceedings, as requested by the District. The place and time for such services are to be
designated by the Superintendent of the District or designee.

[I. TERMSAND CONDITIONS

A, Standard Hourly Rates:

The District hereby agrees to pay the Law Firm in connection with the above-referenced
services as authorized at the following hourly rates:

Dec. 1,2015-  July 1, 2017-
June 30,2017 June 30,2018

Senior Partners $280.00 $290.00
Partners/Senior Counsel $260.00 $270.00
Senior Associates $245.00 $245.00
Associates $230.00 $240.00
Electronic Technology Litigation Specialist $230.00 $240.00
Non-Legal Consultants $200.00 $210.00
Senior Paralegals/Law Clerks $175.00 $185.00
Paralegals/Legal Assistants $165.00 $175.00

005277.00001
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B. Fixed Fee Services

A fixed fee may be established for specially identified projects, subject to prior approval
by the District. In addition, the District agrees to pay the Law Firm a fixed fee for the following
training services:

A full day of training (up to 8 hours) $4,000
A half day of training (up to 4 hours) $3,000
A two hour training $2,500
A one hour training $1,750

Air travel, books and manuals, and copies of handouts made by the Firm shall be charged in
addition as expenses.

C. The Law Firm shall bill in quarter-hour increments. Certain tasks shall be billed
at established minimum time increments. These include: () telephone conference (.25 hour), (b)
electronic correspondence (.25 hour), (¢) standard written correspondence (.50 hour), (d) provide
a document (.50 hour)

D. The services provided under this agreement shall not exceed $80,000 in fees in
any fiscal year (July 1 through June 30), without Board approval increasing this budgeted
amount.

E. The District hereby agrees to pay a 5% per month administrative charge
calculated and based on monthly fees billed to cover related operational expenses incurred by the
Law Firm. This administrative fee is in lieu of charging the District for Westlaw, photocopies,
automobile mileage, parking, facsimiles, telephone, document preparation, and postage. This
does not include items listed in paragraph G below.

s The Law Firm may charge the full hourly rate to more than one client for services
provided concurrently during the same time period. For example, in the course of traveling to
the District or while providing legal services at the District, it may be necessary for the Law Firm
to provide billable services to other clients.

G. The Law Firm shall not be obligated to advance costs on behalf of the District;
however, for purposes of convenience and in order to expedite matters, the Law Firm reserves
the right to advance costs on behalf of the District with the Superintendent’s or designee’s prior
approval in the event a particular cost item exceeds $2,000.00 in amount, and without the prior
approval of the District in the event a particular cost item totals $2,000.00 or less. Typical cost
advances include, but are not limited to, messenger fees, travel costs, bonds, witness fees,
overnight delivery, deposition and court reporter fees, transcript costs, expert witness fees,
investigative fees, etc. If the Law Firm retains, with authorization from the District, experts or
consultants for the benefit of the District, rather than the District contracting directly with any
expert or consultant, it is agreed that the District shall pay a five percent (5%) fee (“consultant
processing fee”) on such expert and consultant costs paid by the Law Firm in order to offset
certain costs to the Law Firm resulting from administering and initially paying such expert and
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consultant fees on behalf of the District. This fee shall not apply to the services of Law Firm-
provided non-legal consultants as set forth in paragraph VII, below.

H. A detailed description of the attorney work performed and the costs advanced by
the Law Firm will be prepared on a monthly basis as of the last day of the month and will be
mailed to the District on or about the 15th of the following month. Payment of the full amount
due, as reflected on the monthly statements, will be due to the Law Firm from the District by the
10th of each month, unless other arrangements are made. In the event there are retainer funds of
the District in the Law Firm’s Trust account at the time a monthly billing statement is prepared,
funds will be transferred from the Law Firm’s Trust Account to the Law Firm’s General Account
to the extent of the balance due on the monthly statement and a credit therefor will be reflected
on the monthly statement. Any balance of fees or costs advanced remaining unpaid for a period
of 30 days will be subject to a 1% per month service charge.

L The District agrees to review the Law Firm’s monthly statements promptly upon
receipt and to notify the Law Firm, in writing, with respect to any disagreement with the monthly
statement. Failure to communicate written disagreement with the Law Firm’s monthly statement
within thirty (30) days of the District’s receipt thereof shall be deemed to signify the District’s
agreement that the monthly billing statement accurately reflects: (a) the legal services
performed; and (b) the proper charge for those legal services.

I The District agrees to fully cooperate with the Law Firm in connection with the
Law Firm’s representation of the District including, but not limited to, attending mandatory court
hearings and other appearances and providing necessary information and documentation to
enable the Law Firm to adequately represent the District.

K. The District has the right, at any time, and either with or without good cause, to
discharge the Law Firm as the District’s attorneys. In the event of such a discharge of the Law
Firm by the District, however, any and all unpaid attorneys’ fees and costs owing to the Law
Firm from the District shall be immediately due and payable. ~

L. The Law Firm reserves the right to discontinue the performance of legal services
on behalf of the District upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:

1. Upon order of Court requiring the Law Firm to discontinue the
performance of said legal services;

2. Upon a determination by the Law Firm in the exercise of its reasonable
and sole discretion, that state or federal legal ethical principles require it to discontinue
legal services for the District;

3. Upon the failure of the District to perform any of the District’s obligations
hereunder with respect to the payment of the Law Firm’s fees and costs advanced; or

4. Upon the failure of the District to perform any of the District’s obligations
hereunder with respect to cooperation with the Law Firm in connection with the Law
Firm’s representation of the District.
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M.  Inthe event that the Law Firm ceases to perform legal services for the District as
hereinabove provided, the District agrees that it will promptly pay to the Law Firm any and all
unpaid fees or costs advanced, and retrieve all of its files, signing a receipt therefor. Further, the
District agrees that, with respect to any litigation where the Law Firm has made an appearance in
Court on its behalf, the District will promptly execute an appropriate Substitution of Attorney
form.

N. The Law Firm maintains errors and omissions insurance coverage applicable to
the services to be rendered.

0. It is understood and agreed that the Law Firm, while engaged in carrying out and
complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, is an independent contractor
and is not an employee of the District.

IV. SPECIALIZED LEGAL SERVICES

For specialized litigation and transactional services in the areas of construction,
procurement, technology, prevailing wage, real property, intellectual property, CEQA, mitigation
negotiations, school and college finance, tax, bankruptcy, copyright, trademark, non-profit
organizations, immigration, and appellate law, the District agrees to pay the Law Firm at rates
higher than the standard hourly rates for special projects or particular scopes of work. The Law
Firm shall inform the District of the rates for specialized services and the Supermtendent or
designee shall agree to such rates in writing prior to any billings for specialized legal services by
the Law Firm.,

Vv, RELATED POST-INVESTIGATION SERVICES

If an attorney who conducted an investigation for the District is subsequently asked or
required to prepare for and/or testify, including, without limitation, at deposition, trial, arbitration
or any other proceeding, because of services rendered under this Agreement, and/or if the
investigating attorney must respond to subpoenas or discovery or otherwise respond or perform
services with respect to any matter relating to or arising out of services performed for the
District, the District agrees to pay the Law Firm for all time expended (including preparation
time) at the investigating attorney’s then current regular hourly rate and to reimburse the Law
Firm for reasonable costs and expenses incurred.

VI. CONSENT TO JOINT REPRESENTATION

The District acknowledges that from time to time the Law Firm may be asked to perform
legal services on a matter affecting two or more public education local agencies. In such
situations before proceeding with representation, the Law Firm shall seek separate written
consent to joint representation from all involved parties if permissible according to ethical
principles applicable to attorneys. The District acknowledges that it is often in the best interest
of the District for such representation to commence without undue delay which may result from
waiting until a regularly-scheduled Board meeting. Therefore, pursuant to Education Code
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section 7, the Governing Board of the District hereby delegates to the Superintendent or designee
authority to consent to joint representation in the circumstances described in this paragraph.

VII. SERVICES PERFORMED BY LAW FIRM-PROVIDED NON-LEGAL
CONSULTANTS

The Law Firm has an affiliation with non-legal education consultants who are available
to assist the District in areas including, but not limited to, personnel/business office audits,
human resources/collective bargaining consultation, public/employee relations surveys and
communications, media and public relations, budget analysis/support services, instructional
coaching/counseling at school improvement sites, special education, student discipline,
leadership coaching, board/ superintendent relations and best practices, and interim management
placement.

Because the Law Firm has a financial interest in the District’s use of these affiliated non-
legal consultants, the rules of the State Bar of California require that the District provide its
informed written consent to this arrangement prior to utilizing these services. Execution of this
Agreement shall be deemed “informed consent” for the purposes of this paragraph. The District
is hereby advised that it may seek the advice of an independent attorney of its choice prior to
providing such written consent.

Please also be advised that because the services of these non-legal consultants are
provided to the District outside of the attorney-client relationship, communications with these
non-legal consultants will not be protected from disclosure by the attorney-client privilege.

VIII. CONSENT TO LAW FIRM COMMUNICATION

As part of our commitment to client service, the Law Firm will send the District periodic
alerts on case developments and legislative changes, and notices of Breakfast Briefings,
conferences, and other training opportunities designed to help the District with daily legal
concerns. The Law Firm will send those and other additional service notices to the District via
regular mail and/or electronic mail at the email address which you designate or the email used in
your daily communications with us. These email notices are a convenient way to keep the
District administrators apprised of important legal changes. By execution of this Agreement, the
District and designated contact(s) consent to receive such communications by electronic mail
subject to the right to unsubscribe at any time.

IX. ARBITRATION

The parties agree that all disputes which arise between the District and the Law Firm,
whether financial or otherwise regarding the attorney-client relationship, shall be resolved by
binding arbitration. The parties agree to waive their right to a jury trial and to an appeal.
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Dated: By:

Dated: By:

005277.0000!
13624922.1

X. DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective December 1, 2015, through June 30, 2018, and
thereafter shall continue from month-to-month at the then current hourly rate set forth herein
until modified in writing by mutual agreement or terminated by either party upon thirty (30)
days’ written notice, up to a maximum of five (5) years duration per Education Code section
17596.

XI. EXECUTION DATE

This Agreement is entered into this ___ day of , 2015.

“Law Firm”

ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO

SALVADOR 0. HOLGUIN, JR,

“District”

As Authorized By The Governign Board of the
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

JOSE L. BANDA, Superintendent
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< AUs- CO15Y
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
Between

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Youth Development Support Services

And
CITY YEAR SACRAMENTO

The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and the CITY YEAR SACRAMENTO
(“CITY YEAR ”) collectively hereinafier referred to as “the Parties” hereby enter into this
Agreement for program services (“Agreement”) effective on August 1%, 2015 (“Effective Date”)
with respect to the following recitals:

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage CITY YEAR to develop, maintain and sustain
programs that offer support services to Leataata Floyd Elementary (before), Father Keith B.
Kenny K-8, Oakridge Elementary School, Rosa Parks K-8 and Fern Bacon Middle School
students in the Sacramento City Unified School District, during the critical before, during, and
after school hours to improve the quality of life for families and improve academic performance
and attendance for the students. Boys and Gitls Club of Greater Sacramento, Roberts Family
Development Center and City Year will work collaboratively to best serve the Leataata Floyd
Academy,

WHEREAS, City Year will work with the District and District’s selected schools to implement
City Year’s research-based Whole School, Whole Child Model (“THE MODEL”) as described
in Appendix A. City Year recruits, prepares and leads diverse AmeriCorps members aged 17 to
24 years for ten months of full time service in schools as near-peer tutors, mentors and role
models to help students stay on track to graduation. Corps Members will be placed in five low-
performing schools, selected by the District, to serve in conjunction with school staff and
members of the school community to help improve student attendance, behavior and coursework
through academic support, attendance monitoring and incentives, positive behavior support,
extended day programming and school-wide programs and events (collectively, “student
achievement and success”).

WHEREAS, District and CITY YEAR will work collaboratively to develop, support, coordinate,
and provide academic enrichment programs and recreational activities supporting the After
School Education and Safety (ASES) and 21* Century after school programs at the
abovementioned schools throughout the 2015-16 school year. This collaboration is designed to
provide students avenues to maintain and expand learning opportunities, and promote academic
achievement, assist children and adults to achieve challenging State content standards, provide
opportunities for parents to actively participate in their children’s education, provide safe,
supervised, and high-quality after school care for students, and deter tobacco, alcohol and other
drug use.
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NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

A. Roles and Responsibilities.

1. CITY YEAR shall adhere to scope of services outlined in SCUSD Terms and conditions.
CITY YEAR shall work collaboratively with the SCUSD Youth Development on a plan for the
after school programs at Leataata Floyd, Father Keith B. Kenny, Oakridge, Rosa Parks and Fern
Bacon schools; CITY YEAR shall provide assist in providing after school programing at each
site consisting of being onsite every in session school day until 6:00 PM (see notation in
Attachment A regarding City Year PD dates); CITY YEAR shall maintain high quality service to
students to enhance program and increase the numbers in the after school programs; CITY
YEAR shall be instrumental in the overall planning and coordination of the after school
programs; CITY YEAR and DISTRICT will adhere to CITY YEAR and SCUSD Agreement-
Attachment A and B; CITY YEAR and DISTRICT will adhere to CITY YEAR Statement of
Partnership contracts (Addendum).

i. District shall work collaboratively on a plan for the school year and the specific schools.
The parties shall create a communication plan, guidelines, etc. to provide direction of services to
other stakeholders. District shall provide funding pursuant to Paragraph B, below. District shall
provide and coordinate space and location of all District-sponsored professional development,
meetings, and trainings. District shall coordinate the convening all contractors to facilitate
program planning and modifications.

B. Payment. For provision of services pursuant to this Agreement, District shall pay CITY
YEAR $500,000.00, to be made in four equal quarterly installments upon receipt of properly
submitted invoices. The final installment shall not be invoiced by CITY YEAR or due until
completion of all obligations pursuant to this Agreement. For provisions of services pursuant
to this Agreement, CITY YEAR shall provide documentation of $100,000 in-kind match to
the District.

« Independent Contractor. While engaged in providing the services provided in this
Agreement and otherwise performing as set forth in this Agreement, CITY YEAR, and each of
CITY YEAR employees, is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent,
partner, or joint venturer of the District.

D. Insurance Requirements. Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this®
Agreement CITY YEAR shall provide the District with a copy of its policy evidencing its
comprehensive general liability insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence. CITY YEAR will also provide a written endorsement to such policy-naming District
as an additional insured and such endorsement shall also state, "Such insurance as is afforded by
this policy shall be primary, and any insurance cartied by District shall be excess and
noncontributory." If insurance is not kept in force during the entire term of the Agreement,
District may procure the necessary insurance and pay the premium therefore, and the premium
shall be paid by the CITY YEAR to the District.

E. Fingerprinting and TB Requirements. CITY YEAR agrees that any employee it
provides to District shall be subject to the fingerprinting and TB requirements set forth in
the California Education Code. City Year at its sole cost and expense shall obtain or pay for
fingerprinting and TB clearance for all of City Year’s employees before services can begin. If an
employee is disqualified from working for District pursuant to the requirements of the California
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Education Code, CITY YEAR agrees to provide a replacement employee based on the City Year
recruiting schedule receiving notification that the previous employee has been disqualified.
Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement.

F. Period of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from August 30™, 2015,
through June 30, 2016. Either Party may terminate this Contract without cause upon giving the
other Party thirty days wriiten notice. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the Party,
or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner,

The District may terminate this Contract with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate
for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Contract by the
Contractor; (b) any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal
injury or property damage; or (c) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt; Contractor makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of the
Contractor's insolvency.

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or
satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Contract shall cease and
terminate. In the event of such termination, the District may secure the required services from
another contractor. If the cost to the District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to
this Contract, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the Contractor. The
foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies
available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be deemed given when received by
the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.

H. Indemnity. CITY YEAR agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its
successors, assigns, trustees, officers, employees, staff, agents and students from and against all
actions, causes of action, claims and demands whatsoever, and from all costs, damages,
expenses, charges, debts and liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of any
actual or alleged act, omission, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability
proximately caused by CITY YEAR and/or ils successors, assigns, directors, employees,
officers, and agents related this Agreement, CITY YEAR has no obligation under this
Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the District and is not liable for any actions, causes
of action, claims and demands whatsoever, and for any costs, damages, expenses, charges, debts
or other liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of any actual or alleged act,
omission, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability proximately caused by the
District and/or its successors, assigns, trustees, officers, employees, staff, agents or students. The
parties expressly agree that the indemnity obligation set forth in this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. The parties further agree that said
indemnity obligations shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any actual or alleged
act, omission, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability that occurred during the
term of this Agreement.

L Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by final
legislative act or a court of competent jurisdiction inclusive of appeals, if any, such provisions
will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other
provisions will continue in full force and effect.

J. Applicable Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
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accordance with the laws of the State of California. If any action is instituted to enforce or
interpret this Agreement, venue shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having
venue over matters arising in Sacramento County, California, provided that nothing in this
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the District.

K. Assignment. This Agreement is made by and between CITY YEAR and the District and
any attempted assignment by them, their successors or assigns shall be void unless approved in
writing by all parties.

L. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between

CITY YEAR and District with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous
negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings advertisements publications and understandings
of any nature whatsoever with respect to the same subject matter unless expressly included in
this Agreement. The parties hereby waive the presumption that any ambiguities in a contract are
read against the drafter of same. The parties further agree and represent that each of them are the
drafters of every part of this Agreement.

M. Amendments. The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner except
by written agreement signed by the parties.

N. Execution In Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that
the signatures of the parties may appear on separate signature pages. Facsimile or photocopy
signatures shall be deemed original signatures for all purposes.

0. Authority. Each party represents that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement
and that the undersigned are authorized to execute this Agreement.

P. Approval/Ratification by Board of Education. This Agreement shall be subject to
approval/ratification by the District's Board of Education.

MOU SCUSD Youth Development Support Services & CITY YEAR 2015-16 Page 4 of &



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate.

DISTRICT:

By:

Gerardo Castillo Date
Chief Business Officer

Sacramento City Unified School District

CITY YEAR:

By:

Authorized S'i_gn'ature - Date

Print Name:

Title:
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ASP: SCUSD and CITY YEAR
After School Program Expectations
Attachment A

DISTRICT shall:

L.

Provide evaluation and/or survey of projects as required by grantor,
Recognize CITY YEAR in all sponsored events and on brochures, flyers, and promotional
material, as appropriate.

3. Provide a district after school liaison for each school that will provide the support and guidance
needed to operate the after school program.

4. Meet monthly with the site coordinator of CITY YEAR to identify program needs, successes, and
assistance needed.

5. Designate a school staff contact person to work directly with the site coordinator for program
planning, staff hiring assistance and to address any implementation issues.

6. Help recruit program staff among school site staff and parents.

7. Help train program staff and volunteers on school procedures and educational/curriculum materials
being used at the school that should be integrated into the Program.

8. Help recruit students into the Program and provide the Program access to parents of participating
students.

9. Help provide parents/student forums for the Program to obtain feedback on what is working and
what new services/program elements need to be added/modified.

10. Provide space for the program to operate, including office space for the site coordinator, classroom
space for classes and activities, and storage space for program supplies/materials.

11. Help coordinate custodial and storage needs of the Program.

12, Meet monthly with the District contact person, CITY YEAR site liaison and site administrator to
identify program needs, successes, and assistance needed.

CITY YEAR shall:

1. Partner with site primary provider to provide a comprehensive after school academic, enrichment
and recreation program to include up to one hour of homework and tutoring assistance daily* from
school closure until 6:00 PM at specific schools meeting the target # of students. Program
elements shall also include other educational and enrichment/recreational and violence and alcohol
tobacco and other drug education and prevention activities.

2. Maintain and provide to the District monthly progress and program activities records.

3. CITY YEAR will provide an End of Year report on status of all outcomes and objectives.

4, Develop special activities or field trips for the sites individually and collectively. The CITY YEAR
shall obtain prior parental permission for students’ participation in CITY YEAR -sponsored field
trips and excursions, and obtain prior permission from the school site principal or Youth
Engagement Services team meetings and monthly site coordinators meetings, as well as other
planning meetings as necessary,

5. Work collaboratively with the other outside service providers contracted by the District to provide
after school services at school sites.

6. Communicate progress of project/partnership development on a timely and consistent manner to
the District

7. Communicate new partnership opportunities with the District,

8. Advertise, when possible, project/partnership in newspaper, events, press releases, etc, with the
prior approval of the District.

9. Provide a site lead and sufficient staffing to maintain a 20:1 student/staff ratio.

10. Meet monthly with the site coordinator and District contact person to identify program needs,
successes, and assistance needed.

11. Act as liaison with parents in supporting the family and community engagement

12. Other areas agreed upon and specified in the program plan.
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ASP: SCUSD and CITY YEAR
After School Program Expectations
Attachment B

Expectations for SCUSD Before and After School Programs

The following guidelines are set forth to establish clear communication between SCUSD staff and
contracted After School Programming Service Providers regarding District expectations.

1. Service providers and their staff will adopt and work within the social justice youth development
framework as they operate SCUSD before and after school programs.

2. Service providers and their staff will be knowledgeable of and adhere to the regulations
established in the ASP manual, including, but not limited to,
e Requirements for Safety
Medical Protocol
Attendance Requirements
District Disciplinary Protocol
Field Trip Requirements etc.

3. Service providers will maintain an environment that is physically and emotionally safe for
children/youth and staff at all times. This includes
e Adequate supervision
e 20 to 1 students/staff ratio
e Students within the visual line of sight for staff (age appropriate) at all times (excluding
restroom breaks)
o Clear program rules and expectations

4. Area representatives, Service Providers & their staff will communicate effectively and regularly
with each other and maintain accurate contact information. This means
e Checking and answering emails and phone messages regularly
Issues/concerns will be communicated in a timely manner
Regular and clear communication with parents via newsletters, phone calls, emails etc,
Checking on ASP website

5. Program staff will conduct themselves in a professional manner at all times by being:
¢ Easily identifiable to parents and school staff by wearing badges in plain view while on
duty.
e Prepared and ready at least 1 hour prior to start of programming,
* Regularly assess student interest via student surveys, classroom discussions, suggestion
boxes etc., and make adjustments when necessary to ensure continued student
engagement.

6. In order to support academic achievement, service providers/staff should:
* Have general knowledge of the academic standing of the students in their program.
e Align after school programs to the regular school day
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¢ Each after school program site will have their own program plan based on the needs
of their students.

e Meet administrators and teachers regularly

e Be apart of the school culture. Participate in staff meetings, schools events such as Back
to School Night, Open House etc.

e A representative from each provider agency should serve on at least one school site
committee such as School Site Council, Safety Committee etc.

e Review the School Accountability Report Card for your school site. This information is
posted on http://sacramentocity.schoolwisepress.com/home/

7. Provider agency and their staff will incorporate youth development principles in their
programming. This may include
e Creating opportunities for youth-led activities and service learning
o Involving youth in the decision-making process when appropriate
e Encouraging youth civic engagement
e Incorporating character education

8. 21% CCLC- Program must assess the need for family literacy services among adult family
members of student to be served by the program. Based on that need, all programs must, at a
minimum, either refer families to existing services or coordinate with local service providers to
deliver literacy and educational development services.

9. Area representatives will evaluate afterschool programming based on student participation,
adherence 1o the above mentioned guidelines and based on the analysis of the various assessment
tools.

*City Year will not provide services to District Programs on the following dates in order that they

may attend City Year sponsored Professional Development.

Full Day Trainings: ~ 9/11/15, 10/9/15, 11/6/15, 12/11/15, 1/15/16, 2/19/16, 3/11/16, 4/1/16,
5/6/16, 6/10/16

Half Day Trainings (a.m. only): 9/25/15, 10/23/15, 1/29/16, 4/15/16, 5/20/16
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APPENDIX A: Whole School, Whole Child Model

Program Model

Research from Johns Hopkins University has shown that students who are most at risk of dropping out of school
can be identified as early as the 6th grade through three “off-track™ early warning indicators that predict success
in school — poor attendance, unsatisfactory behavior, and course failure in math or English. Students in high
poverty environments whose performance is off-track in even just one of these indicators between the 6th and
9th grade typically have less than a 20% chance of graduating from high school.

City Year supports the efforts of school districts to turn around their lowest-achieving schools by providing
whole school and targeted supports to ensure students stay in school and on track to graduate. To address the
needs of students in high poverty schools, City Year utilizes research-based programming, the centerpiece of
which is a holistic school partnership model called Whole School, Whole Child (“WSWC”).

This model is designed to leverage City Year’s unique assets — its AmeriCorps members — who serve as “near
peer” tutors, mentors, and performance coaches to students. City Year AmeriCorps members bring many
positive attributes to their schools, including;:
e A critical mass of human capital that matches the scale of students who need additional support in a
given school
e A full-time presence (approximately 7:30 a.m. to 6 p.m.) of highly organized, supervised, and trained
young adults, four days a week (usually Monday through Thursday, with Friday’s reserved for
AmeriCorps member professional development, though the schedule varies by city)
e An idealistic culture and energy that creates a more engaging learning environment
The ability to organize school-wide and community events that engage families in the life of the school
Increased intervention capacity to provide real time response to student needs

WSWC services are guided by a rigorous data collection and review process that is used in partnership with
school staff to regularly monitor individual student performance and to tailor the types and intensity of supports
needed —both academically and socio-emotionally. City Year reviews student-level data and works with school
leadership to identify off-track students through the early warning indicators. This process of data-informed
intervention, based on an early warning monitoring system, allows City Year to deliver the right support to the
right students at the right time. These supports include:

e Attendance Monitoring and Incentive Programs: AmeriCorps members work closely with students to
monitor and improve attendance through attendance initiatives, direct student coaching, and
communication to parents and guardians,

e Behavioral Support: AmeriCorps members coach students toward behaviors and attitudes that reflect a
strong, purpose-driven character through instruction in socio-emotional learning, near-peer coaching,
and incentive programs.

e Course Performance in math and English: AmeriCorps members tutor students one-on-one and in small
groups, implementing intervention programs that are integrated with the schools’ curricula in order to
increase student academic performance. AmeriCorps members also support whole class instruction and
lead out-of-class extension activities that complement classroom learning, which help to put students on
a path towards college.



Service Activities
The figure below provides an example of how these services can be tailored in a particular school to support the
growth of all students, while targeting the individual needs of students who require additional support:

» Morning greeting / before * Classroom, hallway, and « Classroom instruction

school activitles lunch behavior support support (enabling

« Attendance incentive and differentiated instruction)
recognition programming « Positive behavior Incentive  * Academic focused

o Student and community and recognition community engagement
engagement programming (e.g. Family Reading night)

» Attendance monitoring « Behavior coaching * One-on-one tutoring
(phone calls home) Lot ki " « Small-group tutoring

« Leadership developmen .
« Attendance coaching - Homework support before

and after school

AmeriCorps members deliver these highly-integrated services throughout the day, from before the first bell
through the conclusion of after school programming. AmeriCorps members coordinate with school level
administrators and student support specialists to ensure that each student gets the support that they need. This
full-time service provides a continuous, supportive presence throughout the day to build connections between
students’ classroom learning and their before and after school experiences. City Year teams ensure that
students are attending morning or afterschool programs, and with the help of data, they can check to see that the
students who are attending are those who need additional support. This aspect of the WSWC model:

Increases the relevance of extended learning time to best meet the individual needs of students
Deliberately links in-school learning and after school engagement opportunities.

Maximizes the role of parents and community members to extend students’ learning beyond the school
campus

Increases community service and character/leadership development opportunities that are linked to
classroom learning

Note, while City Year is able to provide Tier 1 and Tier 2 services to eligible students, AmeriCorps members
are not qualified to legally provide support to students that would be classified as Tier 3 and require
professional case managed interventions.



APPENDIX B: City Year Staffing and Leadership

A robust, local City Year leadership team will oversee all aspects of service provided to your district. This team
{s organized to streamline City Year’s communications with the District and school partners and to manage
daily service delivery and the timely fulfillment of the partnership’s performance targets at both the district and
school level. Key City Year team members include:

City Year Executive Director: Operating from the local
City Year office, the Executive Director will lead the site
and will be responsible for City Year’s overall
contribution to the district.

Managing Director of Impact: The Managing Director | Primary Liaisons to the School
of Impact will manage and develop the overall service District

partnership and oversee City Year’s program
implementation, evaluation, and documentation of efforts.
The Impact Director will also coordinate with City Year
field staff and individual schools to ensure that school-
level performance targets are being met.

Program Managers: Impact Managers will serve as the
primary liaison with each school partner, overseeing the
daily execution of services at the school site. They will Primary Liaison to Each School
also be responsible for the preparation, ongoing Partner

management, and professional development of the
AmeriCorps member teams.

Team Leaders: A senior AmeriCorps member who has
the experience and demonstrated leadership to lead the
team of AmeriCorps members throughout their daily
student support services.

The national City Year network: City Year’s
Headquarters office performs ongoing research,
evaluation, and development of its services across all sites,
based on leading education research. Additionally, City
Year teams will be supported by a national network of
City Year staff and AmeriCorps members working in over
200 schools, who share best practices on regular basis.

Other Partnership Support Staff




Appendix C: AmeriCorps Member Training and On-Going Professional Development

City Year uses an experiential learning model to prepare AmeriCorps members to lead our educational
interventions in schools, incorporating direct training, in-service observation and coaching, guided reflection,
and frequent performance assessment and review. A sample training calendar for AmeriCorps members is
provided below (note: specific dates and duration of training activities for your AmeriCorps members may
vary).

July August  September October November December Jauary February March April  May June

Trainers: Two Week

* City Year Training Saff Natlonal I
« School Staff Saff Tralning
¢ District PD Partners
» External Experts Two Week
Baslc Training Academy
With Integrated
District/School Practicum On-going |

Professional Development

Three Day
Advanced Training Academy

On-golng
Professional Development

Training topics include:
e Literacy and math content, support, and intervention strategies
Attendance and behavioral support, and intervention strategies
Ongoing data management and analysis
Understanding the Response to Intervention (RTI) model and early warning indicator system
Building a culture of achievement in the classroom and throughout the school community
Youth development and learning theory
Leveraging relationships with youth to boost achievement
Understanding the underlying social factors that influence the local community
Family engagement
Partnering with teachers, instructional coaches, and administrators
Developing positive, supportive relationships with youth to boost achievement
AmeriCorps members’ civic leadership development



Appendix D: Schooel Operating Conditions for Success

Through extensive research involving numerous school visits and conversations with high-performing
turnaround organizations and education experts, City Year has identified a set of operating conditions that
enable integration of the WSWC model into each school’s culture and structure, and thus maximizing the
impact of City Year’s service. When effectively implemented, these operating conditions allow City Year to
fully realize its effect on student achievement.

1. A school mindset and culture in which administrators, faculty, and staff have a positive attitude toward
the success of their students. AmeriCorps members work with school leadership to understand and
advance the school culture.

2. A data-informed ticred intervention strategy to formally identify and track progress of focus list students
based on early warning indicator data (attendance, behavior, and course performance in literacy/ELA and
math). AmeriCorps members, teachers, and student support staff discuss data to identify students in need of
moderate (Tier 2) support, and for referral for intensive (Tier 3) supports.

3. A school organization that groups students into cohorts that travel together throughout the day with
teacher teams that can monitor progress across disciplines. AmeriCorps members are leveraged to follow
one cohort of students through ELA and math courses, and each AmeriCorps member has a focus list of
students in that cohort to provide Tier 2 support.

4. A master schedule that allows for double-dosing for students who are behind in math and ELA, and
common planning time for teacher teams and AmeriCorps members.

5. An attendance program with defined policies, incentives for attending, and data-informed interventions
for chronic absenteeism. AmeriCorps members are leveraged to support school-wide attendance initiatives
and the consistent attendance of the students on their focus list.

6. A behavior system that uses data to identify students in need of commendation for positive behavior or
intervention for poor behavior. AmeriCorps members have a defined role as positive behavior coaches to
support the school-wide system.

7. A family engagement program that recognizes and engages parents as important partners in their child’s
education and welcomes them into the school. AmeriCorps members add capacity to existing efforts and
initiate additional engagement opportunities, with specific attention to the families of students on their
focus lists.

8. Extended learning time is available for students before school, after school, and/or during the school day
to engage students in enrichment activities, tutoring, or other structured learning programs. AmeriCorps
members can support the existing program structure and implement standard City Year offerings (e.g.,
service learning, enrichment clubs, targeted tutoring, and homework assistance).

9. An instructional program with a consistent curriculum, learning goals, and instructional pedagogy
across the school. AmeriCorps members trained in curricula and accompanying intervention strategies
coordinate with teachers to support instructional practice,

10. A full-time team of core content specialists that work closely with teachers to enhance content delivery,
coordinate and evaluate intervention strategies, and advise on differentiating instruction in classrooms.
These core content specialists provide training and support to AmeriCorps members for targeted
interventions and classroom support.



11. Training and professional development that is provided to all staff and AmeriCorps members (when
appropriate) on the school’s instructional philosophy, data use and management, school culture programs,
community and family involvement, and school-specific issues.

12. A team of student support specialists that provide sufficient social, emotional, physical, and academic
support to all students in need of Tier 2 or Tier 3 support. AmeriCorps members meet regularly with the
student support team to co-construct and monitor progress of City Year’s Tier 2 interventions and refine
Tier 1 support.



Appendix E: Data Sharing Agreement

In order for City Year to successfully implement the services described above and improve student
performance, it is essential that City Year have access to the necessary data and support to propetly monitor,
adjust and measure the impact of the student supports provided.

Use of Data
City Year uses student-level performance data in partnership with district and school personnel to:

L]

determine the scope and types of whole-school, in-class, and targeted student services it will provide;
set goals with school administration, teachers, and students regarding school, classroom, and student
outcomes;

monitor the progress and evaluate the efficacy of its suite of services, from individual students up to
whole-school impacts;

identify students who are in need of intensive support, monitor their progress, plan and track their
interventions throughout the year;

report on performance metrics to the school and the school district; and

inform and refine our WSWC model design and improve overall quality of service.

Agreement Concerning Data Use
To ensure appropriate interventions are provided to the right students at the right time, City Year and the
District agree to the following:

City Year agrees to: The District agrees to:

s periodically review student progress in « provide a primary data collection liaison/data
coordination with representatives from each coordinator to ensure that the school and/or the
school partner’s student support team (or school district provide all necessary student-
reasonable proxy) and make decisions level data in a timely basis, in accordance with
regarding student participation in the district policies and procedures;
partnership’s targeted interventions;  help facilitate the completion of surveys and

« complete periodic reports on behalf of the report outcome data in a timely manner to help
partnership to City Year’s stakeholders; facilitate internal or external reporting on City
including the school district and AmeriCorps. Year’s impact; and

» share evaluation reports from evaluations o facilitate and/or support the collection of
commissioned by City Year; and student-level data as outlined below.

» track key output data related to City Year’s
core services.

Data Access, Acquisition, and Requirements. From the District, City Year will receive the following
identifiable, student-level information for all students in the schools it will serve as part of this Agreement:

attendance data (e.g. daily absence or tardiness, number of absences/tardies over a specified time period,
days attended and missed, average daily attendance),

behavior/discipline data (e.g. number of detentions, suspensions, office referrals);

ELA and math assessment data (e.g. teacher-produces, district interim and benchmark, district and state
standardized tests);

ELA and math marking period grades and end-of-course grades;

ELA and math course assignments and grades (if available);

student identification and demographic data (e.g. name, district ID, date of birth, race/ethnicity, gender);
and

class, class enrollment, teacher, and school identification data (e.g. name of ELA and math class and
teacher, class rosters, school and class schedules).



This data will be provided for the current academic year on at least a weekly basis via a secure file transfer from
the District to City Year. At the beginning of the academic year, the District will also provide to City Year prior
year information for all students enrolled in the schools City Year serves for the data noted above.

Lastly, each school will complete surveys which will be used for reporting of City Year's impact. These
include:

« mid-year and end-of-year principal, school liaison, and teacher surveys;

e end-of-year student surveys; and

« any other pre-arranged survey efforts that will assist City Year to assess its performance.

Data Transfer Protocol

The District will assign a team representing technical and academic expertise (“District team™) to work with
City Year to establish the automated data transfer. The project timeline, services provided by City Year, and
tasks required of the District Team will be finalized in a Statement of Work provided by City Year and agreed
upon by the District. City Year will work with the District team to map their data system(s) to City Year's data
feed specification. At that point, City Year will work with the District team to establish scheduled, automatic
data transfers between the District student data system(s) and a secure file transfer protocol (SFTP) site hosted
by City Year. Every time new data is published to the SFTP, City Year will validate the data, load the
successful records into the City Year data system ("'cyschoolhouse"), and send an email to the District team
notifying them of potential errors.

City Year reserves the right to make changes to the Data Transfer Protocol in order to improve data transfer
security, quality, and efficiency. Any changes will require City Year to notify the District and no changes will
be made without review and approval from [DISTRICT DESIGNEE] or, in the case of staff turnover or
reassignment, a jointly agreed upon District representative.

FERPA. City Year uses data in partnership with the District in the legitimate educational interest of students,
by reviewing student-level data to identify which students need supports and to modify those supports in
response to data, aligning with the requirements listed in 34 C.F.R. section 99.31 of the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

For purposes of this Agreement, City Year shall function as an agent of the District with regard to accessing
pupil record information necessary for City Year’s performance of the WSWC model. City Year agrees to the
following conditions, as required by 20 U.S.C. section 1232g and 34 C.F.R. section 99.31(Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act or FERPA): (1) City Year is performing a service or function for which the School
District would otherwise use employees; (2) City Year is under the direct control of the agency or institution
with respect to the use and maintenance of education records; and (3) City Year is subject to the requirements of
34 C.F.R. section 99.33(a) governing the use and re-disclosure of personally identifiable information from
education records.

For purposes of studying the program to improve instruction, City Year shall comply with all requirements of
34 C.F.R. section 99.31(a)(6). City Year shall conduct its study in a manner that does not permit personal
identification of parents and students by anyone other than representatives of City Year authorized by this
Agreement with legitimate educational interests for purposes of this Agreement. For the purposes of auditing or
evaluating City Year’s federally-supported program, City Year shall comply with 34 C.F.R. 99.31(a) and 99.35.

Ownership and Protection of Confidential Information

Confidential Information means any and all information of either party disclosed or otherwise made available to
or learned by the parties under this Agreement, which is designated as “confidential” or “proprietary” or which,
under all of the circumstances, ought reasonably to be treated as confidential, and includes, but is not limited to,
school data and, all school student records and personnel records of both parties.



School Information means all information, in any form, furnished or made available directly or indirectly to
City Year by the school partner or otherwise obtained by City Year from the school partner in connection with
this Agreement, including all information of the school, District or any District affiliates to which City Year has
had or will have access, whether in oral, written, graphic, or machine-readable form.

City Year, the District, and each school partner will maintain the confidentiality of any and all student data
exchanged as part of this Agreement. Confidentiality requirements will survive the termination or expiration of
this agreement. To ensure the continued confidentiality and security of student data, City Year and school
security plans will be followed.

Confidential Information of either party (and any derivative works thereof or modifications thereto) is and will
remain the exclusive property of that party or its licensors, as applicable. Neither party shall possess nor assert
any lien or other right against or to Confidential Information of the other party. No Confidential Information of
either party, or any part thereof (including, without limitation, any School Information,), will be sold, assigned,
leased, or otherwise disposed of to third parties by the other party or commercially exploited by or on behalf of
City Year, its employees or agents.

During the course and scope of its services hereunder, City Year and/or its school partners will gain knowledge
of or have access to, including electronic access to, Confidential Information of the other party, or otherwise
have Confidential Information disclosed to it. The parties each understand that Confidential Information is
made available to it only to the extent necessary to perform its duties within the course and scope of this
Agreement, and the respective parties’ and their respective personnel will use Confidential Information for no
other purpose. Each party will disclose Confidential Information only to its personnel with a need to access such
data as a necessary part of the performance of this Agreement,

City Year personnel may, by nature of the services, have access to systems and devices containing Confidential
information, but have no need to actually access such Confidential Information in order to perform Services.
City Year therefore agrees to use reasonable efforts to avoid unnecessary exposure by City Year personnel to
Confidential Information. City Year further agrees to comply, and agrees to require City Year Personnel to
comply, with all applicable laws relating to the access, use and disclosure of Confidential Information and any
School Information embodied therein. The parties will each cooperate fully in resolving any actual or suspected
acquisition or misuse of Confidential Information.

Notwithstanding the terms of this section, the parties may disclose Confidential Information if disclosure is
required by law in response to a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or authorized government
agency, provided that the disclosing party must provide the other party prompt notice of the order and at the
other party’s request and expense, reasonably cooperate with efforts to receive a protective order or otherwise
limit disclosure.

At no cost to the party that owns the Confidential Information, the other party shall upon (a) request by the
owner at any time, and (b) upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, securely eliminate or return
promptly in the format and on the media in use as of the date of request, all or any requested portion of
Confidential Information that may be in the other party’s possession or control. Notwithstanding the foregoing
and subject to any restrictions imposed by applicable law, the parties may each retain a copy of the other’s
Confidential Information (but excluding any student or employee data) solely for archival purposes and in
connection with any dispute between the parties.



APPENDIX F: AmeriCorps Prohibited Activities

Activities prohibited in AmeriCorps subtitle C programs

[59 FR 13808, Mar. 23, 1994, as amended at 70 FR 39607, July 8, 2005]

(a) While charging time to the AmeriCorps program, accumulating service or training hours, or otherwise
performing activities supported by the AmeriCorps program or the Corporation, staff and members may not
engage in the following activities:

1.
i,
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

vii.

viil.

IX.

X.
X1,

Attempting to influence legislation;

Organizing or engaging in protests, petitions, boycotts, or strikes;

Assisting, promoting, or deterring union organizing;

Impairing existing contracts for services or collective bargaining agreements;

Engaging in partisan political activities, or other activities designed to influence the outcome of an
election to any public office;

Participating in, or endorsing, events or activities that are likely to include advocacy for or against
political parties, political platforms, political candidates, proposed legislation, or elected officials;
Engaging in religious instruction, conducting worship services, providing instruction as part of a
program that includes mandatory religious instruction or worship, constructing or operating facilities
devoted to religious instruction or worship, maintaining facilities primarily or inherently devoted to
religious instruction or worship, or engaging in any form of religious proselytization;

Providing a direct benefit to—

(i) A business organized for profit;

(1) A labor union;

(iii)A partisan political organization;

(iv)A nonprofit organization that fails to comply with the restrictions contained in section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 except that nothing in this section shall be
construed to prevent participants from engaging in advocacy activities undertaken at their
own initiative; and

(v) An organization engaged in the religious activities described in paragraph (g) of this section,
unless Corporation assistance is not used to support those religious activities;

Conducting a voter registration drive or using Corporation funds to conduct a voter registration
drive;

Providing abortion services or referrals for receipt of such services; and

Such other activities as the Corporation may prohibit.

(b) Individuals may exercise their rights as private citizens and may participate in the activities listed above on
their initiative, on non-AmeriCorps time, and using non-Corporation funds. Individuals should not wear the
AmeriCorps logo while doing so.

(c) Nondis
1.
ii.
iii.

1v.

placement:

An employer may not displace an employee or position, including partial displacement such as
reduction in hours, wages, or employment benefits, as a result of the use by such employer of a
participant in a program receiving Corporation assistance.
An organization may not displace a volunteer by using a participant in a program receiving
Corporation assistance.
A service opportunity will not be created under this chapter that will infringe in any manner on the
promotional opportunity of an employed individual.
A participant in a program receiving Corporation assistance may not perform any services or duties
or engage in activities that would otherwise be performed by an employee as part of the assigned
duties of such employee.
A participant in any program receiving assistance under this chapter may not perform any services or
duties, or engage in activities, that—

(1) Will supplant the hiring of employed workers; or

1N



(i)  Are services, duties, or activities with respect to which an individual has recall rights
pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement or applicable personnel procedures.
vi. A participant in any program receiving assistance under this chapter may not perform services or
duties that have been performed by or were assigned to any—
(i) Presently employed worker;
(i) Employee who recently resigned or was discharged;
(iii)Employee who is subject to a reduction in force or who has recall rights pursuant to a
collective bargaining agreement or applicable personnel procedures;
(iv)Employee who is on leave (terminal, temporary, vacation, emergency, or sick); or
(v) Employee who is on strike or who is being locked out.



Appendix G: Corporate Support for City Year

City Year is working to bridge the gap in high-poverty communities between the support students in the
communities actually need and what their schools are able to provide. In doing so, our model is designed to
provide additional human capital to support students as they progress from elementary through high school in
order to continue to build the nation's urban graduation pipeline. As part of its service in schools, City Year
works with a variety of external partners including, the Corporation for National and Community Service
(AmeriCorps) and other federal entities, national and local philanthropies, corporate partners, and individual
donors to bring additional resources into the schools where we work.,

Corporate partners can provide support to City Year and its partner schools in three possible ways. First, they
may provide financial support that makes it possible for City Year to provide its services at a reduced cost to
schools. Second, corporate partners may operate their own community service and engagement programs that
could benefit schools, students, and parents. Third, employees from corporate partners may be available to
serve as school volunteers who can supplement the service of City Year AmeriCorps members at your schools.

Corporate partners will be subject to all relevant District and school policies. Subject to this condition, the
District agrees to allow City Year to work with corporate partners to supplement its work under this Agreement.

Use of corporate volunteers to supplement City Year service

In conjunction with our AmeriCorps members, corporate volunteers are able to supplement a variety of Tier |
attendance supports in your school, including joining in morning greetings, participating in attendance
recognition programs, and leading community engagement events such as career fair nights. Volunteers can also
supplement City Year’s after-school programming, assist students with homework, provide students with
additional tutoring and mentoring, and speak to students about carcer and professional paths.

Benefits of having corporate volunteers work with City Year in your schools include:
e Additional hands-on support for a greater number of underserved students who are in need of academic
tutoring and extracurricular enrichment opportunities
e Help to broaden the horizon of our students by connecting them to careers and professionals that exist in
their community and surrounding neighborhoods
e Connection to corporate partners and their employees who want to support schools and participate in
meaningful, socially conscious activities

Corporate partners who serve as school volunteers will be subject to all District and school requirements
regarding the activities of volunteers in schools.

™M



Sacramento City Unified School District and City Year

<.> 2015- 2016 Data Sharing Agreement Amendment:
|

August 13,2015

This Data Sharing Agreement (“Agreement”) shall commence on September 3, 2015 and conclude on June 16,
2016 and is by and between Sacramento City Unified School District a local education agency whose address is
5735 47™ Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 and City Year, Inc., a 501(c)(3) organization located at 287
Columbus Avenue, Boston, MA 02116.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Sacramento City Unified School District, hereafter known as the “District”, is a local
education agency that serves the residents of Sacramento, CA.

WHEREAS, City Year is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization providing youth development and education
support services.

WHEREAS, City Year has previously entered into an agreement with Sacramento City Unified School
District dated September 3, 2015 to provide AmeriCorps members to deliver research-based whole school
supports and student interventions to the District.

WHEREAS, to permit City Year to successfully implement the educational services for the District and
improve student performance, it is essential that City Year have access to necessary student data to properly
design, monitor, adjust, and measure the impact of the student support services provided.

WHEREAS, the District has requested that City Year conduct certain studies to monitor the performance of
students and schools receiving educational support services from City Year.

WHEREAS, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, (“FERPA”) permits the District to release
personally identifiable records of a student under specified conditions to individuals or organizations on
behalf of a board of education.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties
hereby agree as follows.

1.

Use of Data. City Year uses student-level performance data in partnership with district and school personnel

to:

 determine the scope and types of whole-school, in-class, and targeted student services it will provide;

o set goals with school administration, teachers, and students regarding school, classroom, and student
outcomes;

« monitor the progress and evaluate the efficacy of its suite of services, from individual students up to
whole-school impacts;

 identify students who are in need of intensive support, monitor their progress, plan and track their
interventions throughout the year;

e report on performance metrics to the school and the school district; and

e inform and refine our WSWC model design and improve overall quality of service.

Obligations of City Year. To ensure appropriate whole school and targeted interventions are provided, City
Year agrees to:



o periodically review student progress in coordination with representatives from each school partner's
student support team (or reasonable proxy) and make decisions regarding student participation in the
partnership's targeted interventions;

» complete periodic reports on behalf of the partnership to City Year's stakeholders, including the school
district and AmeriCorps;

« share evaluation reports from evaluations commissioned by City Year; and

« track key output data related to City Year's core services.

Obligations of the District. To ensure appropriate whole school and targeted interventions are provided,

the District agrees to:

« provide a primary data collection liaison/data coordinator to ensure that the school and/or the school
district provide all necessary student-level data in a timely basis, in accordance with district policies and
procedures;

« help facilitate the completion of surveys and report outcome data in a timely manner to help facilitate
internal or external reporting on City Year's impact; and

« facilitate and/or support the collection of student-level data as outlined below.

Data Access, Acquisition, and Requirements. From the District, City Year will receive the following

identifiable, student-level information for all students in the schools it will serve as part of this Agreement:

 attendance data (e.g. daily absence or tardiness, number of absences/tardies over a specified time period,
days attended and missed, average daily attendance);

« behavior/discipline data (e.g. number of detentions, suspensions, office referrals);

e ELA and math assessment data (e.g. teacher-produces, district interim and benchmark, district and state
standardized tests),

» ELA and math marking period grades and end-of-course grades;

» ELA and math course assignments and grades (if available);

« student identification and demographic data (e.g. name, district ID, date of birth, race/ethnicity, gender);
and

o class, class enrollment, teacher, and school identification data (e.g. name of ELA and math class and
teacher, class rosters, school and class schedules).

This data will be provided for the current academic year on at least a weekly basis via a secure file transfer
from the District to City Year. At the beginning of the academic year, the District will also provide to City
Year prior year information for all students enrolled in schools City Year serves for the data noted above.

Each school will complete surveys which will be used for reporting of City Year’s impact. These include:
o mid-year and end-of-year principal, school liaison, and teacher surveys;

+ end-of-year student surveys; and

« any other pre-arranged survey efforts that will assist City Year to assess its performance.

Data Transfer Protocol

The District will assign a team representing technical and academic expertise (“District team”) to work with
City Year to establish the automated data transfer. The project timeline, services provided by City Year, and
tasks required of the District Team will be finalized in a Statement of Work provided by City Year and
agreed upon by the District. City Year will work with the District team to map their data system(s) to City
Year's data feed specification. At that point, City Year will work with the District team to establish
scheduled, automatic data transfers between the District student data system(s) and a secure file transfer
protocol (SFTP) site hosted by City Year, Every time new data is published to the SFTP, City Year will
validate the data, load the successful records into the City Year data system ("cyschoolhouse"), and send an
email to the District team notifying them of potential errors.

City Year reserves the right to make changes to the Data Transfer Protocol in order to improve data transfer
security, quality, and efficiency. Any changes will require City Year to notify the District and no changes

~



will be made without review and approval from [DISTRICT DESIGNEE] or, in the case of staff turnover or
reassignment, a jointly agreed upon District representative.

. FERPA. City Year uses data in partnership with the District in the legitimate educational interest of
students, by reviewing student-level data to identify which students need supports and to modify those
supports in response to data, aligning with the requirements listed in 34 C.F.R. section 99.31 of the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

For purposes of this Agreement, City Year shall function as an agent of the District with regard to accessing
pupil record information necessaty for City Year’s performance of the WSWC model. City Year agrees to
the following conditions, as required by 20 U.S.C. section 1232g and 34 C.F.R. section 99.31(Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act or FERPA): (1) City Year is performing a service or function for which
the School District would otherwise use employees; (2) City Year is under the direct control of the agency
or institution with respect to the use and maintenance of education records; and (3) City Year is subject to
the requirements of 34 C.F.R. section 99.33(a) governing the use and re-disclosure of personally identifiable
information from education records.

For purposes of studying the program to improve instruction, City Year shall comply with all requirements
of 34 C.F.R. section 99.31(a)(6). City Year shall conduct its study in a manner that does not permit personal
identification of parents and students by anyone other than representatives of City Year authorized by this
Agreement with legitimate educational interests for purposes of this Agreement. For the purposes of
auditing or evaluating City Year’s federally-supported program, City Year shall comply with 34 C.F.R.
99.31(a) and 99.35.

. Ownership and Protection of Confidential Information. Confidential Information means any and all
information of either party disclosed or otherwise made available to or learned by the parties under this
Agreement, which is designated as “confidential” or “proprietary” or which, under all of the circumstances,
ought reasonably to be treated as confidential, and includes, but is not limited to, school data and, all school
student records and personnel records of both parties.

School Information means all information, in any form, furnished or made available directly or indirectly to
City Year by the school partner or otherwise obtained by City Year from the school partner in connection
with this Agreement, including all information of the school, District or any District affiliates to which City
Year has had or will have access, whether in oral, written, graphic, or machine-readable forn.

City Year, the District, and each school partner will maintain the confidentiality of any and all student data
exchanged as part of this Agreement. Confidentiality requirements will survive the termination or expiration
of this agreement. To ensure the continued confidentiality and security of student data, City Year and school
security plans will be followed.

Confidential Information of either party (and any derivative works thereof or modifications thereto) is and
will remain the exclusive property of that party or its licensors, as applicable. Neither party shall possess nor
assert any lien or other right against or to Confidential Information of the other party. No Confidential
Information of either party, or any part thereof (including, without limitation, any School Information,), will
be sold, assigned, leased, or otherwise disposed of to third parties by the other party or commercially
exploited by or on behalf of City Year, its employees or agents.

During the course and scope of its services hereunder, City Year and/or its school partners will gain
knowledge of or have access to, including electronic access to, Confidential Information of the other party,
or otherwise have Confidential Information disclosed to it. The parties each understand that Confidential
Information is made available to it only to the extent necessary to perform its duties within the course and
scope of this Agreement, and the respective parties’ and their respective personnel will use Confidential



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Information for no other purpose. Each party will disclose Confidential Information only to its personnel
with a need to access such data as a necessary part of the performance of this Agreement.

Cily Year personnel may, by nature of the services, have access to systems and devices containing
Confidential Information, but have no need to actually access such Confidential Information in order to
perform Services. City Year therefore agrees to use reasonable efforts to avoid unnecessary exposure by
City Year personnel to Confidential Information. City Year further agrees to comply, and agrees to require
City Year Personnel to comply, with all applicable laws relating to the access, use and disclosure of
Confidential Information and any School Information embodied therein. The parties will each cooperate
fully in resolving any actual or suspected acquisition or misuse of Confidential Information.

Notwithstanding the terms of this section, the parties may disclose Confidential Information if disclosure is
required by law in response to a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or authorized government
agency, provided that the disclosing party must provide the other party prompt notice of the order and at the
other party’s request and expense, reasonably cooperate with efforts to receive a protective order or
otherwise limit disclosure.

At no cost to the party that owns the Confidential Information, the other party shall upon (a) request by the
owner at any time, and (b) upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, securely eliminate or return
promptly in the format and on the media in use as of the date of request, all or any requested portion of
Confidential Information that may be in the other party’s possession or control. Notwithstanding the
foregoing and subject to any restrictions imposed by applicable law, the parties may each retain a copy of
the other’s Confidential Information (but excluding any student or employee data) solely for archival
purposes and in connection with any dispute between the parties.

No Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by either party without the prior
written consent of the other.

No Third Party Beneficiary. This is not a third party beneficiary contract. No person or entity other than a
party signing this Agreement shall have any rights under this Agreement.

Severahility. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision to any
person or set of circumstances, shall be determined to be invalid, unlawful, or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement shall continue to be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Headings. Any headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a
part of this Agreement.

Counterparts Permitted. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original.

No Waiver. A party to this Agreement may, on a single occasion or on multiple occasions, waive or fail to
require full and timely performance of any obligation arising under this Agreement. Such waiver or failure
to require full or timely performance shall not be deemed a permanent waiver of any such obligation. No
such decisions or failures shall give rise to any claim of estoppel, laches, course of dealing, amendment of
this Agreement by course of dealing or other defense of any nature to any obligation arising hereunder.

Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to, and interpreted by and in accordance with,
the laws of the State of California.

Notice. Any notice, demand, or other communication under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered to the address of the party as set forth below:



If to: CITY YEAR Sacramento
Attn: Sonali Nijhawan
1414 K Street Suite 1000
Sacramento, CA 95814

If to: Sacramento City Unified School District
Attn: Jose Banda
5735 47" Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95824

15. Entire Agreement and Amendment, This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes and replaces any and all prior or contemporaneous
discussions, negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, regarding such subject matter and
may not be modified or amended except by a written agreement specifically refetring to this Agreement
signed each party hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, cach of the parties has caused its duly authorized representative to sign and deliver

this Agreement on the day and year first above written.

Sacramento City Unified School District Date
Jose Banda
Sacramento City Unified School District Superintendent

City Year, Inc. Date
Evelyn Barnes
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City U"if_”wd. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda Item 9.1b

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Approve Personnel Transactions

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

T

Division: Human Resource Services

Recommendation: Approve Personnel Transactions

Background/Rationale: N/A

Financial Considerations: N/A

LCAP Goal(s): Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools

Documents Attached:
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated January 7, 2016
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated January 7, 2016

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A
Submitted by: Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer
Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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Attachment 1. CERTIFICATED 1/7/16

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions

JobPerm JobClass

January 7, 2016

PrimeSite

NameLast NameFirst
EMPLOY/RE-EMPLOY

MORALES SHANE B
CHUTTE KAMALJIT B
MORGAN LISA B
TRAN PHOEBE B
CROWLEY JOHN B
GORONA HEATHER B

STATUS CHANGE

Teacher Middle School

Teacher Elementary
Teacher Elementary
Teacher K-8

Teacher High School

Teacher Middle School

Teacher High School

FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL
ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTAR'
A. M. WINN ELEMENTARY SCHOC
JOHN H. STILL - K-8

HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHO(
SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL

JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL

Teacher Resource Specii JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL
Teacher Resource Specii CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY
Teacher Resource Specii ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY
Teacher Resource SpeciiHUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENT.,

Teacher Spec Ed
Training Specialist

GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY
EQUITY ACCESS & EXCELLENCE
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Training Specialist High ¢ CURRICULUM & PROF DEVELOP
Teacher Resource Eleme BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY
Assistant Principal High £ JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL

HERNER CHRISTOFFEF A
COSTA MATTHEW C
COLCHICO KATHERINE C
COLCHICO KATHERINE C
COLCHICO KATHERINE C
DA CASTELLO TODD A
QUINN NICOLE R
CANTWELL JANNA A
GATES JENNIFER A
GARBOUSHIAN MAIDA B
LEAVES

GATEJEN KURT A
DEEMS MARY A
VAN DEN HAAK NICOLE A
AULT BRITAINIE 0
MCPHAIL CYNTHIA A
VAN DEN HAAK NICOLE A
AUGE GAYLE A
MASHININI-NIGL SIPHIWE A
AUGE GAYLE A
MC MEEKIN GRETCHEN Q
ARRIAGA SHAUNNA B

Teacher High School

JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL

Teacher Resource Specii WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL

Teacher Elementary
Teacher K-8
Teacher High School
Teacher Elementary
Teacher Elementary
Teacher Elementary
Teacher Elementary
Training Specialist
Teacher Spec Ed

EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY
ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL
HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHO(
EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY
PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM.
PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM.
ACADEMIC OFFICE

WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL

BegDate EndDate Comment
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY 1ST YR PROB/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
12/9/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1 12/9/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1 11/30/15
11/18/2015 6/30/2016 REEMPLOY PROB 11/18/15
7/1/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG .80 PERM 7/1/15
9/1/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG PROB2/SALSCHCHG 9/1/15
11/4/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO PROB 2 11/4/15
11/4/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO PROB 2 11/4/15
11/4/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO PROB 2 11/4/15
9/3/2015 6/30/2016 REA FR 'TCH RES SP ED' 9/3/15
7/1/2015 6/30/2016 REA/STCHG/TR 7/1-6/30/16
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 REA/TR 12/7/15
12/1/2015 6/30/2016 REA FR TEACHER RSP/ 12/1/15
7/1/2015  6/30/2016 REA/STCHG 7/1/15
10/13/2015 6/30/2016 EXT FMLA UNPD 10/29-12/20/15
12/1/2015 1/27/2016 LOA PD FMLA HE 12/1-1/27/16
12/5/2015 1/3/2016 LOA PD HE/ 12/5/15-1/3/16
12/5/2015 2/6/2016 LOA PD HE/ 12/5/15-2/6/16
11/9/2015 1/31/2016 LOA UNPD FMLA 11/9-1/31/16
11/30/2015  12/4/2015 LOA EXT PD FMLA 11/30-12/4/15
12/5/2015 12/8/2015 LOA EXT PD HE 12/5/15-12/8/15
11/30/2015 2/2/2016 LOA HE PD 11/30/15-2/2/16
12/9/2015 6/30/2016 LOA RTN PD HE 12/9/15
12/2/2015 6/30/2016 LOA RTN UNPD 12/2/15
12/1/2015 1/31/2016 LOA UNPD INT FMLA 12/1-1/31/16

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment - Evaluated; R=Limited Term

Assignment - Not Evaluated



EndDate Comment Page 2 of 2

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate
SEP/RESIGN/RETIRE

CATLETT EMILY A Counselor High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOI 7/1/2015
BESK DYLAN A Teacher High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOI 10/5/2015
THOMAS GREGORY B Principal High School WEST CAMPUS 7/1/2015
KATSURA CATHY A Teacher K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTAF 7/1/2015
CRUZ LYDIA A Teacher Elementary ETHEL |. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2015

12/18/2015 SEP/RESIGN 12/18/15
12/31/2015 SEP/RESIGN 12/31/15
1/5/2016 SEP/RETIRE 1/5/16
12/31/2015 Sep/RETIRE 12/31/15

11/18/2015 SEP/DE 11/18/15

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment - Evaluated; R=Limited Term

Assignment - Not Evaluated



Attachment 2: CLASSIFIED 1/7/15

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions

January 7, 2016

NamelLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite

EMPLOY

KHANG JER B Clerk Il CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL
AHMAD GHAZALA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
ALVARADO OLIVIA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
BAGGERLY JAMIE B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
BARRIOS MELISSA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
CABALLERO DEBRA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
FLORES MANUEL B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
INIGUEZ NORMA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
KAZSUK JUANITA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
ESPITIA CELIA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
VILLANUEVA BREE B Teacher Asst Bil | - Spani MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHC
RUTLEDGE DARLENE B Parent Advisor AMERICAN LEGION HIGH SCHOO!I
BELEN JOHN B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
McCULLOUGH KWAMEL B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
MOBERG LALENA B Inst Aid Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTME
HERNANDEZ MARA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
MACK CHRISTY B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
MCCOY MELISSA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
MENDOZA ALCAZAR  LIDIA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
PELAEZ-HERNANDEZ OLGA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
PEREZ HERNANDEZ  JOHANA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
RYITSKAYA GALINA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
ROBLES SILVIA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
COLES ISAAC Q Campus Monitor OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHO(
MULKEY SKYLA B Inst Aid Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL
ANDRUSYNA CHRISTOPHEF B Fiscal Services Tech| EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
GALLEGOS MARIO B Fiscal Services Techl = EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
HICKS MARCIE B Instructional Aide A. M. WINN ELEMENTARY SCHOC
MOWDER KAYLA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
OREGEL CERVANTES NANCY B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
PCHELKINA VASILINA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
DEVAUGHN DENISE B Facilities Project Tech ~ FACILITIES MAINTENANCE

MOHR SHANE B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
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BegDate EndDate Comment
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .25 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .4375 PROB1 11/30/15
11/18/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .46875 PROB1 11/18/15
11/12/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .50 PROB1 11/12/15
11/16/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY .625 PROB1 11/16/15
11/16/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1 11/16/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1 12/7/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 11/30/15
12/2/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1/ 12/2/15
9/3/2015 1/31/2016 EMPLOY LTA 9/3/15-6/30/16
11/16/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/16/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 12/7/15
11/16/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/16/15

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated;
R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated



NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite

OSIPOV MAYA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
CASTILLO VERONICA B Inst Aid Spec Ed A. M. WINN ELEMENTARY SCHOC
SANDOVAL ANTONIO B Custodian LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL
TRICE-DAMIANO NEVA B Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
STATUS CHANGE/RE-ASSIGN

LOPEZ RODRIGUEZ GABINA A Teacher Assistant Bilingu WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHO(
HIM SOK A Fd Sv Asst | NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
HUERTA ANNA A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
BARRON MARIA A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
NEWLAND TERI A Instructional Aide JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTALI
PHUNG LIEN A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
PRICE URIBE ELIZABETH A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
PHAN MINH A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
NUGENT CATHLIN A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
TELLEZ MARIA A Custodian CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTA
DIZON MARIA LUZ B Employment Coach SpEc SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTME
GAMBOA YVETTE B Fd Sv Asst Il NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTME
REED MIAMAH Q Youth Services Specialist YOUTH DEVELOPMENT

GHOLAR LAUREATE Q Youth Services Specialist YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
ROBINSON LORI B Attendance Drop Out DIS STUDENT SUPPORT AND FAMILY
REYES STELLA B Fund Spec BUDGET SERVICES

LEAVES

MONTEIRO ANASTASIA A Clerk Il DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHC
SEP/RESIGN/RETIRE

EDWARDS CAMICA B Student and Family Supp INTEGRATED COMMUNITY SERVI
WARD DIXON JENNIFER R Coord | Learning Support INTEGRATED COMMUNITY SERVI
TRICE KATHY A Inst Aid Spec Ed BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY SCHC
GONZALEZ-HIDALGO ELISA A Parent Advisor LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL
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BegDate EndDate Comment
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY PROB1 12/7/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLOY 11/30/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 EMPLY PROB1/ 11/30/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG .687 PERM 12/7/15
11/30/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG .75 11/30/15
10/13/2015 5/31/2016 STCHG .9375 10/13/15
10/29/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG 1.0 10/29/15
11/2/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG FR .46875 11/2/15
9/28/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO .8125 9/28/15
11/17/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO 1.0 11/17/15
12/11/2015 6/30/2016 STCHG TO 1.0 12/11/15
12/8/2015 2/29/2016 STCHG TO 1.0 12/8/15
8/24/2015 6/30/2016 TR FR SUTTERVILLE/ 8/24/15
12/2/2015 6/30/2016 REA/WVG CHG 12/2/15
11/30/2015 4/30/2016 REA/STCHG .6250 11/30/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 REA/STCHG TO PROB 12/7/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 REA/STCHG PROB LTA A 12/7/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 REA/STCHG 12/7/15
11/9/2015 6/30/2016 REA/STCHG/TR FR NUTR 11/9/15
12/7/2015 6/30/2016 ADMIN LOA PD 12/7/15-6/30/15
7/1/2015 11/10/2015 SEP/PR 11/10/15
7/1/2015 1/1/2016 SEP/RESIGN 1/1/16
10/1/2015 12/6/2015 SEP/RETIRE 12/6/15
7/1/2015 6/14/2016 SEP/RETIRE 6/14/16

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated;

R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City U"if_”wd. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda Item 9.1c

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Approve 2016-2017 Adult Education Calendar

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

T

Division: Human Resource Services

Recommendation: Approve the Adult Education Attendance Calendar 2016-2017

Background/Rationale: The Adult Education 12-Month Calendar for 2016-2017
provides staff, students, parent and community member the opportunity to plan for the
school year.

Financial Considerations: None

LCAP Goal(s): Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools

Documents Attached:
1. Sacramento City Unified School District Adult Education Attendance Calendar 2016-2017

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A

Submitted by: Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resource Officer
Human Resource Services

Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED ScHOOL DISTRICT

2016-17 ADULT EDUCATION CALENDARS
e 177 DAY CONTRACTS at A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center (two) and Charles A. Jones Career

and Education Center (two)
First Semester: 86 Teaching Days (September 6, 2016 — January 27, 2017)

Labor DAy HOIAAY .......coveiiiiieiiicecieie ettt Monday, September 5, 2016
b First Day of Instruction for Fall SEMESLEr .........ccovviiieiiii e Tuesday, September 6, 2016
% Veterans Day HOIIAAY ......ccooviieieiie e Friday, November 11, 2016
c Thanksgiving Holidays..........c.ccoevniniininiiceccee Monday, November 21 — Friday, November 25, 2016
) Winter Holidays ..o Monday, December 19, 2016 — Monday, January 2, 2017
!_U Martin LULher KNG DAY ........ccoeiiiiieiieiiee ettt Monday, January 16, 2017
0 Last Day of Instruction for Fall SEMESIEN..........ccoiiieiiireee et e Friday, January 27, 2017
> Second Semester: 91 Teaching Days (January 30, 2017 — June 15, 2017)
©
a| First Day of Instruction for SPring SEMESLEr.........cccvvveiieiiee it Monday, January 30, 2017
N T pToto] [T I T Y o (o] 1T - TS Monday, February 13, 2017
N Presidents’ Day HOLIAAY .......ccviiiiiiiiiiesiieieiee et Monday, February 20, 2017
D SPHNG HOHAAYS ... Monday, April 10 — Friday, April 14, 2017

Memorial Day HOIIAY ..........cooiiiiiiiiie bbb Monday, May 29, 2017

Last Day of Instruction for SPring SEMESLEN .........ccceirireiiieiee et Thursday, June 15, 2017

e 223 TEACHING DAYS Charles A. Jones Career and Education Center

v SUMMET RECESS 2016 ....veevieiiieiieciie e cie ettt ae e e e e reenee s Friday, July 1 — Friday, July 15, 2016
® FOUrth Of JULY HOBIAAY.......ooeeiieceece et st Monday, July 4, 2016
o) First Day Of INSTIUCTION .....ouoiiiiieiicice bbb Monday, July 18, 2016
C Labor Day HOIAY .........coveiiiiiiieiceiee ettt Monday, September 5, 2016
9 Veterans Day HOlITAY ....cccooviiiiieiiiiic s Friday, November 11, 2016
[} Thanksgiving Holidays..........c.ccovviinniiiniiiees Monday, November 21 — Friday, November 27, 2016
o Winter Holidays .......oooverieienieieci e Monday, December 19, 2016 — Monday, January 2, 2017
> Martin LULher KING DAY .........coceiiiiinieiiee ettt Monday, January 16, 2017
® T pToto] [T T VA o o] 1T F | PSS Monday, February 13, 2017
D Presidents’ Day HOIAaY ....ccveue ittt e Monday, February 20, 2017

SPHNG HOHAAYS ...ttt Monday, April 10 — Friday, April 14, 2017
() MemOrial DAY HOIGAY ..............cocorriveeeereeeeeseesesese e seeseesesesseesee s sseess s ssensensensenss Monday, May 29, 2017
N Last Day OF INSIFUCHION ......cvviiiiiice ittt neenae e Friday, June 30, 2017
N SUMMET RECESS 2017 ...eeviiiieiieiieeiie sttt Monday, July 3 — Friday, July 14, 2017

e 230 TEACHING DAYS at A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center

. SUMMEN RECESS 2016 ....c.eeevviiinieiieirieieceee e Friday, July 1 — Friday, July 15, 2016
© Fourth of JULY HOTIAAY .........oiviiiiiii bbb Monday, July 4, 2016
O First Day Of INSEIUCLION .....coiuiiiiiie ittt sreesae e Monday, July 18, 2016
c Lo To gl YA 0] [T £ SR Monday, September 5, 2016
Q Columbus Day HOIIAY ........cviiiiiiie e e Monday, October 10, 2016
\) Veterans Day HONAAY .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiieieee e e Friday, November 11, 2016
0 Thanksgiving Holidays...........cccoerininiinneeeee Wednesday, November 23 — Friday, November 25, 2016
B Winter Holidays ..., Thursday, December 22, 2016 — Monday, January 2, 2017
© Martin LUther KNG DAY ........cooeiieiieeieiee ettt s Monday, January 16, 2017
&) Presidents’ Day HOLIAAY .......ccveviieiiiiiiiieieee e Monday, February 20, 2017
(@) Cesar Chavez Day HOIIAY.........cocoiiiiiiiee e Friday, March 31, 2017
() SPIING HOHAAYS ..o e Thursday, April 13 — Friday, April 14, 2017
QN Memorial DAy HOHAAY ........cciveeesie ettt ee ettt sttt ss s s essas st st es s s st s s Monday, May 29, 2017

Last DAY OF INSEIUCTION .......oiiieieeiieie ettt st ne e e e e eeseesaenneaneas Friday, June 30, 2017

SUMMEr RECESS 2007 ...ttt bbb Monday, July 3 — Friday, July 14, 2017

Revised 12/9/15
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City U"if_”wd. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda Item 9.1d

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Approve Minutes of the November 19, 2015, Board of Education Meeting

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

OO

Division: Superintendent’s Office

Recommendation: Approve Minutes of the November 19, 2015, Board of Education
Meeting.

Background/Rationale: None

Financial Considerations: None

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Engagement

Documents Attached:
1. Minutes of the November 19, 2015, Board of Education Regular Meeting

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A
Submitted by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
Approved by: N/A
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Sacramento City Unified School District

Surmenty | L UUHLDE BOARD OF EDUCATION

city unified | Children

School District| '] 'St M E ET I N G AN D WO R KS H O P

Board of Education Members Thursday, November 19, 2015

Darrel Woo, President (Trustee Area 6)
Christina Pritchett, Vice President (Trustee Area 3)

4:30 p.m. Closed Session

Jay Hansen, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 1) 6:30 p.m. Open Session
Ellen Cochrane, (Trustee Area 2)
Gustavo Arroyo, (Trustee Area 4) Serna Center

Diana Rodriguez, (Trustee Area 5)
Jessie Ryan, (Trustee Area 7)

Community Conference Rooms

Elizabeth Barry, Student Member 5735 47™ Avenue

1.0

2.0

3.0

Sacramento, CA 95824

MINUTES

2015/16-10
OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 3:39 p.m. by President Woo, and roll was taken.

Members Present:

President Woo

Vice President Christina Pritchett
Ellen Cochrane

Diana Rodriguez (waiting upstairs)
Jessie Ryan

Members Absent:
Second Vice President Hansen (arrived at 3:45 p.m.)
Gustavo Arroyo (arrived at 3:45 p.m.)

A quorum was reached.

ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN
CLOSED SESSION

No Public Comment was requested on Closed Session items, and the Board retired to Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION

While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also recognizes the
legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye. Closed session meetings are specifically
defined and limited in scope. They primarily involve personnel issues, pending litigation, labor negotiations, and real
property matters.

(Board Minutes, November 19, 2015) 1



4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

3.1  Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation:

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code
section 54956.9

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code section 54956.9

3.2  Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining CSA, SCTA, SEIU,
Teamsters, UPE, Unrepresented Management

3.3  Government Code 54957 — Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment

CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The meeting was called back to order at 7:15 p.m. by President Woo.

Members Present:

President Darrel Woo

Vice President Christina Pritchett
Second Vice President Jay Hansen
Gustavo Arroyo

Ellen Cochrane

Diana Rodriguez

Jessie Ryan

Student Member Elizabeth Barry

Members Absent: none

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the C. K. McClatchy Girls’ Golf Team, winners of the 2015 Sac-
Joaquin Girls” Golf Section title. Certificates of Appreciation were presented by Second Vice President
Jay Hansen.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

Counsel Jerry Behrens announced that Resolution No. 2015/16-B, regarding a certificated employee of

intention to dismiss and statement of charge and suspension without pay, was approved by a
unanimous vote of all seven Board members.

AGENDA ADOPTION
President Woo asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. A motion was made to approve by Vice

President Pritchett and seconded by Member Ryan. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the
agenda.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the

(Board Minutes, November 19, 2015) 2



Board. Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance. Speakers may be called in the order that requests are
received, or grouped by subject area. We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes
per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard. By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on
items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future
discussion.

Public Comment:

Brian Nelson spoke regarding C. K. McClatchy boosters’ club, Restore the Roar. Mr. Nelson asked the
Board for help with some needs of the campus and gave the Board some printed information.

Jim Coombs spoke regarding C. K. McClatchy boosters’ club, Restore the Roar.

Denis Ishisake spoke regarding C. K. McClatchy boosters’ club, Restore the Roar.

Lashanya Breazell gave an update on the Black Parallel School Board. Member Ryan spoke to say she
wanted to recognize the instrumental leadership role of the organization in forming and negotiating our
school discipline policy. She shared that she, along with other stakeholders, are working in close
collaboration with them to develop administrative regulations that they believe will reduce the number
of disproportionate suspensions and expulsions for students of color in the District.

Edwin Figueroa, parent of a student at H. W. Harkness Elementary School, is concerned because he
was not contacted when his son was injured at school. He subsequently has not been able to obtain any
answers from the school. He provided two letters to Board President Woo. Member Rodriguez said
this causes her great concern, and she apologized on behalf of the District. She asked Chief Human
Resources Officer Cancy McArn to speak with him before he leaves so she can get Mr. Figueroa’s
information which she will also provide to Member Rodriguez. Ms. McArn will be looking into the
matter in more detail. Member Rodriguez gave Mr. Figueroa her contact information.

David Fisher announced that sadly teacher Lydia Cruz passed away yesterday. He had worked with
her for almost 20 years at C. B. Wire Elementary School. They were two of the founding teachers of the
Parent Teacher Home Visit Project, and she was a great advocate for her community and her students.
He then spoke about teacher recruitment and retention, which he said is of central concern to District
teachers and parents.

Karen Swett, of Making Cents Work, pointed out that the District organizational chart posted on the
web site is not up to date. Member Ryan said that we can correct this, and thanked Ms. Swett for
bringing this to our attention.

Victoria Camargo requested that calories be listed on the school lunch menus. Member Ryan said that
this seems absolutely reasonable, and we will look into this. She thanked Ms. Camargo for bringing the
suggestion to the Board.

Angie Sutherland, Chair of Community Advisory Committee (CAC), thanked all who came to their
strategic plan presentation at their meeting on Tuesday night. They reported on feedback they received
from CAC regarding the strategic plan. They noticed that students with disabilities are not referenced
as a group in the plan. They feel character development needs to return to our school sites as a focus
and more emphasis is needed on transition skills for youth that are leaving high school and moving on
to careers or college. Lastly, they feel that Special Education students are not being included in the
Single Plans for Student Achievement.

Angel Garcia, with the Community Advisory Committee, gave more feedback on focus areas for the
strategic plan. These included teacher training, Common Core, state standard teacher training, and to
move away from the train the trainer model. They also want technology resources to be innovative,
expanded, and equitable, and for students with disabilities to have access to standards based
curriculums and standard day classes. They also have concerns with career readiness and career
development skills. They feel these need to be expanded. They have concerns that plans are developed
at school sites and within school site councils without having a students with disabilities voice. They
also feel more needs to be done in inclusivity.

Adrian Moreno, a student at California Middle School, spoke about concerns he has with bullying at his
school, and gave suggestions to resolve the problem.
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Grace Trujillo spoke on the importance of training regarding bullying.

Member Ryan thanked Adrian Moreno for his statements. She spoke of an effort she launched last year
around this time called “No Child Eats Alone Day”’ as part of a statewide non-profit called “Beyond
Differences™. It was piloted at a middle school. She told Adrian Moreno that his suggestion to start a
club at his school that would teach students about students with disabilities is phenomenal. Beyond
Differences has a tool kit for such a club, and this year she has talked to the District about expanding
No Child Eats Alone Day to all middle schools. She would like to work with him to put a Beyond
Differences club at the school sites.

Darlene Anderson spoke on the importance of parent involvement.

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion. The Superintendent or a Board
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately.

8.1 Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session:

8.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other
Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Change Notices and Notices of Completion
(Gerardo Castillo, CPA)

8.1b  Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn)

8.1c  Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks, and Electronic
Transfers Issued for the Period of October 2015
(Gerardo Castillo, CPA)

8.1d  Approve Board of Education Annual Organizational Meeting Date — December 10,
2015 (General Counsel)

8.1le  Approve State of California Department of General Services Application for Donation of
Computer Equipment for Sutter Middle School (Olga Simms)

8.1f  Approve Resolution No. 2860: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends (José L. Banda)

8.1g Approve Minutes of the October 15, 2015, Board of Education Meeting
(José L. Banda)

Public Comment:

Karen Swett noted that on the Consent Agenda the Board is approving an expenditure of 2.8 million
dollars for after school programs. She said this is made up of state and federal pots of money, identified in
an Escape period 4 summary report, with a current total amount posted of 11 million dollars. She said
there is probably a logical explanation for the 8 million dollar difference, maybe due to carry over funds.
She said the agenda item does not identify the resources with clarity. Her concern is the current Local
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) after school action steps are identified on four pages (that she could
find) and the amount to be expended is confusing. She said the total of those four action steps is 46
million. She said the LCAP does not clearly identify the resource. Also the Standardized Accounting Code
Structure (SACS) expenditure reports show that all spending is at six different departments at the Serna.
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Perhaps it should be clear in the LCAP how each of these individual departments is supporting a specific
LCAP goal.

President Woo asked for a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. A motion was made to approve by
Vice President Pritchett and seconded by Member Ryan. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the
agenda.

9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES

9.1  Approve Resolution No. 2861: Renewal of the Charter for Capitol Collegiate Academy Action
(Jack Kraemer)

Charter Oversight Coordinator Jack Kraemer gave the presentation on behalf of the District’s
charter review team of the findings and recommendations for the renewal petition of Capitol
Collegiate Academy. Principal Fiorelli and counsel from Lozano Smith joined him. The
presentation included an overview of the school, a listing of members of the District charter
review team, the minimum standard for charter renewal, criteria to deny a charter renewal, and
staff’s findings and recommendations.

Public Comment:
Jennifer Elam gave her time to Cristin Fiorelli.
Cristin Fiorelli, Principal of Capitol Collegiate Academy, spoke about achievements at the school.

Board Member Comment:

Member Cochrane asked what the comparison schools were in the District. Mr. Kraemer said that the
comparison schools were schools the students would have attended if Capitol Collegiate were not there, as
well as other charter schools within the Districts. Member Cochrane asked for the names. Mr. Kraemer
gave the following: Edward Kemble Elementary, Ethel 1. Baker Elementary, John Sloat Elementary, John
Still K-8, Pacific Elementary, Parkway Elementary, and Hollywood Park Elementary. There were also
comparisons with our Title | schools. Member Cochrane said that she is not a charter advocate, and feels
that any kind of independent charter undermines the public school system. She feels there is a model at this
charter that we need to adopt. In most of the classrooms they have two or more teachers or assistant
teachers. This is very effective, especially for lower income, less privileged students who live in the south
side of Sacramento. Therefore she will abstain. She asked Ms. Fiorelli to please come to public education.

Member Rodriguez said that she feels this school is one that works well for children who are often
overlooked. She is more compelled to advocate for the school in these cases. She therefore moved to
approve Resolution No. 2861.

President Woo asked for a second. The motion was seconded by Vice President Pritchett. The motion
passed with six ayes and Member Cochrane abstaining.

9.2  Approve Local Control and Accountability Plan Parent Advisory Committee Selection Action
(Dr. Al Rogers)

Chief Strategy Office Al Rogers began by reviewing the Local Control Accountability Plan
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(LCAP) selection and the process that leads up to it. He went over requirements of establishing
an advisory committee using a democratic process. He explained that each Board member and
the Superintendent will select and appoint two committee members from the pool of applicants.
LCAP/SPSA Coordinator Cathy Morrison then spoke about the committee’s role and scope, the
application process and applicants. Dr. Rogers then went over the timeline and next steps. He
then turned the appointment process over to President Woo. President Woo asked for public
comment first.

Public Comment:

Camica Edwards, a parent of one student at John F. Kennedy High School and one alumnus, spoke about the
LCAP advisory committee and her application. Member Cochrane thanked Ms. Edwards for her time and
commitment.

Karen Swett, of Making Cents Work, has a problem with the timeline given. She noted that the District
Advisory Council is reporting 14 million while the LCAP is not reporting 251.7 million. She feels this does
not make sense.

Bob Hammes spoke on some issues with the selection process of LCAP advisory committee members. He
noted the number of things that need to be done in the Fall and Winter; however by the time the committee
gets together, the Fall items can come off the list. He therefore asked the Board to consider changing the
election process to the Spring for the following year so that the LCAP advisory committee can hit the ground
running in September. He also asked the Board to consider having members serve a staggered time; he feels
one year is not enough time for members to serve. He suggests three year terms.

Darlene Anderson said she feels the selection process is not democratic and is a way of eliminating the voice
of the community. She feels there are few in the African American community that have been involved in
overseeing the public use of funds.

Terrence Gladney felt that, as an LCAP committee member, they were given a picture that was already
drawn and then asked to give input. This is not something that he wants to be a part of again. He said we
pay a lot of consultants, but when we engage parents who volunteer their time, they are not allowed to give
input as they see fit. He felt the meetings were staff driven so they could not consult, as parents, and were
led by those they were supposed to be improving. This is not true empowerment. He just went to a Western
Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) meeting at John F. Kennedy High School. The administrators
left the room so WASC could have an honest conversation with the parents. He would like to see that
replicated in the LCAP process. Regarding the timeline, the calendar is already set which says to him that a
part of participant voice has already been muted. He also noticed that the District is relying heavily on the
Parent Volunteer (PV) process. He challenged the Board and the parents they select to change the
narrative, and he offered himself as a resource.

Board Member Comment:
President Woo asked each Board member to identify their two appointments to the LCAP committee. The
appointments are as follows:

Member Ryan: Angel Garcia and Jason Weiner

Member Rodriguez commented before announcing her appointments. She agrees with Mr. Gladney that the
committee should be parent-led and believes that staff’s role is to provide information. She selects
appointees with the understanding that they will be role models and leaders, they will take their role
seriously, and that they will constantly communicate with her. She heard last year that some were told not to
communicate with their Board members; she hopes that she does not hear that again this year.

Member Rodriguez: Frank DeYoung and Phoua Lee
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Member Cochrane: Carl Pinkston and Dr. Pia Wong

Member Hansen: Ray Green and Kate Woolley-Van Buren
Member Arroyo: Jonathan Tran and Edward Camargo

Vice President Pritchett: Veronica Guzman and Gabriela Cruz
President Woo: Camica Edwards and Christina Martinez
Superintendent Banda: Roy Alexander and Juanita Saldana

President Woo asked Dr. Rogers to reach out to the new committee members immediately.

Member Rodriguez added that last year committee members asked for data information which they did not
receive as it was out of the scope. She said to please know that if any committee member asked for
information, it should be provided.

Member Arroyo asked the Superintendent’s staff and/or the committee itself to adjust the calendar as they
move forward so that selection is done by end of Spring. The rationale is that the budget is already allocated
by the time the committee starts to meet. Even though the committee is in an advisory capacity, it would be
better to have their input before the budget is finalized.

Member Ryan thanked the staff for hearing the word ““feedback’. The community felt that the message was
not communicated that we were going to be allowing our LCAP advisory committee to help inform the
strategic plan. But after hearing that feedback, the District re-opened the application process which
generated several additional strong candidates. She also congratulated all who were appointed, and to
those that were not, she said this was a very difficult applicant pool with many wonderful and dedicated
parents looking to serve. She hopes that whether or not a formal appointment was made that they will
continue to be engaged in the process.

9.3 Monthly Facilities Update (Cathy Allen) Information

Chief Operations Officer Cathy Allen said tonight they bring what has been happening in
the planning process for the first core academic renovation project. This first project is at
C. K. McClatchy High School. She introduced the presenter from Rainforth Grau
Architects. They shared information about the visual and performing arts program that
they have been working with staff on for quite some time. Ms. Allen went over a couple of
slides and then turned the presentation over to Principal Peter Lambert who introduced
staff and those from Rainforth Grau Architects that spoke on the importance of the arts in
education and presented details of the project. Ms. Allen added that they have applied
under Prop 39, the Clean Energy Jobs Act, for repairs to the pool pump and boiler. They
have a deferred maintenance project that they will piggy back on to take care of some of
the roofing and a power upgrade for the entire site. The power upgrade will be done first;
it is estimated that will start in July, and the core academic renovation, Prop 39 scope, and
deferred maintenance scope will all start approximately December of 2016. The core
academic renovation is 13.2 million, the Prop 39 funds we hope to get is for 100 thousand,
and the deferred maintenance is for 1.4 million. So the total estimated construction cost is
just over 15 million dollars. This was the first of the core academic presentations; Kit
Carson Middle School and West Campus High School will be presented at future Board
meetings.

(Board Minutes, November 19, 2015) 7



Public Comment:

Karen Swett, from Making Cents Work, said that as a retired C. K. McClatchy High School teacher she is
happy about this renovation. However she feels the Board should be looking at actuals and not just titles of
pots of money. She brought expenditure reports of the budgets managed by the Facilities Department and
provided them to the Board. She spoke about these budgets.

Bob Hammes, of Making Cents Work, addressed class size reduction and noted that it has never been
included in any Facilities reports presented to the Board. He asked that the Board require the Facilities
Department to include in their evaluations of sites to include what sort of studies or analysis is being done to
answer how the District is going to meet class size reduction with the existing structures. He would like to
see public reports on how the District is addressing this concern.

Board Member Comment:

Member Rodriguez noted that she has asked several times about getting a needed pool pump at Luther
Burbank High School. She asked Ms. Allen about this. Ms. Allen said that it has been included in a Prop 39
application. She is not sure if it is part of year two or three, but she will check. Member Rodriguez said that
she was just at the school and looked at the pool, and they definitely need help with the pool. She also said
congratulations to C. K. McClatchy High School as the planned renovation looks beautiful. However she
hears too often that there are two schools going on there, the HISP program and then everyone else. She
asked if there was any thought of integrating HISP and some of the classes along with this discussion.

Mr. Lambert said yes, the Visual and Performing Arts program (VAPA) will serve all students at the high
school. They are looking forward to every student, as a graduation requirement, taking an arts class. Also,
quite often the community is served with the school’s facilities by outside groups. Therefore they feel it will
be a community hub.

Member Hansen said he wanted to recognize the team as he has been watching this development for some
time now. It has been a teacher-led program, and he thinks it is very exciting. His only concern is that the
school is already at capacity and this will make the school even more desirable. He noted the difficulty of
maintaining a school that is beautiful and ninety years old. He looks forward to seeing the work move along.

9.4  Adopting School Attendance Area for McKinley Village at Theodore Judah Conference/Action
Elementary School (Mary Hardin Young and Jim Dobson)

Area Assistant Superintendent Mary Hardin Young began the presentation by
stating that she and Facilities Director Jim Dobson are bringing forward staff’s
recommendation to adopt the school attendance area for McKinley Village at
Theodore Judah Elementary School. She gave some brief background information.
Mr. Dobson then went over goals, the current attendance area, the McKinley
Village area and location, and proposed attendance area. Ms. Hardin Young then
recommended that the Board identify Theodore Judah Elementary School as the
school that elementary students would be attending from McKinley Village. She
said they would like to publish the new attendance area map as quickly as possible
and add McKinley Village addresses to the District school locator. Folders were
provided to the Board that contain additional and more detailed maps as well as a
letter that was sent to the District as a response to some safety concerns from the
city traffic engineer.

Public Comment:

(Board Minutes, November 19, 2015) 8



Phil Angelides and Megan Norris, with Encore McKinley Village, LLC, said that they hope the Board adopts
the staff recommendation tonight. They said it has been a long journey which started in mid-2013 at the
Twin Rivers school Board, this school Board, and at the County Board of Education. He said that this is a
logical recommendation for a number of reasons. Theodore Judah Elementary is the closest school to
McKinley Village and, as can be shown in the materials provided, there are safe and well designed routes for
children to get there by bicycle and walking. The other alternative schools are much further away with much
more difficult and unsafe conditions for traversing. He will let the community speak for itself and said they
have enjoyed the opportunity to get to work with the community and to participate with the staff and the
community on making sure that Theodore Judah Elementary has a capacity expansion, not just for the kids at
McKinley Village, but for other children as well. Mr. Angelides also noted that this was done in a way that
was not with a portable facility but with an architecturally significant facility consistent with the existing
facility. This recommendation is consistent with all major Board policies about continuous boundaries, safe
routes to schools, and neighborhood schools being accessible to children. It makes sense in terms of the
neighborhood as there is not a lot of traffic going through the neighborhood to take kids to other schools
farther away. And because of the short distance kids can walk or bike to school. It is also consistent with
the Board and Superintendent’s goal to reduce declining enrollment by offering people that want to move
into the city or get a bigger home in the city the ability to access neighborhood schools.

Rob Ferrara, Parent Teacher Association (PTA) President for Theodore Judah Elementary School, stated
that the PTA Board is in strong support of having future students from McKinley Village attend their school.
He said the development is part of the East Sacramento neighborhood and therefore the kids should attend a
school that is within biking and walking distance to their homes. If the McKinley Village elementary
students were designated for any other school, they would be traveling for up to roughly 2.2 miles. This has
the potential to increase traffic for the neighborhood. This also creates a disjointed community due to the
distance they have to travel.

Jordan Traverso, a parent at Theodore Judah Elementary School, said she is also in favor of the staff
recommendation. She feels the school is ready to accept the children of McKinley Village as the school is
growing and improving and has an exceptional and dedicated faculty as well as a robust PTA. She lives
near McKinley Village, and the children will be friends with her children. They will be neighborhood
children, and they should go to the neighborhood school. She also feels having students attend the closer
school is safer and will create less pass-through traffic than if they were assigned elsewhere.

Ron Vrilakas is a parent and community member of Theodore Judah Elementary School and architect of the
new building that will be underway soon at the school; it was Board approved about five months ago. He
reported that things are going well with that project. However he is present tonight to support the staff
report that the new neighborhood that is going to join the existing neighborhood all be together at the one
campus of Theodore Judah Elementary School. The project about to get underway will add nine classrooms
to the campus for a six classroom gain.

Board Member Comment:

Member Cochrane said she feels the project is what is best for the children and so will approve it. However,
she has concerns with 40" Street coming into Elvas Avenue and C Street. She would like to look and see if
more can be done to make it safer for the children to cross at this crossing. A senior engineer came forward
to answer Member Cochrane’s questions. Member Cochrane said that Elvas Avenue is actually a de facto
freeway. On any given day the slow person is the one not going 45 — 50 miles an hour. The intersection that
will come out of McKinley Village, McKinley Village Way, will go straight into Elvas Avenue. If you are a
child going to Theodore Judah Elementary School, you will take a slight right and go down 40" Street. She
said thank you for some concerns she had that were answered. One was regarding a bike lane on 40™ Street.
She understands that there is not space, technically, to add this. So she understands that this will probably
not happen, but she feels this is a potentially dangerous ride. If the street cannot be stripped, she asked that
a pole be put up alerting drivers that bike riders are frequently on the street. She is also concerned about the
lighting at 40" Street. The city has assured her that the lighting will be adequate, but she still, because Elvas
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Avenue is such a dangerous street, wants to make sure that the crossing coming from McKinley Way is going
to be safe enough for the children to not be in danger when they cross the street. The city has put a double
cross walk which adheres to rules and regulations, and she understands the explanation for having it, but
Member Cochrane said that it is problematic when you have a double stop crosswalk as cars will come
towards the first crossing, stop, and then proceed. However there is no second stop at the second crosswalk.
On a normal street, this would be good enough; however you must remember that cars are coming around
Elvas Avenue very fast. You have school children walking across the crosswalk and potentially could have
someone not coming to a stop if a child is in the second crosswalk. Member Cochrane pointed out, for the
record, that this is not a good situation. Another concern she has is with a statement from Mr. Hector
Barron of the City of Sacramento, Department of Public Works Transportation Division. He stated that
there is no advance pedestrian or school crossing; it is a stop controlled intersection and as such does not
warrant advance warning for pedestrian and school crossings. The statement goes on to say that
additionally, these warning treatments are not permitted by the California Vehicle Code, Section 21368.
Member Cochrane asked about this Code and for him to explain why it is not possible to actually put up a
school crossing warning. David Edrosolan with the City of Sacramento, Department of Public Works
answered. He said that basically the vehicle code states that one cannot stripe specifically for schools, as in
changing the crosswalks from white color to yellow for example, unless the crosswalk is within 600 feet of
the school. Member Cochrane asked about signage. Mr. Edrosolan said that this is for signage and
stripping. Member Cochrane said that we have to adhere to the rules; they have their set of rules, and she
understands that. There might be possibilities, however, that they could look at for providing more safety.
She would appreciate it if staff would look into this more thoroughly. She does not believe this crossing is as
safe as it can be. She does not believe that it has proper signage for Elvas Avenue and C Street. She does
know that cars go 50 plus miles an hour even though it is zoned for 35 miles an hour, and believes that this is
a potential disaster. We should do everything we can to make sure a disaster does not happen; if that means
additional signage that comes close to but does not violate the Code, then she thinks we should do it. She
wants staff to look into this, hopes that we can do it, and that the City will assist. Whatever we find that will
increase the safety of the children going to 40™ Street across C Street and Elvas Avenue that is not paid for
by the City or the District should be paid by the developer.

President Woo moved the Item from Conference to Action. It was seconded by Member Arroyo.

Member Ryan said that we have had an intense level of scrutiny on this process with an eye toward safety for
our students. She had previously reached out for independent recommendations with city staff and went
through the list of questions and concerns that she was hearing from her fellow colleagues. She feels like
those concerns had been more than sufficiently met. Member Ryan agrees that we always have to work hard
to ensure that our students have safe, walkable, bikeable paths to school, but she does want to recognize that
some schools in her area do not even have a speed bump or crosswalks in front. She earlier supported the 6
million dollar expansion of Theodore Judah Elementary School for a permanent infrastructure there, and is
very proud to do that, but she also wants to ensure that we have equitable safety standards for all schools.

Member Rodriguez said her comments echo Member Ryan’s comments. She noted that two or three years
ago the same argument was being had about the distance between schools, yet the Board voted to close
schools. At one particular school, Washington Elementary School, the children would be either routed to
William Land Elementary School or Theodore Judah Elementary School. The distance from Washington
Elementary School to William Land Elementary School is 1.9 miles, and we are saying the distance of 2.2
miles is too far for children to safely travel to school. She wants to make sure that we are hearing ourselves
and asks: why is it okay at one site, but not okay at another? We were re-routing children to cross major
streets in order to get to the next closest school. She asked that there be discussion about equity and access
in everything we do. She said if we do not get to that mind-set, Sacramento, as a whole, will never get up to
the next level. A beautiful arena is going in downtown, and yet the surrounding area still needs a lot of help.
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Member Rodriguez then asked about the ordinance stating we cannot do specialized striping. She said we
did get specialized striping on 20™ and K Streets and asked why it was possible to have that there but not at
the school site. Mr. Edrosolan answered that 20" and K is a special intersection that the city worked with
the business owners there to get. They wanted special pavement treatment for which they paid. They also
maintain it. The city worked with the business association and it was brought to council, reviewed, and
implemented. He said the city is currently monitoring it in case they run into problems. If they do run into
problems, they will have it removed at the business owners’ expense. Member Rodriguez again brought up
equity, and when it comes to the safety of children there should be more than special treatment. She asked
why they were able to get around the law in the case of the business owners. Mr. Edrosolan said that the
intersection being discussed tonight meets all the standards and is safe. He said it is an all-way stop in all
three directions, has a twelve foot crossing on all three sides, and there is a median where a pedestrian can
walk half way and wait within the 10 foot median to then go on to the other side. He said that is a safety
upgrade. Additionally, on C Street there are pavement legends as well as signs that say ““stop ahead”. The
project also implemented stop signs at two other locations on 36™ and 40™ Street as well as San Antonio Way
and 36" Way. This was done in order to make it safer for the kids to walk to the school.

Member Cochrane noted that the crossings/pavement markings at 20" and K are special, that the locals are
paying for it, and this was allowed by the city. She understands that this crosswalk is state of the art,
everything has been done, all has been implemented, and it is totally up to code. She then asked if the city
can or cannot put a marking on asphalt as a special case as was done on 20" and K. Mr. Edrosolan said
that there are certain guidelines that the city follows; it just depends on what is being put in. They follow the
Manuel of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) which outlines what can and cannot be put in. Itis
specific in what cannot be put in, but if the situation is special, they have to treat it a certain way. Member
Cochrane asked if the guidelines for the 40™ Street crossing allow markings on the asphalt for enhanced
safety or not. Mr. Edrosolan asked what the markings would be. Member Cochrane said, as she discussed,
when approaching the school crossing within at least 500 to 700 feet, she is asking for there to be more
safety for the school children that are crossing. She understands that he has quoted California Vehicle
Code, but then Member Rodriguez asked about special dispensation that is on 20™ and K, so her questions is,
if they had special dispensation then why cannot this area as well. Mr. Edrosolan said that they are always
monitoring safety issues. Member Cochrane interjected that this was not her question. Mr. Edrosolan said
he is not clear on what is being requested; he thinks she is requesting pavement legends and said that they
have pavement legends out there that will say “stop ahead” with warning signs saying ““stop ahead. He
said that this is the typical standard. Member Cochrane asked how many feet ahead of the crosswalk they
are. Mr. Edrosolan answered that he believes they are 150 feet ahead. Member Cochrane asked to verify
that they do not say ““school crossing’ or *““children crossing”. Mr. Edrosolan said that is correct. Member
Cochrane said that, in her opinion, if there are children crossing and people driving 50 miles an hour, it is a
wise and prudent thing to announce that you will be coming upon children going through this crosswalk.
Therefore, she asked, if you can have a special dispensation at 20" and K to put rainbow marks, why cannot
““school crossing™ be added to the paint on the asphalt ahead of the crosswalk? She asked if this is illegal,
and stated that it is okay if he does not know. Mr. Edrosolan said that it is inconsistent with the vehicle code.
Member Cochrane noted that it appears 20" and K Street is also inconsistent. Mr. Edrosolan said regarding
20" and K they followed what is in the MUTCD; there is nothing that restricted them. If they brought it to
council, then it was approved. Member Cochrane said that, for the record, she does not feel that she has a
clear answer per vehicle code, 20™ and K Street versus Elvas Avenue and C Street. She would like staff to
please look into this. She agrees completely with Members Ryan and Rodriguez. She noted the following
streets: Broadway, Franklin, Stockton, Bradshaw, C Street, Elvas Avenue, and said that all of the children
that cross all these streets are equally valuable. She said we are lucky because this developer did put in a
respectful crossing. However, she wants more, and she wants more safe crossings at her colleagues’ school
sites as well. She personally thanked Phil Angelides for donating $175,000 to make the new building
possible at Theodore Judah Elementary School.
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President Woo asked for a vote on the prior motion to move the Item from Conference to Action. The motion
was approved unanimously. He asked for a motion to approve. Vice President Pritchett moved to approve
the Item and Member Arroyo seconded. The Item was approved unanimously.

9.5  Adopting School Attendance Area for Washington Elementary School Action
(Tu Moua and Jim Dobson)

The presentation was begun by Assistant Superintendent Tu Moua. As way of background, she
explained how the Board voted on August 6, 2015, to reopen the school for the 2016-2017
school year. She also went over goals regarding advance notification and keeping siblings
together. Director Jim Dobson then shared attendance areas: current, former, and proposed.
Ms. Moua said their recommendation is to adopt a new attendance area, publish the new
attendance area map, and update addresses in the District school locator.

Public Comment:

Corrie Buckmaster Celesti, Principal of Theodore Judah Elementary School, noted that it has come to their
attention tonight that there is thought of including a part of the existing Theodore Judah Elementary School
boundary into the proposal for the new Washington Elementary School boundary which is different than
their community’s understanding of the boundary proposal going forward tonight. They are also unaware of
any analysis that has been done to support such a proposal, and they are unaware of any community
engagement opportunities regarding this matter. If this is the case, they asked that this agenda item be
pulled so that analysis can be done and the community engaged. Absent this, they support a vote that would
result in the re-establishment of the original boundaries.

Board Member Comment:

Member Rodriguez commented that she did not get the materials on this Item. Superintendent Banda said
that no one did; originally this Item was going to be pulled. Member Rodriguez asked if there was any
analysis done. Ms. Moua said that the proposed recommendation is coming forward from a meeting with the
two trustees whose areas represent the two schools involved, the Assistant Superintendents over those
schools, and the Facilities Department. Member Rodriguez said she would feel much more comfortable
making a decision after proper analysis has been done.

Vice President Pritchett asked about analysis. Ms. Moua said that a community engagement forum was not
done. Vice President Pritchett asked how many families will be affected. Mr. Dobson went over map
boundaries and explained that there are two students affected in one area and 22 students in another. Vice
President Pritchett said that it is her understanding that by holding this Item back, Open Enrollment will be
affected. Ms. Moua said that one of our goals is to get the information out so that our families have the
opportunity to make decisions before Open Enrollment. Vice President Pritchett asked if students currently
attending Theodore Judah Elementary School, which would be affected by the boundary change, still have
the option to be grandfathered in if they want to stay. Ms. Moua said that is correct; the intention is to
extend that to current students and their siblings.

Second Vice President Hansen said that they have talked to people, and so this was not done in a vacuum.
He has talked to people within his area, and there was concern in the community about students crossing the
railroad tracks. Regarding re-establishing the Washington Elementary School boundaries, any student that
is in the current attendance area of William Land Elementary or Theodore Judah Elementary schools will be
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grandfathered in, as well as siblings. Also, Open Enrollment has not been established yet because we have
to wait until the boundary is set for Washington Elementary School. Therefore this is an important measure
on which to move forward. He said we will certainly make sure that clear outreach is done to any of the
affected families so that they will know their rights. Second Vice President Hansen asked for the Board’s
support in moving this along.

Member Cochrane said that she was in the meeting that discussed these boundaries. At that time the number
of affected families was estimated to be from 15 to 18. She thought this was a good idea, and she thinks it is
a good idea to not cross students over the railroad tracks. After the meeting it was pointed out to her that
when we talk about boundaries, we engage the community, and they are fully involved in the decision making
process. This is the piece that was missing; we did not fully do that. She agrees with Second Vice President
Hansen. She feels it is a safety issue to go across railroad tracks. She thinks one of the reasons the process
was not followed was because of enroliment; that there was concern that we would not be able to take
enrollments on time. Ms. Moua said we would like to give our families as much notification as possible.
Member Cochrane went on to say that it is her understanding that if we bring this forward to a vote tonight
that we will give assurances that due process is given to those parents and the Theodore Judah Elementary
School community, including administration, that the Parent Teacher Group (PTG), the entire school
population, and residents can weigh in. This will be tricky; if there is a ground swell of disagreement, how
will we handle that? Perhaps this is a President Woo question. Member Cochrane went on to say she
agrees that we need to make this change, but we have to have due process.

Second Vice President Hansen said that if there is a ground swell then the Board member who represents
that area will have to work through that with the community. He said he has talked to a lot of folks in the
area of the Washington Elementary School community and, because we are grandfathering in the families,
everyone there is protected. This is the key point he heard, i.e., that we were not asking students to move.

Member Cochrane said she agrees 100%; she is concerned about the key element of doing due process. She
asked President Woo if we have put “the cart before the horse” by saying we vote that this is a good idea.
What if there is a ground swell afterward; how would we deal with that as a Board?

President Woo said that he thinks we can bring the issue back; we would follow the recommendation of the
Board member that is over the area that the school falls under. If Second Vice President Hansen feels it is
necessary to bring it back, then we will bring it back.

Member Cochrane said that she looks forward to the public comments to see if this is satisfactory.

Gabe Ross, Chief of Communications, announced that there is one additional public comment:

Rob Ferrera said that the Theodore Judah Elementary School community had not heard about this until
today. They would love to be part of the process. Their school is passionate about being involved in as
many processes as possible, and this affects their school. They think it is great that there are mechanisms in
place that protect families. Knowing that there is a process that needs to be followed, however, makes them
encourage its use.

Member Cochrane said she wants to know if we be able to return to the community to obtain the input that is
required by school board policy if we pass this.

Second Vice President Hansen said that he would say that any policy passed can be revisited at any future
point in time by any Board member.
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Member Cochrane asked Second Vice President Hansen if he were willing to engage the community.

Second Vice President Hansen said that he engages in community every single day. He noted that Theodore
Judah Elementary School is in Member Cochrane’s area, and he wishes that the Principal had reached out
to him before making comments this evening. He feels he represents his constituents very well, and he thinks
he understands what folks know what is important in the community. The reopening of Washington
Elementary School is something that they have been working on for two years. He is quite accessible and
always willing to revisit something if he thinks that he has made an error. He also feels we have done a very
fair process by allowing everyone to stay at the school of choice. Were we supposed to go through a whole
process of contacting all the people affected by the re-established boundaries? He does not know; all the
Board is doing the best they can, and he hopes this will be satisfactory. If it is not and there is a ground
swell of people in his area that come to him, he will be happy to revisit this.

Member Cochrane said that she appreciates his comments. She is trying to get clarity around this important
boundary issue. Member Cochrane asked if we can separate out the two blocks of land. This would put the
capitol mall area into the Washington district and not move the Theodore Judah Elementary School
boundary at this time.

Second Vice President Hansen said that if we want to reopen the whole boundaries of Theodore Judah
Elementary School we can do that. He sees that it is underneath the Highway 50 freeway and way down in
Curtis Park, so we are talking about mileage and area. This opens another whole can of worms, and who
knows how those boundaries were drawn many years ago? Some do not make much sense to him.

Member Cochrane thanked Second Vice President Hansen for his point of view and said she is in agreement
with him. What she is trying to ensure is that we do not disengage a part of the population from having a
discussion on this issue. She stated that we did make an error in not reaching out to Theodore Judah
Elementary School; the clarity she is trying to get is can we have this discussion and revisit this if necessary.
If the answer is yes, then let us move the motion. If it is not yes, then perhaps we can have a friendly
amendment to separate the two parcels of land. Respectfully and in appreciation of your seeing the railroad
track there, Member Cochrane sais she is all for it, but we also have to engage the community. Member
Cochrane asked if we can do this.

President Woo asked what Member Cochrane is suggesting to bifurcate.

Member Cochrane said she does not want to do this, but if we cannot come to a conclusion any other way,
she suggests separating the Capitol Mall area that is suggested to go to Washington Elementary School and
then the lower portion next to 16" Street that is part of Theodore Judah Elementary School’s area would stay
as is. However, she would like to pass the amendment with the guarantee that the community of Theodore
Judah Elementary School will have due process, and we can revisit this if need be.

Second Vice President Hansen said he is happy to commit to that.

Member Rodriguez said that we did not get the benefit of seeing this beforehand. She is not comfortable to
move in any direction, but after hearing the discussion so far, she asked Second Vice President Hansen if he
would be willing to accept an amendment to the boundary change that would affect two students tonight and
at the next Board meeting continue the Item. Counsel Jerry Behrens interjected that we have a Brown Act
issue with this as this is the issue before the Board. Member Rodriguez then suggested another amendment.
Discussion was had on boundary details. Member Rodriguez noted that this is to be a destination school, so
students will come from outside of the boundaries also.
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Member Arroyo said that as he reads the driving governance of this, the Board is directed to periodically
look at attendance to make sure all is in balance. He understands that a particular section had traditionally
been assigned to Theodore Judah Elementary School, but there is nothing sacrosanct to say that boundaries
need to stay the same as they are right now. He is not saying that there should not be any discussion. There
was a change of attendance areas while he was on the Board a few years ago. So there is nothing new about
the District seeing the balance of the population change and redrawing attendance areas. He feels it is
great to advocate for communities that we represent, but we need to look at the entire District. His
perspective is that we can come back to this at any time as a Board to revisit it. Even if the Board approves
the plan as it is in place today, if there is a surge in population or other changes next year, the Board can at
any time make additional decisions. He asked if there are specific problems that someone would like to point
out as to what is wrong with approving this plan besides the idea that we need to engage the community. So
we engage and talk to the community, come back to the next Board meeting, and it is the same? Or are there
specific issues that need to be addressed? If there are, then bring them to the fore so they can be discussed,
and the Board can figure out if this is the path to be taken. Otherwise this is just a theoretical conversation.
Member Arroyo suggested approving the plan unless the decision is to approve a different one. Other than
that, he is ready to move with the plan.

Member Ryan said that it was pointed out to her that students west of the railroad track are bussed, so it is
not an immediate safety issue. She said that, in looking at community engagement and recognizing that that
is paramount to ensuring we have families that feel their voices are heard, she appreciates that Second Vice
President Hansen is recognizing he will convene a community dialogue and, if there is a ground swell of
support, he will move into another direction and do the will of our families. So we could say we are going to
recognize the Open Enrollment period, ask for a timeline in December where that community meeting
occurs, and we can have conversations with families as an opportunity for them to provide input. Recognize
that if we make the decision to move forward tonight, and the community meeting in December goes another
way, we would immediately change that direction so that we are meeting the needs of our families.

Member Cochrane asked Member Ryan if that is a motion.
Member Ryan said yes. Member Cochrane seconded it.

President Woo clarified the motion as follows: The motion is to adopt staff’s recommendation to engage the
community and if, after engaging the community, there is apparent need to come back to revisit these
boundary lines, we will do that.

The motion passed unanimously.

9.6  Approve Resolution No. 2862: Kindergarten through Community College Public Action
Education Facilities Bond Act of 2016 (Cathy Allen)

Chief Operations Officer Cathy Allen explained that the Coalition for Adequate School Housing
and the California Building Industry Association joined forces and qualified an initiative to be
placed on the ballot in November of 2016 for a nine billion dollar school facilities bond called
the Kindergarten through Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2016.
Ms. Allen asked the Board to show its support to the effort by adopting this resolution.

Public Comment:
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None

Board Member Comment:
None

Second Vice President Jay Hansen moved to adopt Resolution No. 2862. This was seconded by Member
Arroyo. The motion passed unanimously.

10.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information

10.1 Business and Financial Information:
e Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of September 15, 2015
through October 14, 2015
e Report on Contracts within the Expenditure Limitations Specified in
Section PCC 20111 for September 1, 2015, through October 31, 2015
e Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 1 Ending
September 25, 2015

These items were received by the Board.

11.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS

v" December 10, 2015, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center, 5735 47"
Avenue, Community Room, Annual Organizational and Workshop Meeting

v~ January 7, 2015, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session; 6:30 p.m. Open Session; Serna Center, 5735 47"
Avenue, Community Room; Regular Workshop Meeting

12.0 ADJOURNMENT

President Woo asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. A motion was made by student member Elizabeth
Barry. But she asked that first we share a moment of silence for Grant High School football player

Jaulon Clavo and for teacher Lydia Cruz. After a moment of silence, the motion was seconded by President
Woo. The motion passed unanimously, and the meeting adjourned at 10:23 p.m.

José L. Banda, Superintendent and Board Secretary

NOTE: The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting
process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the
public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 48 hours before the scheduled Board of
Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)] Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in
advance of the meeting and relating to an open session item are available for public inspection at 5735 47" Avenue at the Front Desk
Counter and on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City U"if_”wd. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda Item 9.1e

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Approve Resolution No. 2865: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

T

Department: Board of Education.

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 2865: Resolution Regarding Board
Stipends.

Background/Rationale: Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be
deserving of payment, due to performance of services outside the meeting for or on
behalf of the District, for absent meetings. All stipend payments will be based on an
attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board resolution(s) excusing absences in
compliance with law. A Board member who is absent from a meeting may be eligible
for payment by reporting the excused absence to the Board Office. A Board resolution
will be periodically placed, as needed, on the Board agenda to state that the reason for
the absence complies with Education Code section 35120 and shall be reflected in the
minutes.

Financial Considerations: N/A

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Engagement

Documents Attached:
1. Resolution No. 2865: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends.

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A
Submitted by: Christina Pritchett, Board President
Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION

RESOLUTION NO. 2865
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City
Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they

were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:

1. Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct;

2. Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to
Attachment A; and

3. Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on
this 7th day of January, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Christina Pritchett
President of the Board of Education
ATTESTED TO:

José Banda
Secretary of the Board of Education



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 2865

1. Absence Due to Hardship. Stipends are authorized to the following Board member due
to illness of a family member:

a. Board member Diana Rodriguez for the special meeting date of December 11, 2015.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Sacramento

City Unified
School District Agenda ltem 11.1

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Board Reconsideration of the Adoption of School Attendance Area for
Washington Elementary School and Its Impact on Theodore Judah
Elementary School — Item Previously Introduced and Approved at the
November 19, 2015, Board Meeting

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

LT

Division: Board Office

Recommendation: Board to reconsider school attendance areas pertaining to the
reopening of Washington Elementary.

Background/Rationale: The SCUSD Board of Education voted on August 6, 2015 to
reopen Washington Elementary School. The District needs to re-establish the
attendance area for the 2016-17 school year opening. This item is being revisited as it
was previously introduced and approved at the November 19, 2015, Board meeting.

Financial Considerations: N/A

LCAP GOAL(s): College and Career Ready Students; Family and Community
Engagement

Documents Attached:
None

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes

Submitted by: Mary Hardin Young, Assistant Superintendent,
Tu Moua, Assistant Superintendent
Jim Dobson, Director, Facilities Management and
Operations

Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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L~ SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City Unified BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda Item 11.2

Meeting Date: January 7, 2016

Subject: Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015,
Submitted by Crowe Horwath LLP

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

[

Division: Business Services

Recommendation: Receive the Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2015, submitted by Crowe Horwath LLP.

Background/Rationale: Education Code Section 41020, requires school districts to
conduct an annual audit of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board. The
Sacramento City Unified School District is currently under contract with Crowe Horwath
LLP to conduct this annual audit of district records.

Crowe Horwath LLP has completed the audit for the 2014-15 fiscal year. State law
requires that the Board of Education review the annual audit report. These reports are
filed with the County Superintendent, State Department of Education and the State
Controller’s Office.

Financial Considerations: Contract for audit services - $70,500.

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Engagement

Documents Attached:

1. Executive Summary

2. Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015, Submitted by Crowe
Horwath LLP
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Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 Minutes
Submitted by: Gerardo Castillo, CPA, Chief Business Officer
Approved by: José L. Banda, Superintendent
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Board of Education Executive Summary

Business Services Sacramento
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe Horwath LLP School District

January 7, 2016

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY:

Each year, districts are required to conduct an annual audit of funds under the jurisdiction of the
Governing Board. The intent of the annual audit is to encourage sound fiscal management practices
for the most efficient and effective use of public funds for the education of children in California by
strengthening fiscal accountability at the district, county and state levels. New in the 2014-15 audit
report is the reporting of the Net Pension Liability. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
approved GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB 68), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which
requires that governmental entities disclose the share of the state retirement systems’ pension liability
attributable to its employees. The annual audit report is used by various agencies to review the fiscal
status of the district.

The firm of Crowe Horwath LLP audited the financial statements of the district for the year ended June
30, 2015. The audit is conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. These standards require that the
audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

Findings and recommendations are reviewed by district staff with corrective action responses provided
in the audit report. In addition, the prior year findings and recommendations section of the audit
report reflects the status of previously identified corrective actions.

Il. DRIVING GOVERNANCE:

e Education Code section 41020 outlines the requirements for the annual audit; scope of
examination; licensing requirements and other limitations; contents of auditor’s report;
corrections; certification.

e Education Code section 41020.3 states that by January 31 of each year, the governing body of
each local education agency shall review, at a public meeting, the annual audit of the local
education agency for the prior year, any audit exceptions identified in that audit, the
recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the auditor and any
description of correction or plans to correct any exceptions or management letter issue.

Business Services 1
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Board of Education Executive Summary

Business Services Sacramento
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe Horwath LLP School District

January 7, 2016

Ill. BUDGET:

The cost of the annual audit for the year ending June 30, 2015 was $70,500. This is a General Fund
expenditure.

IV. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES:

Meet required timeline for annual audit report review by the Board.

V. MAIJOR INITIATIVES:

Use findings and recommendations as a guide to ensure continuous improvement.
VI. RESULTS:

Work towards the preparation of the annual audit will continue throughout the year. The initial audit
starts in the spring of each year.

VII. LESSONS LEARNED/NEXT STEPS:

e Continue working with external auditors to review processes and procedures.
e Ensure recommendations and corrective actions are implemented.

Business Services 2
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Crowe Horwath.
Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sacramento City Unified School District, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Sacramento City Unified School District, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(Continued)



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in June 2012, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions.” Also, in November 2013 the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date". As discussed in notes 9 and 10, GASB
Statements No. 68 and No. 71 are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. These
Statements replace the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and
Local Governmental Employers" and GASB Statement No. 50, "Pension Disclosures”. GASB Statements
No. 68 and No. 71 establish standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses as well as identifies the methods and
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to
their actuarial present value and attribute that present value to period of employee service. Note
disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) requirements about pensions are also
addressed. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 14 and the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule,
Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Funding Progress, Schedule of the District's
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of the District's Contributions on pages 60
to 65 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditure of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the other supplementary
information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information, except for the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis, has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents, except for the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis,
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis has not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

(Continued)



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2015 on our consideration of Sacramento City Unified School District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sacramento City
Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Caowe Horwant LLE

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Section of the audit report is District management’s overall
view of the District’s financial condition and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal issues with the
Board and the public. The MD&A is an element of the reporting model adopted by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34. Certain comparative information is required to be presented
in this document.

District Overview

Sacramento City Unified School District (the “District”), located in Sacramento County, is the thirteenth largest
school district in California in terms of student enroliment. The District provides educational services to the
residents in and around Sacramento, the state capital. The District operates under the jurisdiction of the
Superintendent of Schools of Sacramento County, although the District has attained “fiscal accountability” status
under the State Education Code.

For FY 2014-15, the District operated forty elementary schools (grades K-6), eight elementary/middle schools
(K-8), six middle schools, one middle school (grades 7-9), one 7-12 middle/high school, seven comprehensive
high schools (grades 9-12), three alternative education centers, two special education centers, two adult
education centers and fourteen charter schools (including both dependent and independent) and forty-four
children’s centers/preschools serving infants through age 12.

The chart below graphically presents the District’s declining enroliment trend after the impact of charter schools
is taken into account. The District continues to decline in student enroliment, although the trend suggests the
decrease is not as great as in prior years.
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tracked on a daily basis with staff following up on areas of concern. The District averages approximately 95% -
ADA to enrollment which is high for an urban district.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: (1) management's discussion and analysis (this section); (2) the
financial statements; and (3) required supplementary information. The financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different views of the Sacramento City Unified School District.

e The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District's overall financial status.

s The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, and
report the District's operations in more detail than the district wide statements.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further
explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the District's budget for the year. The
remainder of the management's discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the
statements.

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole. The statement of net position
includes all of the District's assets and liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources. All of the current
years' revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District's assets and liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of
resources as a measure of the District's financial position.

In the district-wide financial statements the District's activities are divided into two categories:
¢ Governmental activities — Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation, and administration. State support from Local Control Funding Formula

(LCFF) and categorical apportionments finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The District does not currently have any business type activities.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds. Funds
are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular
programs:

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

e The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like repaying
its long-term debts) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (like Bonds).



Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The District has three kinds of funds:

o Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in
and out; and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-
wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements
that explain the relationship (or differences) between them.

e Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. The District's
enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities, but provide
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. Internal service funds (the other kind of
proprietary fund) are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for the District's other
programs and activities. The District currently has one internal service fund-- the self-insurance fund,
which includes Workers’ Compensation and Dental/Vision fund.

« Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the
retiree benefits fund, the scholarship fund and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those
to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities
from the district-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its
operations.

Governance

The District is governed by a Board of Education consisting of seven members and one student member. The
regular members are elected to staggered four-year terms every two years. As a result of the passage of two
ballot measures at the November 7, 2006 election, Board member elections starting with the November 4, 2008
election, are no longer held district-wide, but instead are held among voters who reside in each of seven newly
created trustee areas.



Mission and Strategic Plan
The District’'s Mission:

Students graduate as globally competitive lifelong learners, prepared to succeed in a career and higher
education institution of their choice to secure gainful employment and contribute to society. The District is
currently working on a new strategic plan.

The District's Strategic Plan 2010-14 Putting Children First

e Career and College Ready Students: When children graduate from our schools, they will leave us as
globally competitive, lifelong learners, prepared for college or a 21t Century career path of their
choosing.

e« Family and Community Engagement: Families are our most important allies, and we will develop
opportunities for them to participate in their children’s education. We will remake our campuses into
welcoming, vibrant community hubs and seek out community partners who can provide broad learning
opportunities for students.

e Organizational Transformation: Our structure will transform to better serve our school sites, provide
acute focus on teaching and learning and create a culture of continuous improvement. We will recruit,
train, retain and compensate a highly capable and diverse workforce. We will hold ourselves
accountable for results.

Financial Reports

The audit report consists of a series of financial reports. The Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities report the district-wide financial condition and activities of the District taken as a whole. These two
financial statements start on page 14. The individual fund statements, which focus on reporting the District's
operations in more detail, begin on page 16.

District-wide Financial Condition

The Statement of Net Position is a district-wide financial statement that reports all that the District owns (assets)
and owes (liabilities). Fiscal year 2001-02 was the first year the District accounted for the value of fixed assets
and included these values as part of financial statements. We display the book value of all district assets
including buildings, land and equipment and related depreciation in this financial statement. Land is accounted
for at purchase cost, not market value, and is not depreciated. Many of our school sites have low values for
even today’s market because the district acquired the land many decades ago. School buildings are valued at
their historical construction cost less depreciation.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board approved GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB 68), Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement, issued in June 2012, is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by
other entities. Due to GASB 68, the District’s net position for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 changed to
$(381,973,239) from $(20,561,611) at June 30, 2014.



District-wide Financial Condition (Continued)

Comparative financial information as of June 30, from the Statement of Net Position is summarized in the

following table:

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 Variance % Diff
Capital Assets $493,294,144 $486,259,118 $7,035,026 1%
Other Assets $292,136,730 $211,765,497 $80,371,233 38%
Total Assets $785,430,874 $698,024,615 $87,406,259 13%
Deferred Outflows of o
RESOUICES $25,829,924 $9,193,644 $16,636,280 181%
Current and Other Liabilities $72,333,086 $66,633,717 $5,699,369 9%
Long-Term Liabilities $1,042,411,701 $661,146,173 $381,265,528 58%
Total Liabilities $1,114,744,787 $727,779,890 $386,964,897 53%
Deferred Inflows of Resources $78,489,250 $- $78,489,250 100%
Net investment in Capital o
Assets (net of related debt) $44,376,658 $71,543,543 ($27,166,885) (38%)
Restricted Net Position $93,329,065 $69,418,324 $23,910,741 34%
Unrestricted Net Position ($519,678,962) ($161,523,478) ($358,155,484) 222%
Total Net Position ($381,973,239) ($20,561,611) ($361,411,628) 1,758%

At the end of fiscal year 2014-15, the District had a total value of $962,109,498 in capital assets. Capital

assets include land, buildings, building improvements, equipment and work in progress. Total accumulated
depreciation amounted to $468,815,354. The net capital assets amounted to $493,294,144 an increase of
$7,035,026 from prior year. This is a result of capital projects being completed through Measures Q and R

General Obligation Bonds.

Other assets include cash, receivables, investments, due from (to) other funds, stores inventory and pre-paid
expenses. An increase in other assets of $80,371,233 can be attributed to the decrease of State deferrals of
general fund revenues and an increase in cash with fiscal agent for the building fund. The cash account for the
building fund is used to fund the district’'s capital asset improvements (i.e. Measure I, Q and R General

Obligations Bonds).

The District ended the year with a total of $1,114,744,787 in outstanding financing obligations. The increase in
long-term debt of $381,265,528 is mainly attributed to the reporting of Pensions and increase of OPEB liability.




District-wide Financial Condition (Continued)

The statement of activities is a district-wide financial statement that reports the District's cost of instruction and
other district activities, and the resources that fund individual and general activities of the District. Comparative
financial information for the year ended June 30 is presented in the following table:

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 Variance % Diff

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
Instruction $347,643,202 $315,943,694 $31,699,508 10%
Instruction-Related Services $66,356,870 $62,029,858 $4,327,012 7%
Pupil Services $61,540,505 $56,194,744 $5,345,761 10%
General Administration $20,117,060 $20,050,493 $66,567 0%
Plant Services $42,207,793 $48,008,987 ($5,801,194) (12%)
Interest on Long-Term Debt $24,449,958 $16,514,783 $7,935,175 48%
All Other Expenses and o
Outgoing $3,805,279 $6,801,754 ($2,996,475) (44%)
Total Governmental Activity o
Expenses $566,120,667 $525,544,313 $40,576,354 8%
Revenues
Charges For Services $2,157,473 $2,042,632 $114,841 5%
Operating Grants and o
Contributions $146,997,448 $140,232,385 $6,765,063 5%
Capital Grants and
Contributions $996,507 $ )
Taxes Levied for General o
Purposes $70,227,570 $66,323,770 $3,903,800 6%
Taxes Levied for Debt and o
Special Purposes $36,953,413 $36,725,954 $227,459 1%
Lnrestricted Federal and State | $271,035,836 $246,667,624 $24,368,212 9%
Etergst and Investment $1.021,920 $168 123 $853,797 84%

arnings
Interagency Revenues $3,403,398 $3,656,193 ($252,795) (7%)
Special and Extraordinary
ltems $0 $4,678,634 ($4,678,634)
Miscellaneous $10,939,876 $9,140,492 $1,799,384 16%
Total Revenues $543,733,441 $509,635,807 $34,097,634 6%
Change in Net Position ($22,387,226) ($15,908,506) ($6,478,720) 41%




The District, as a whole, experienced a change in net position by ($22,387,226). Revenues increased by
$34,097,634 which is primarily attributable to the increase in temporary taxes due to Proposition 30 and also
for taxes levied for debt service. This amount also includes an increase in unrestricted state aid due to the
change in calculating school district revenue, i.e., Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). Expenditures
increased by $40,576,354 which are primarily instructional and instructional-related services.

General Fund Financial and Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund accounts for the primary operations of the District. The District’s initial budget is adopted by
July 1. Over the course of the year, the District’s budget is revised several times to take into account revised
and new categorical funding appropriations and related expenditures, and to update budgets for prior year
carryover amounts. The budget may also be revised to reflect mid-year changes to the State Budget which
affect district funding. Additionally, the District is required to prepare expenditure reports and must include multi-
year projections at least twice a year. The following table summarizes the General Fund budget to actual
information for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Year End
Adopted Budget Budget Actual
Total Revenues $ 414,635,464 $454,320,443 $432,650,573
Total Expenditures $ 426,175,853 $461,476,302 $428,832,132
Total Other $ 2,465,769 $ (2,521,267)| $ (528,584)
Sources/(Uses)

The net revenue increase between Adopted and Year End budget was $39,684,979 due to current year budgets
for categorical funds, which are budgeted as grant award documents are received. Also, the budgets for prior
year unspent restricted and unrestricted program funds (carryover) are appropriated mid-year. In addition, the
Adopted Budget did not include one-time funds such as $22,241,946 for the Emergency Repair Funds and
$8,879,270 for the STRS Pension Fund and $2,409,869 for Mandated Cost Reimbursement.

The net increase to the total expenditure budget between Adopted and Year End budget was $35,300,449 due
to revisions to set up expenditures related to the one-time funds described above and the categorical program
funds which are budgeted after July 1 as grant award documents are received and school site plans are
approved.

Actual revenues were $21,669,870 or 4.8%, below Year End budget due primarily to unspent and unearned
categorical revenue and one-time revenues that carryover to 2015-16. Actual expenditures were $32,644,170,
or 7.1%, below Year End budget due to timing of grants received late part in the year, lower than expected health
benefit increase, and unspent categorical revenue and unspent school site program funds.

The following table summarizes the General Fund operational fund financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2015:

Total Revenue $ 432,650,573
Total Expenditures $ 428,832,132
Other Financing Sources & Uses $ (528,584)
Net Change $ 3,289,857

10.



[l Interest and Investment
REVENUES Earnings $1,021,920.00

<1%

B Interagency Revenues
$3,408,398.00 1%

B Unrestricted Fedaraland
St i 271,035,836.00
R 55079,'0 ! B Miscellaneous

6

$10,939,876.00 2%

I Charges For Services
$2,157,473.00 <1%

B Operating Grants and
Contributions
$146,997,448.00 27%

Capital Grants and

@ Taxes Levied for Debt and Contributions $996,507.00

Special Purposes B Taxes Levied for General <1%
$36,953,413.00 7% Purposes $70,227,570.00
13%

B Instruction-Related
Services $66,356,870.00
12%

EXPENDITURES

B Instruction

$347,643,202.00 62% o

Pupil Services
$61,540,505.00 11%

Bl General Administration
$20,117,060.00 4%

B PlantServices
$42,207,793.00 7%

B Interestonlong-Term
Debt $19,646,417.00 3%
@ All Other Expenses and

Outgoing $3,805,279.00
1%

The percentage of Revenues increased by 2% for Unrestricted Federal and State Aid and Taxes Levied for
General Purposes compared to FY 2013-14 mainly because of LCFF. The percentage of expenditures is almost
the same for FY 2014-15 compared to FY 2013-14.

Capital Projects

1.



Modernization and construction projects are scheduled to continue as we update our existing facilities and
continue to close out construction projects.

With the passage of Bond Measures Q and R in 2012, the District continues facility improvements, modernization
and construction projects that enhance the learning environment.

Total Expenditures for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Measure Q $ 11,337,038
e Program Management Expenditures $ 1,442,793

o Completed Project Expenditures:

= District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 146,711
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 1,586,434
= Resource and Energy Conservation Improvement Projects $ 218,058
= Technology Upgrades $ 869,138
e In Progress Project Expenditures:
= District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 794,485
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 547,819
= Program Enhancements $ 160,432
= Technology Upgrades $ 5,571,168
Measure R $ 13,699,806
e Program Management Expenditures $ 482,121
o Completed Project Expenditures:
= Athletics: Fields, Gyms, Locker Rooms $ 3,623,460
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 2,908,534
e In Progress Project Expenditures:
= Athletics: Fields, Gyms, Locker Rooms $ 5,746,784
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 938,907

Summary of Future Projects as of June 30, 2015

12.



Project Year(s) Projects Estimated Budget

Measure Q $ 175,000.000
2016-2017 Core Academic Renovation 34,800,000
2016-2017 District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements 12,000,000
2016-2017 Modernization, Repair & Upgrade Projects 21,000,000
2016-2017 Program Enhancements 9,000,000
2016-2017 Resource & Energy Conservation Improvement Projects 3,500,000
2016-2017 Technology 7,500,000
2017-2021 Core Academic Renovation, Modernization, Repair & 87,200,000

Upgrade Improvements

Measure R $ 25,695,000
2017-2019 Nutrition Services Center

District Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2015, the District has incurred $1,042,411,701 of long-term liabilities. Of this amount,
$473,813,295 is General Obligation Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds backed by property tax increases
voted on by district residents in 1999, 2002 and 2012, and $72,380,000 of Lease Revenue Bonds, backed by
Developer Fees and General Fund.

Financial Issues

Since the beginning of the “Great Recession”, revenues for schools districts within the State, from what has been
known as the “Revenue Limit Calculation”, have been significantly below the 2008-2009 funding level. Funding
for the 2014-2015 fiscal year was the exception. It was slightly higher than 2008-09 when the district incurred
about 20% reduction. With the passage of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) and Proposition 30, the
prospects for increased State funding are dramatically improved.

Funding is however only part of the equation. Declining enroliment increased operating expenses and uncertain
future state resources are the key issues facing the Sacramento City Unified School District. The development
of future budgets will be influenced by external variables such as the State Budget and enroliment changes.
Internal factors of compensation and number of employees must be commensurate with the number of students.
Sacramento City Unified School District must be vigilant in monitoring all expenditures to avoid fiscal distress.

13.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)

Receivables

Prepaid expenses

Stores inventory

Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4)

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation (Note 4)

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions (Notes 9 and 10)
Deferred loss on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5)
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities (Note 7):

Due within one year

Due after one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (Notes 9 and 10)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted (Note 8)

Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental
Activities

$ 255,047,258
35,645,988
51,138

492,346
41,687,286

451.606.858

785.430.874

22,402,065
3,427,859

25829.924

50,242,023
1,346,419
20,744,644

34,702,714
1.007,708,987

1.114.744.787

78.489.250

44,376,658
93,329,065
(519.678.962)

$ (381,973.239)

14.
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ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash in revolving fund
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Local Agency Investment

Fund (LAIF)

Receivables

Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Stores inventory

Total assets

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Bond
Interest and All Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds

$ 63,791,598 $ 25831,029 $ 34,962,857 $ 21570934 $ 146,156,418

584,514 - - 5,699,722 6,184,236
225,000 - - 2,000 227,000

- 89,216,084 5,667,737 - 94,883,821

- 657,953 - % 657,953
28,381,376 107,797 52,378 6,864,513 35,406,064
2,691,876 1,426,026 - 2,142,211 6,260,113
38,549 - - 12,589 51,138
126,019 = = 366,327 492 346

$ 958380932 $ 117.238889 $ 40682972 $ 36558206 $ 290,319,089

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

$ 26960108 $ 5,060,788 $ 12,338,119 $ 3,093,083 $ 47,452,098

20,620,188 - 2,605 121,851 20,744,644
3.474.339 47,182 - 2,682 163 6,203,684
51.054.635 5,107,970 12,340.724 5.897.097 74.400.426
389,568 - - 380,916 770,484
4,456,029 112,130,919 28,342,248 30,280,283 175,200,479
27,175,567 - - - 27,175,567
12,763,133 - - = 12,763,133
44,784,297 112,130,919 28,342 248 30,661,199 215,918,663

$ 958380932 § 117238889 $ 40682972 $ 36558296 $ 290,319,083

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET -
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds $ 215,918,663

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $962,109,498
and the accumulated depreciation is $468,815,354 (Note 4). 493,294,144

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2015
consisted of (Note 7):

General Obligation Bonds $ (427,737,966)
Premium on issuance (35,057,651)
Capital Appreciation Bonds (11,017,678)
Lease Revenue Bonds (72,380,000)
Capitalized lease obligations (171,675)
Net pension liability (Notes 9 and 10) (284,496,000)
Net OPEB liability (Note 11) (203,728,665)
Compensated absences (7,822 066)

(1,042,411,701)

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for
which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery
basis. Net position of the Self-Insurance Fund is: 6,564,420

In the governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is not
recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In
the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized
in the period that it is incurred: (2,679,439)

Losses on the refunding of debt are recognized as
expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the
government-wide statements, they are categorized as
deferred outflows and are amortized over the life of the
related debt. 3,427,859

In government funds, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources relating to pensions are not reported because they
are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to pensions are reported (Notes 9 and 10).

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions $ 22,402,065
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (78,489,250)

(56,087.185)
Total net position - governmental activities $ (381.973.239)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Bond
Interest and All Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Local control funding formula:
State apportionment $ 253,388,065 $ - $ - $ 14,549,147 $ 267,937,212
Local sources 62,151,276 - - - 62,151,276
Total local control funding formula 315,539,341 - - 14,549,147 330,088,488
Federal sources 43,153,693 - - 34,799,181 77,952,874
Other state sources 62,827,008 20,157 416,632 9,391,113 72,654,910
Other local sources 11,130,531 26,558 36,444 471 12,233.608 59,835,168
Total revenues 432,650,573 46,715 36,861,103 70,973,049 540,531,440
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 165,315,040 - - 14,855,536 180,170,576
Classified salaries 51,468,603 1,436,287 - 12,874,335 65,779,225
Employee benefits 134,164,354 557,942 - 16,999,674 151,721,970
Books and supplies 14,881,152 183,130 - 12,808,029 27,872,311
Contract services and operating
expenditures 57,364,014 1,602,898 - 4,960,400 63,927,312
Other outgo 240,854 - 2,569 - 243 423
Capital outlay 2,576,920 25,547,083 - 6,445,383 34,569,386
Debt service:
Principal retirement 115,184 - 19,470,000 1,905,000 21,490,184
Interest 2,706,011 1,870,133 15,589,224 500,000 20,665,368
Total expenditures 428,832,132 31,197,473 35,061,793 71,348,357 566,439,755
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,818,441 (31,150,758) 1,799,310 (375,308) (25,908,315)
Other financing sources (uses):
Interfund transfers in 3,007,486 3,060,138 - 702,181 6,769,805
Interfund transfers out (3,762,319) - - (3,007,486) (6,769,805)
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 226,249 122,740,000 - - 122,966,249
Premium from issuance of debt - 6,223,489 5,667,737 - 11,891,226
Payment to refunding escrow - (36.740,000) - - (36,740,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (528,584) 95,283,627 5,667,737 (2,305,3085) 98,117,475
Change in fund balances 3,289,857 64,132,869 7,467,047 (2,680,613) 72,209,160
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 41,494,440 47,998,050 20,875,201 33,341,812 143,709,503
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 44784297 $ 112130919 $ 28342248 $ 30661199 § 215.918,663

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 72,209,160

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but increases capital assets in the
statement of net position (Note 4).

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not
recorded in the governmental funds (Note 4).

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of capital
assets and the resulting gain or loss is (Note 4):

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but decreases the
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 7).

In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as
other financing sources. In the statement of net position,
proceeds from debt are reported as increases to liabilities
(Note 7).

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities through
refunding of debt is other financing uses in the governmental
funds, but decreases the long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position (Note 7).

Accreted interest is an expense that is not reported in the
governmental funds (Note 7).

Premiums related to the issuance of long-term liabilities is
recognized as an other financing source in the governmental
funds, but decreases the liability in the statement of net
position. The premiums added in the current year due to new
debt issuance activity is $11,891,226, the current year annual
amortization is $1,811,521, and the premium removed due to
the defeased debt is $2,031,665 (Note 7).

In governmental funds, deferred inflows and deferred
outflows of resources are not recognized. In the
government-wide statements, deferred inflows and deferred
outflows of resources are amortized over the life of the debt.
The net activity in the deferred outflow for the current year
is:

(Continued)

34,627,440

(27,553,622)

(38,792)

21,490,184

(122,966,249)

36,740,000

(1,673,576)

(8,048,040)

(5,765,805)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

In governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in

the period that it is incurred. $ 40,423
internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for
which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost recovery
basis. The change in net position for the Self-insurance Fund
was: 2,422,281
In government funds, pension costs are recognized when
employer contributions are made. In the statement of
activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension
costs and actual employer contributions was: (1,558,783)
In the statement of activities, expenses related to net OPEB
liability and compensated absences are measured by the
amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
expenditures are measured by the amount of financial
resources used (Notes 7 and 11). (22.311.847)
Change in net position of governmental activities 3 (22387.226)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Cash on hand and in banks
Receivables

Total current assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

$ 7,512,036
250,000
75,794

188,668

8,026,498

110,486
5,173
— 1,346,419

1,462,078

$ 6564420
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Operating revenues:
Self-insurance premiums
Other local revenue

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contract services

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating income:
Interest income

Change in net position
Total net position, July 1, 2014

Total net position, June 30, 2015

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN
NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

$ 15,995,567
395

15,995,962
224,706
96,872
7,910
13,222 623
13,552,111

2,443,851

21,570)
2,422,281

4,142 139

—_—

$ 6,564420
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from self-insurance premiums $ 17,984,332

Cash paid for employee benefits (13,658,908)

Cash paid for other expenses (313,288)

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,012,136
Cash flows used in investing activities:

Interest income received (21,570)
Change in cash and investments 3,990,566
Cash and investments, July 1, 2014 3,847,264
Cash and investments, June 30, 2015 $ 7837830
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash used in

operating activities:

Operating income $ 2443851
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Decrease in:
Receivables 1,988,370
(Decrease) increase in:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (439,031)
Accounts payable 13,773
Due to other funds 5173
Total adjustments 1,.568.285
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4012136

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2015
Agency
Trust Funds Fund
Retiree Scholar- Student
Benefits ship Body
Trust Trust Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2).
Cash in County Treasury $ 23,012,128 §$ - -
Cash on hand and in banks 61,142 516,338 1,375,029
Cash with fiscal agent 1,375,244 - -
Investments 15,742,482 - -
Receivables:
Premiums receivable 144,393 - -
Interest receivable - - 1,177
Stores inventory - - 4,884
Other assets - - 9,470
Total assets 40,335,389 516,338 1,389,383
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 8,849,982 - 31,507
Due to other funds (Note 3) 51,256 - -
Due to student groups - - 1,358,053
Total liabilities 8.901.238 - 1,390.560
NET POSITION
Restricted (Note 8) - 516,338 -
Held in trust for retiree
benefits (Note 8) 31,434,151 - -
Total net position $ 31434151 § 516338 § -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Retiree
Benefits Scholarship
Trust Trust
Additions:
In-district premiums/contributions $ 33,002,665 -
Interest income (49,856) -
Other local sources 145.441 365,143
Total additions 33,098,250 365,143
Deductions:
Contract services and operating
expenditures - 51,993
Benefits paid for members 25,189,320 -
Total deductions 25,189,320 51,993
Change in net position 7,908,930 313,150
Net position, July 1, 2014 23,525,221 203,188
Net position, June 30, 2015 $ 31,434,151 516,338

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sacramento City Unified School District (the "District") accounts for its financial transactions in
accordance with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California
School Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity: The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance
responsibilities over all activities related to public school education in the District. The Board is not
included in any other governmental "reporting entity” as defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board since Board members have decision-making authority, the power to designate
management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal
matters.

The District, Sacramento County Schools Education Facilities Financing Corporation (the "Corporation™)
and Sacramento City Schools Joint Powers Financing Authority (the "Authority") have a financial and
operational relationship which meet the reporting entity definition criteria of the Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of the
Corporation and Authority as a component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of the
Corporation and the Authority have been included in the basic financial statements of the District as a
blended component unit.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District, the Corporation and the Authority
which satisfy Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100,
criteria:

A - Manifestations of Oversight

1. The Corporation's and the Authority's Boards of Directors were appointed by the District's Board of
Education.

2. The Corporation and the Authority have no employees. The District's Superintendent and Chief
Business Officer function as agents of the Corporation and the Authority. Neither individual received
additional compensation for work performed in this capacity.

3. The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Corporation and the Authority as it is
anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of all facilities owned by the Corporation and the
Authority.

B - Accounting for Fiscal Matters

1. All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Corporation and the
Authority must have the consent of the District.

2. Any deficits incurred by the Corporation and the Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of
the District. Any surpluses of the Corporation and the Authority revert to the District at the end of the
lease period.

3. lt is anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Corporation
and the Authority.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4. The District has assumed a "moral obligation," and potentially a legal obligation, for any debt incurred
by the Corporation and the Authority.

C - Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation

1. The Corporation and the Authority were created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the
District.

2. The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
California and recorded by the Secretary of State. The Authority was created pursuant to a joint
powers agreement between the District and the California Statewide Communities Development
Authority, pursuant to the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500. The
Corporation and the Authority were formed to provide financing assistance to the District for
construction and acquisition of major capital facilities. Upon completion the District intends to occupy
all Corporation and Authority facilities. When the Corporation's Certificates of Participation and the
Authority's Lease Revenue Bonds have been paid with state reimbursements and the District's
developer fees, title of all Corporation and Authority property will pass to the District for no additional
consideration.

3. The Corporation's and the Authority’s financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the
Building Fund. Certificates of Participation issued by the Corporation and Lease Revenue Bonds
issued by the Authority are included in the government-wide financial statements.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds
are not included in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Position at the fund
financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange
takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange
transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121.

Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of the respective function. Interest
on general long-term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means
by which spending activities are controlied.

A - Major Funds:
1. General Fund:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all revenues and
expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in
this fund. General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through
other funds are paid from the General Fund.

2. Building Fund:

The Building Fund is used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities by the District.

3. Bond Interest and Redemption Fund:

The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. All
records relating to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are maintained by the Sacramento County
Auditor-Controller. The revenue for this fund is raised by school district taxes which are levied, collected,
and administered by County officials. The Education Code stipulates that the tax rate levied shall be
sufficient to provide monies for the payment of principal and interest as they become due on outstanding
school district bonds.

B - Other Funds:

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This classification includes the Charter Schools,
Adult Education, Child Development, Cafeteria and Deferred Maintenance Funds.

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities by the District. This classification includes the Developer Fees, County School Facilities
and Community Facilities Funds.

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,

general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. This classification includes the South Pocket
Facilities and Tax Override Funds.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for services rendered on a cost-
reimbursement basis within the District. The Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide workers'
compensation, dental and vision benefits to employees of the District.

The Retiree Benefits Trust Fund is a trust fund used to account for assets held by the District as Trustee.

The Scholarship Fund is used to account for amounts held by the District as Trustee, to be used to
provide scholarships to students of the District.

Student Body Funds are used to account for revenues and expenditures of the various student body
organizations. All cash activity, assets and liabilities of the various student bodies of the District are
accounted for in Student Body Funds.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual: The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when
susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “"Available" means collectible within the
current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general
rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by
July 1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education
complied with these requirements.

Receivables: Receivables are made up principally of amounts due from the State of California and
Categorical programs. The District has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was required
as of June 30, 2015.

Stores Inventory: Inventories in the General and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average cost. Inventory
recorded in the General and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school supplies and consumable
supplies. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the individual inventory items are
transferred from the warehouse to schools and offices.

Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capita! outlay that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 3 - 30 years depending
on asset types.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as
such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has
recognized a deferred loss on refunding reported which is in the statement of net position. A deferred loss
on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shortened life of the refunded or refunding debt.
Amortization and removal for refundings for the year ended June 30, 2015 totaled $5,765,805.
Additionally, the District has recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the
pension liability reported which is in the Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has recognized a deferred inflow of resources
related to the recognition of the pension liability reported which is in the Statement of Net Position.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B
(PERF B) and additions to/deductions from STRP’s and PERF B'’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by STRP an PERF B. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

STRP PERF B Total
Deferred outflows of resources $ 15,447,858 $ 6,954,207 $ 22,402,065
Deferred inflows of resources $ 54,927,000 $ 23,562,250 $ 78,489,250
Net pension liability $ 223,056,000 $ 61,440,000 $ 284,496,000
Pension expense $ 22,528,998 $ 4,633,850 $ 27,162,848

Compensated Absences: Compensated absences totaling $7,822,066 are recorded as a long-term
liability of the District. The liability is for the earned but unused benefits.

Accumulated Sick Leave: Sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The
District's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since
such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable
service period for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRP and PERF B employees, when the
employee retires.

Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as
unearned revenue until earned.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net Position: Net position is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond
proceeds) of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not
appropriable for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction
for unspent categorical program revenues and state programs represent programs where the revenue
received is restricted for expenditures only in that particular program. The restriction for special
revenues represents the portion of net position restricted for special purposes. The restriction for debt
service repayments represents the portion of net position which the District plans to expend on debt
repayment in the ensuing year. The restriction for capital projects represents the portion of net
position restricted for capital projects. The restriction for self-insurance represents the portion of net
position restricted for paying insurance premiums. The restriction for retiree benefits represents the
portion of net position which will be used for payment of health insurance premiums for current and
future retirees. The restriction for scholarships represents the portion of net position to be used to
provide financial assistance to students of the District. It is the District's policy to first use restricted
net position when allowable expenditures are incurred.

3. Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that do not meet the definitions of "restricted" or "net
investment in capital assets".

Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300
and 1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and
1800) implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a
government is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five
classifications, discussed in more detail below, are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned.

A - Nonspendable Fund Balance:

The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form, such as
revolving fund cash, prepaid expenditures and stores inventory.

B - Restricted Fund Balance:

The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine restricted net position as reported in the
government-wide and fiduciary trust fund statements.

C - Committed Fund Balance:

The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-imposed by
formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must be
imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined
subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal action by the Board
of Education is required to remove any commitment from any fund balance. At June 30, 2015, the District
had no committed fund balances.
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D - Assigned Fund Balance:

The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the District's Board of Education has
approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the District's intent related to those specific
purposes. The Board of Education can designate personnel with the authority to assign fund balances,
however, as of June 30, 2015, no such designation has occurred.

E - Unassigned Fund Balance:

In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance that
has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes.

In any fund other than the General Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never reported because
amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose of that fund.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Policy: The District has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes of
fund balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in
order by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances.

While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require Districts to establish a minimum fund balance
policy or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a
minimum fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of
Education. At June 30, 2015, the District has not established a minimum fund balance policy nor has it
established a stabilization arrangement.

Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1.
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Sacramento bills and collects taxes for the
District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when received.

Encumbrances; Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. All encumbrances are liquidated as of
June 30.

Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds
were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the
"grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.

Estimates: The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ
from those estimates.
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New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and GASB Statement
No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide pensions through pension plans
administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria. GASB Statement No. 68
requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for
pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure
the annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and transparency
through revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary information (RS1). This Statement
is effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. Based on the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 68, the Districts July 1, 2014 governmental activities net position was restated by
$20,561,611 because of the recognition of the net pension liability and deferred outflows of resources.

In November 2013 GASB issued GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding
application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68. The issue relates to amounts
associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s
beginning net pension liability. This Statement amends paragraph 137 of GASB Statement No. 68 to
require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its
pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension
liability. GASB Statement No. 68, as amended, continues to require that beginning balances for other
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at
transition only if it is practical to determine all such amounts. The provisions of this Statement are
required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 and are effective for
the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. Based on the implementation of GASB Statement No. 71,
the District established a deferred outflow category to report the payments made subsequent to the
measurement date of the pensions as well as deferred inflow category to report the net differences of the
pensions in the Statement of Net Position.

In February 2015, the GASB has issued its final standard on accounting and financial reporting issues
related to fair value measurements, applicable primarily to investments made by state and local
governments. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value and
describes how fair value should be measured, what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair
value, and what information about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Under GASB Statement No. 72, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Investments, which generally are measured at fair value, are defined as a security or other asset
that governments hold primarily for the purpose of income or profit and the present service capacity of
which are based solely on their ability to generate cash or to be sold to generate cash. Before the
issuance of GASB Statement No. 72, state and local governments have been required to disclose how
they arrived at their measures of fair value if not based on quoted market prices. Under the new
guidance, those disclosures have been expanded to categorize fair values according to their relative
reliability and to describe positions held in many alternative investments. This statement is effective for
the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. Management has not determined what impact this
statement will have on its financial statements.
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In June 2015, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, completes the suite of pension
standards. GASB Statement No. 73 establishes requirements for those pensions and pension plans that
are not administered through a trust meeting specified criteria (in other words, those not covered by
GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68). The requirements in GASB Statement No. 73 for reporting
pensions generally are the same as in GASB Statement No. 68. However, the lack of a pension plan that
is administered through a trust that meets specified criteria is reflected in the measurements. The
provisions in GASB Statement No. 73 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015, except
those provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for
pensions that are not within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68, which are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2016. Management has not determined what impact this statement will have on
its financial statements.

In June 2015, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which replaces GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. GASB Statement No. 74 addresses the
financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified
criteria. The Statement follows the framework for financial reporting of defined benefit OPEB plans in
GASB Statement No. 45 by requiring a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. The Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the
measurement of the OPEB liabilities for which assets have been accumulated, including information
about the annual money-weighted rates of return on plan investments. GASB Statement No. 74 also sets
forth note disclosure requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans. This statement is effective for the
District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Management has not determined what impact this statement
will have on its financial statements.
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In June 2015, the GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which replaces the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. GASB Statement No. 75 requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial
statements for the OPEB that they provide. Governments that are responsible only for OPEB liabilities
related to their own employees and that provide OPEB through a defined benefit OPEB plan administered
through a trust that meets specified criteria will report a net OPEB liability, which is the difference
between the total OPEB liability and assets accumulated in the trust and restricted to making benefit
payments. Governments that participate in a cost-sharing OPEB plan that is administered through a trust
that meets the specified criteria will report a liability equal to their proportionate share of the collective
OPEB liability for all entities participating in the cost-sharing plan. Governments that do not provide
OPEB through a trust that meets specified criteria will report the total OPEB liability related to their
employees. GASB Statement No. 75 carries forward from GASB Statement No. 45 the option to use a
specified alternative measurement method in place of an actuarial valuation for purposes of determining
the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through OPEB plans in which there are fewer than 100 plan
members (active and inactive). This option was retained in order to reduce costs for smaller
governments. GASB Statement No. 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities.
Among the new note disclosures is a description of the effect on the reported OPEB liability of using a
discount rate and a healthcare cost trend rate that are one percentage point higher and one percentage
point lower than assumed by the government. The new RSI includes a schedule showing the causes of
increases and decreases in the OPEB liability and a schedule comparing a government's actual OPEB
contributions to its contribution requirements. Some governments are legally responsible to make
contributions directly to an OPEB plan or make benefit payments directly as OPEB comes due for
employees of other governments. In certain circumstances (called special funding situations) Statement
75 requires these governments to recognize in their financial statements a share of the other
government’s net OPEB liability. The provisions in GASB Statement No. 75 are effective for the District's
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. Management has not determined
what impact this statement will have on its financial statements.

In June 2015, the GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, which reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two
categories of authoritative GAAP from the four categories under GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. The first category of
authoritative GAAP consists of GASB Statements of Governmental Accounting Standards. The second
category comprises GASB Technical Bulletins and Implementation Guides, as well as guidance from the
AICPA that is cleared by the GASB. The Statement also addresses the use of authoritative and
nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not
specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. These changes are intended to improve financial
reporting for governments by establishing a framework for the evaluation of accounting guidance that will
result in governments applying that guidance with less variation. That will improve the usefulness of
financial statement information for making decisions and assessing accountability and enhance the
comparability of financial statement information among governments. The Statement also is intended to
improve implementation guidance by elevating its authoritative status to a level that requires it be
exposed for a period of broad public comment prior to issuance, as is done for other
GASB pronouncements. In connection with GASB Statement No. 76, the GASB also recently cleared
Implementation Guide No. 2015-1, which incorporates changes resulting from feedback received during
the public exposure of all of implementation guidance previously issued. This statement is effective for
the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. Management has not determined what impact this
statement will have on its financial statements.
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Cash and investments at June 30, 2015 are reported at fair value and consisted of the following:
Governmental Activities

Governmental  Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Fund Total Activities

Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury $146.156.418 3 7512036 $153.668454 $ 23,012,128

Deposits:
Cash on hand and in banks 6,184,236 75,794 6,260,030 1,952,509
Cash in revolving fund 227,000 - 227,000 -
Total deposits 6,411,236 75,794 6,487,030 1,952,509
Investments:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 94,883,821 250,000 95,133,821 1,375,244
Investments - - - 15,742,482
Local Agency Investment
Fund 657,953 - 657.953 -
Total investments 95,541,774 250,000 95,791,774 17,117,726
Total cash and
investments $248.109428 §$ 7.837.830 $255947258 3 42,082,363

Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all
of its cash in the Sacramento County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those of school
districts in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost which approximates
fair value. Interest earned is deposited monthly into participating funds. Any investment losses are
proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

Because the District's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund under the care of
a third party and the District's share of the pooled investment fund does not consist of specific, identifiable
investment securities owned by the District, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or
related custodial credit risk classifications is required.

In accordance with applicable state laws, the Sacramento County Treasurer may invest in derivative
securities. However, at June 30, 2015, the Sacramento County Treasurer has represented that the
Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk
profiles.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: The District limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured
balances are collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are
insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by
the respective financial institution. At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the District's accounts was
$8,439,539 and the bank balance was $4,920,097. $1,492,037 of the bank balance was FDIC insured
and $3,428,060 remained uninsured.
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Investments: The Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Building Fund and South Pocket Facilities Fund
represents debt proceeds that have been set aside for capital asset expenditures and the repayment of
long-term liabilities. These amounts are held by a third party custodian in the District's name.

The Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Self-Insurance Fund represents cash segregated for the future
payment of self-insured benefits. These amounts are held by a third party custodian in the District's
name.

The Investment in the Retiree Benefits Trust Fund represents cash segregated for the future payment of
other postemployment benefits. These amounts are held in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (CalPERS) CERBT Strategy 2 investment portfolio, which is pooled with other agencies,
therefore there are no significant credit risks related to the investments held. The investments held by the
portfolio is in accordance with Sections 53601 and 53602 of the California Government code.

Sacramento City Unified School District places certain funds with the State of California's Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the
Pooled Money Investment Board. The State Treasurer's Office pools these funds with those of other
governmental agencies in the state and invests the cash. The fair value of the District's investment in the
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements based upon the District's pro-rata share of the
fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).
The monies held in the pooled investments funds are not subject to categorization by risk category. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account within
twenty-four hours notice. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by federal
agencies, government-sponsored enterprises and corporations. LAIF is administered by the State
Treasurer. LAIF investments are audited annually by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the State
Controller's Office. Copies of this audit may be obtained from the State Treasurer's Office: 915 Capitol
Mall; Sacramento, California 95814. The Pooled Money Investment Board has established policies,
goals, and objectives to make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity and yield are not jeopardized.

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
At June 30, 2015, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held.

Credit Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other
than the limitations of state law.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer. At June 30, 2015, the District had no concentration of credit risk.
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NOTE 3 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers, except
for the Self-Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the Self-Insurance
Fund and the funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid balances at year end, as a resuit
of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds.

Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2015
were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Major Funds:
General $ 2691876 $ 3,474,339
Building 1,426,026 47,182
Non-Major Funds:
Charter Schools 1,580,062 745,394
Adult Education 113,738 105,359
Child Development 421,377 863,515
Cafeteria 15,986 965,455
County School Facilities 11,048 -
Community Facilities - 2,440
Proprietary Fund:
Self-Insurance - 5,173
Fiduciary Fund:
Retiree Benefits - 51,256
Totals $ 6,260,113 3 6,260,113

(Continued)

38.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 3 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers: Interfund transfers consist of transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds
through which the resources are to be expended.

Interfund transfers for the 2014-2015 fiscal year were as follows:

Transfer from the General Fund to the Building Fund to reimburse

prior year bond expenses with Emergency Repair Program funds. $ 1,970,978
Transfer from the Charter Fund to the General Fund for Charter Fees. 1,278,495
Transfer from the General Fund to the Building Fund to reimburse

prior year bond expenses with Ed Tech K-12 Voucher Program

funds. 1,089,160
Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the General Fund for indirect

charges. 939,645
Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund for

indirect charges. 738,621
Transfer from the General Fund to Child Development Fund for

General Fund contribution to sustain Child Development programs. 420,791

Transfer from the General Fund to Cafeteria Fund to reimburse prior

year Child Nutrition expenses with Emergency Repair Program

funds. 134,235
Transfer from the General Fund to Deferred Maintenance Fund to

reimburse prior year Deferred Maintenance expenses with

Emergency Repair Program funds. 72,139
Transfer from the General Fund to Adult Education for General Fund

contribution for parent education for preschool classes. 54,977
Transfer from the Adult Education Fund to General Fund for indirect

charges. 37,708

Transfer from the General Fund to Adult Education Fund for General
Fund contribution to clear accounts receivable that will not be

received. 18,957
Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to General Fund for indirect
charges. 13,017

Transfer from the General Fund to Charter Schools Fund to transfer
revenue from Test Fees and Civic Permits to the charter school that
generated the revenue. 1,082

$ 6769805
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A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2015 is shown below:

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
July 1, and and June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
Governmental Activities
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 19,873,250 $ - $ . $ 19,873,250
Work-in-process 17,138,998 15,344,626 10,669,588 21,814,036
Depreciable:
Buildings 726,396,120 17,325,832 - 743,721,952
Site improvements 123,109,389 4,966,395 - 128,075,784
Equipment 41.028.955 7,660,175 64.654 48,624,476
Totals, at cost 927,546,712 45,297,028 10,734,242 _ 962,109,498
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (342,554,214) (19,074,851) - (361,629,065)
Site improvements (67,422,547) (5,478,691) - (72,901,238)
Equipment (31.310.833) {3.000.080) (25,862) _ (34.285.051)
Total accumulated
depreciation (441,287,594) _ (27,553,622) (25,862) _(468.815.354)
Capital assets, net $ 486,259,118 $§ 17,743,406 $§ 10,708,380 $ 493,294 144
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:
Instruction $ 24,387,673
Food services 291,277
All other pupil services 710,067
Community services 223,418
All other general administration 1,730,807
Plant services 210,380
Total depreciation expense $ 27553622
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NOTE 5 — SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS

The District has established a Self-Insurance Fund to account for employee vision benefits, employee
dental benefits and workers' compensation plans. The employee vision and dental plans are self insured
and contract with a third party administrator for benefits processing. Until July 31, 1998 and from July 1,
2001 through June 30, 2005, the workers' compensation plan provided coverage up to $250,000 and
purchased excess insurance for claims over the retained coverage limit. Between August 1, 1998 and
June 30, 2001, and after July 1, 2005, the District purchased insurance for the workers' compensation
coverage.

The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate cost of claims that
have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. These claims
will be paid in future years.

District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims data. Annually, the
District obtains an actuarial study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates
that consider claim frequency and other economic factors. The liability for workers compensation is based
on an actuarial study dated May 11, 2015.

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses,
beginning of year $ 1785450 $ 1,905,550

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment

expenses 13,219,877 12,290,368
Total payments (13.658.908) (12.410.468)
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at end of year $§ 1346419 § 1785450

NOTE 6 — TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE

On May 22, 2014, the District issued $26,000,000 of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN)
maturing on September 30, 2014, with an interest rate of 1%, to provide for anticipated cash flow deficits
from operations. The TRAN is a general obligation of the District and was paid from revenues and cash
receipts generated by the District during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. On September 30, 2014
the TRAN was paid off.
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General Obligation Bonds

A summary of General Obligation Bonds payable as of June 30, 2015 follows:

Current
Balance Current Year Balance
Interest Original July 1, Year Refunded & June 30,
Series Rate Maturity 2014 Issuance Matured 2018
2005 40-50% 2030 $ 23,355,000 $ - $ 23,355,000 $ -
2007 - ClI 35-50% 2015 21,415,000 - 17,035,000 4,380,000
2007 - CA 46-48% 2032 26,077,966 - - 26,077,966
2011 0.5-55% 2029 68,370,000 - 3,965,000 64,405,000
2012 2.0-53% 2031 107,625,000 - 4,280,000 103,345,000
2013 -A 2.0-5.0% 2038 30,000,000 - 7,410,000 22,590,000
2013-B 5.7% 2038 40,000,000 - B 40,000,000
2014 2.0-50% 2027 44,365,000 - - 44,365,000
2015 2.0-5.0% 2030 - 32,740,000 165,000 32,575,000
2015 C1 2.0-5.0% 2041 - 66,260,000 - 66,260,000
2015 C2 07-12% 2033 - 23.740.000 - 23,740,000

_—

$361.207,966  $122,740000 $ 56.210,000  $427,737.966

The Series 2005, 2007, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 Serial Bonds are authorized pursuant to the
Election of 2002 and Election of 2012, and are payable from property taxes levied by the County of
Sacramento.

The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds payable and outstanding as of
June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 22,380,000 $ 16,892,693 $ 39,272,693
2017 26,510,000 17,293,091 43,803,091
2018 26,645,000 16,547,649 43,192,649
2019 18,265,000 15,791,676 34,056,676
2020 19,525,000 14,991,576 34,516,576
2021-2025 101,584,519 69,087,874 170,672,393
2026-2030 110,657,605 57,722,874 168,380,479
2031-2035 34,210,842 33,336,702 67,547,544
2036-2040 63,455,000 11,059,213 74,514,213
2041 4,505.000 90,100 4,595,100

$ 427737966 $ 252813448 §$ 680.551.414
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On June 30, 2011, the District issued 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $79,585,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, and General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001. The refunded bonds were paid off paid off as of
June 30, 2015.

On June 14, 2012, the District issued 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $113,245,000.
Bond proceeds were used to advance refund all of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, and the 2002 Series A. Proceeds were also used to advance
refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series D Bonds. The refunded bonds were paid off paid off as of
June 30, 2015.

On January 15, 2014, the District issued 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $44,535,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 2002 General Obligation Bonds, Series
2005. The refunded bonds were paid off paid off as of June 30, 2015.

On January 8, 2015, the District issued 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $32,740,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund the District's 2002, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 and 2007.

The issuance of the 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds resulted in the recognition of an
accounting gain of $161,532 for the year ended June 30, 2015, however, the District in effect reduced its
aggregate debt service payments by $6.0 million over the next fifteen years, and obtained an economic
gain of $4.7 million.

Calculation of difference in cash flow requirements and economic gain are as follows:

Old debt service cash flows $ 56,175,416
New debt service cash flows 50,134,621
Cash flow difference $ 6,040,795
Present value of old debt service cash flows $ 45,537,911
Present value of new debt service cash flows 40.803,126
Economic gain $ 4734785

Lease Revenue Bonds: On February 4, 2014, the District issued Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014
Series A and Series B, totaling $44,825,000 and $29,460,000, respectively. Bond proceeds were used to
make lease payments to the District pursuant to the Facility Lease and additionally, advance refund all of
the District's 2002 Variable Rate Certificates of Participation (2002 COP). The Series A and Series B
Bonds are secured by certain revenues, which consist of rental payments to be made by the District out
of its general fund under a facility sublease as well as interest earning on funds held under a trust
agreement.
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The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series A bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to
5.0% and are scheduled to mature through 2040 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 1,995,000 $ 2,073,900 $ 4,068,900
2017 2,065,000 2,014,050 4,079,050
2018 2,155,000 1,931,450 4,086,450
2019 2,245,000 1,845,250 4,090,250
2020 2,370,000 1,733,000 4,103,000
2021-2025 13,830,000 6,757,000 20,587,000
2026-2030 235,000 4,568,000 4,803,000
2031-2035 4,590,000 4,444 250 9,034,250
2036-2040 13,635,000 2,111,500 15,746,500

$ 43120000 $ 27478400 $ 70.598400

The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series B bonds bear an interest rate of 4.09% and are
scheduled to mature through 2033 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 200,000 $ 1,196,734 $ 1,396,734
2017 200,000 1,188,554 1,388,554
2018 200,000 1,180,374 1,380,374
2019 200,000 1,172,194 1,372,194
2020 200,000 1,164,014 1,364,014
2021-2025 1,040,000 5,697,370 6,737,370
2026-2030 18,670,000 4,123,947 22,793,947
2031-2034 8.550.000 614.318 9,164,318

$ 29260000 $ 16337505 $ 45597 505
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Capitalized Lease Obligations: The District leases equipment under capital lease agreements. Future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending Lease
June 30, Payments
2016 $ 50,263
2017 50,263
2018 50,263
2019 30,393
2020 4105
Total payments 185,287
Less amount representing interest (13.612)
Net minimum lease payments 3 171,675

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year
ended June 30, 2015 is shown below:

Balance Balance Amounts
July 1, 2014 June 30, Due Within
as restated Additions Deductions 2015 One Year
Governmental activities:
General Obligation Bonds $ 361,207,966 $ 122,740,000 $ 56,210,000 $ 427,737,966 $ 22,380,000
Capital Appreciation 9,344,102 1,673,576 - 11,017,678 -
Lease Revenue Bonds 74,285,000 - 1,905,000 72,380,000 2,195,000
Premium on issuance 27,009,611 11,891,226 3,843,186 35,057,651 2,261,306
Net Pension Liability
(Notes 9 & 10) 359,551,000 - 75,055,000 284,496,000 -
Capitalized lease obligations 60,610 226,249 115,184 171,675 44,342
Net OPEB liability (Note 11) 181,523,823 50,035,815 27,830,973 203,728,665 -
Compensated absences 7,715,061 107.005 - 7.822.066 7.822.066

$1,020.697173 § 186,673,871 § 164,950343 $1042411701 §$ 34702714
Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.
Principal and interest payments on the Lease Revenue Bonds are made from the General Fund and
Developer Fees Fund. Payments on the capitalized lease obligations are made from the General Fund.
Payments on the Net Pension Liability and compensated absences are made from the fund for which the
related employee worked. Payments on the Net OPEB liability are made from the Retiree Benefit Fund.
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Restricted net position consisted of the following at June 30, 2015:

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Funds
Restricted for unspent categorical program
revenues and state programs $ 4846363 $ -
Restricted for special revenues 15,639,528 -
Restricted for capital projects 37,770,285 -
Restricted for debt service 28,508,469 -
Restricted for self insurance 6,564,420 -
Restricted for retiree benefits - 31,434,151
Restricted for scholarships - 516,338
Total restricted net position $ 83,329.065 $ 31950489
Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:
Bond
Interest All
General Building Redemption Non-Major
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Revolving cash fund $ 225000 $ - $ - $ 2,000 $ 227,000
Stores inventory 126,019 - - 366,327 492,346
Prepaid expenditures 38,549 - - 12,589 51,138
Subtotal nonspendable 389,568 3 = 380,916 770,484
Restricted:
Special revenues - - - 14,868,278 14,868,278
Capital projects - 112,130,919 - 14,855,450 126,986,369
Debt service - - 28,342,248 166,221 28,508,469
Unspent categorical revenues 4,456,029 - = 390,334 4,846,363
Subtotal restricted 4,456,029 _112,130919 _ 28342248 _ 30,280,283 _176209.479
Assigned:
Future costs retirement/Prop 30 8,556,881 - - - 8,556,881
Increase fund balance 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
Common Core collaborative 2,409,869 - - - 2,409,869
District wide technology upgrades 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Dedicated towards OPEB 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Class size reduction 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
Purchase orders carryover 1,282,626 . - - 1,282,626
Donations - school sites 940,780 - - - 940,780
Additional school counselors 809,900 - - - 809,900
Regional occupational program 658,621 - - - 658,621
Vacation liability buy down 570,000 - - - 570,000
Other assignments 346,890 - - - 346,890
Subtotal assigned 27,175,567 - - - 27,175,567
Unassigned:
Designated for economic
uncertainty 12,763,133 - - - 12,763,133
Total fund balances 44784207 $112130.919 28342248 $ 30,661,199 $215,918.663
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General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan

Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the
State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS). The Teachers'
Retirement Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the
California Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the
plans may be amended through legislation. CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can
be obtained at http://www.calstrs.com/comprehensive-annual-financial-report.

Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

. CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that
could be creditable to CalSTRS.

. CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS.

The Defined Benefit Program provides retirement benefits based on members' final compensation, age
and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below.

CalSTRS 2% at 60

CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum of five years of
credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year
of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five years of credited service or
as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 increases
with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more of
credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, known as the career
factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation.

CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to
January 1, 2014. One-year final compensation means a member’s highest average annual compensation
earnable for 12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member
could earn in a school year while employed on a fulltime basis, for a position in which the person worked.
For members with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average
annual compensation earnable for any three consecutive years of credited service.

CalSTRS 2% at 62

CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five years of
credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year
of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after
age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual
compensation earnable for three consecutive years of credited service.
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Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California
Legislature and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as
a level percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the Defined Benefit
Program are as follows:

Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 8.15 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2014-15. Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of
the normal cost of their retirement plan, which resulted in a contribution rate of 8.15 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2014-15.

In general, member contributions cannot increase unless members are provided with some type of
“comparable advantage” in exchange for such increases. Under previous law, the Legislature could
reduce or eliminate the 2 percent annual increase to retirement benefits. As a result of AB 1469, effective
July 1, 2014, the Legislature cannot reduce the 2 percent annual benefit adjustment for members who
retire on or after January 1, 2014, and in exchange for this “comparable advantage,” the member
contribution rates have been increased by an amount that covers a portion of the cost of the 2 percent
annual benefit adjustment.

Effective July 1, 2014, with the passage of AB 1469, member contributions for those under the 2% at 60
benefit structure increase from 8.0 percent to a total of 10.25 percent of applicable member earnings,
phased in over the next three years. For members under the 2% at 62 benefit structure, contributions will
increase from 8.0 percent to 9.205 percent of applicable member earnings, again phased in over three
years, if there is no change to normal cost.

Employers — 8.88 percent of applicable member earnings.

In accordance with AB 1469, employer contributions will increase from 8.25 percent to a total of 19.1
percent of applicable member earnings phased in over seven years starting in 2014. The new legislation
also gives the board limited authority to adjust employer contribution rates from July 1, 2021 through June
2046 in order to eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation related to service credited to
members prior to July 1, 2014. The board cannot adjust the rate by more than 1 percent in a fiscal year,
and the total contribution rate in addition to the 8.25 percent cannot exceed 12 percent.

The CalSTRS employer contribution rate increases effective for fiscal year 2014-15 through fiscal year
2045-46 are summarized in the table below:

Effective Date Prior Rate Increase Total

July 01, 2014 8.25% 0.63% 8.88%

July 01, 2015 8.25% 2.48% 10.73%
July 01, 2016 8.25% 4.33% 12.58%
July 01, 2017 8.25% 6.18% 14.43%
July 01, 2018 8.25% 8.03% 16.28%
July 01, 2019 8.25% 9.88% 18.13%
July 01, 2020 8.25% 10.85% 19.10%
July 01, 2046 8.25% Increase from prior rate ceases in 204647
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The District contributed $15,447,858 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

State - 5.954 percent of the members' creditable earnings from the fiscal year ending in the prior calendar
year.

Additionally, beginning October 1, 1998, a statutory contribution rate of 0.524 percent, adjustable
annually in 0.25 percent increments up to a maximum of 1.505 percent, of the creditable earnings from
the fiscal year ending in the prior calendar year per Education Code Section 22955(b). This contribution is
reduced to zero if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation and no normal cost deficit for benefits in place
as of July 1, 1990. Based on the actuarial valuation, as of June 30, 2012 there was no normal cost deficit,
but there was an unfunded obligation for benefits in place as of July 1, 1990. As a result, the state was
required to make quarterly payments starting October 1, 2013, at an additional contribution rate of 1.024
percent. As of June 30, 2014, the state contributed $200.7 million of the $267.6 million total amount for
fiscal year 2013-14. As a result of AB 1469, the fourth quarterly payment of $66.9 million was included in
an increased first quarter payment of $94 million for the 2014-15 fiscal year, which was transferred on
July 1, 2014.

In accordance with AB 1469, the portion of the state appropriation under Education Code Section
22955(b) that is in addition to the 2.017 percent has been replaced by section 22955.1(b) in order to fully
fund the benefits in effect as of 1990 by 2046. The additional state contribution will increase from 1.437
percent in 2014-15 to 4.311 percent in 2016-17. The increased contributions end as of fiscal year 2046-
2047.

The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2014-15 and beyond are summarized in the
table below:

AB 1469
Increase For Total State

Base 1990 Benefit SBMA Appropriation
Effective Date Rate Structure Funding to DB Program
July 01, 2014 2.017% 1.437% 2.50% 5.954%
July 01, 2015 2.017% 2.874% 2.50% 7.391%
July 01, 2016 2.017% 4.311% 2.50% 8.828%
July 01, 2017 to
June 30, 2046 2.017% 4.311%™ 2.50% 8.828%"
July 01, 2046

and thereafter 2.017% * 2.50% 4.571%"

* The new legislation also gives the board limited authority to adjust state contribution rates from
July 1, 2017, through June 2046 in order to eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation
associated with the 1990 benefit structure. The board cannot increase the rate by more than 0.50
percent in a fiscal year, and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the contribution rate imposed
to pay for the 1990 benefit structure shall be reduced to 0 percent. Rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014,
are reinstated if necessary to address any remaining 1990 unfunded actuarial obligation from July 1,
2046, and thereafter.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total
portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 223,056,000

State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District 134,692,000
Total $ 357,748,000

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school Districts and the State. At June 30,
2014, the District's proportion was 0.382 percent, which was an increase of zero from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2013.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $22,528,998 and revenue
of $9,688,971 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ ] $ -
Changes of assumptions . =

Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on investments - 54,927,000

Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share
of contributions - -

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 15.447.858 -

Total $ 15447858 $ 54,927,000
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$15,447,858 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ended

June 30,
2016 $ 13,731,750
2017 $ 13,731,750
2018 $ 13,731,750
2019 $ 13,731,750

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are amortized over a
closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7 years as of
June 30, 2014. The STRP net pension liability as of June 30, 2013 and the STRP net pension liability as
of June 30, 2014 are based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation for the first year of implementation.
As a result there are no differences between expected and actual experience or changes in assumptions
subject to amortization. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2014. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013,
used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the
measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2013

Experience Study July 1, 2006, through June 30, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.60%

Consumer Price Inflation 3.00%

Wage Growth 3.75%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB

Not applicable for DBS/CBB

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These
custom tables are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience. RP2000 series
tables are an industry standard set of mortality rates published by the Society of Actuaries. See CalSTRS
July 1, 2006 — June 30, 2010 experience analysis for more information.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment
consultant as an input to the process. Based on the model from CalSTRS consulting actuary’s
investment practice, a best estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is re-balanced
annually and that annual returns are log normally distributed and independent from year to year to
develop expected percentiles for the long-term distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset
allocation by PCA is based on board policy for target asset allocation in effect on February 2, 2012, the
date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best estimates of 10-year geometric real
rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the
actuarial investment rate of return are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 47% 4.50%
Private Equity 12 6.20
Real Estate 15 4.35
Inflation Sensitive 5 3.20
Fixed Income 20 0.20
Cash / Liquidity 1 0.00

* 10-year geometric average

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increase
per Assembly Bill 1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term
assumed investment rate of return (7.60 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and
administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate: The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.60 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.60 percent)
or 1-percentage-point higher (8.60 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.60%) Rate (7.60%) (8.60%)

District’s proportionate share of

the net pension liability $347,687,000 $223,056,000 $119.138,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report.
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General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund B

Plan Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public
Employer’s Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in
the State of California.

The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and
noncertified employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute.
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/cafr-2014.pdf.

Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service,
age, final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of
eligible members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to
date after five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service.

Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from
members and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a
percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and
depend on the respective employer's benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by
periodic actuarial valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas
and employee groups of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made
when agencies first join the PERF, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining
contribution rates.

The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in
excess of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly.

Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the
year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Members - The member contribution rate was 6.0 or 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal
year 2014-15.

Employers - The employer contribution rate was 11.771 percent of applicable member earnings.
The District contributed $6,954,207 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of $61,440,000 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as June 30,
2013. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Districts share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school Districts. At
June 30, 2014, the District's proportion was 0.541 percent, which was a decrease of 0.021 percent from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013.
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $4,633,850. At June 30,
2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments - 21,112,000
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 2,450,250
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 6,954,207 -
Total $ 6954207 $§ 23562250

$6,954,207 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ended

June 30,
2016 $ 6,094,750
2017 $ 6,094,750
2018 $ 6,094,750
2019 $ 5,278,000

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are amortized over a
closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 4 years as of
June 30, 2013. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2014. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013,
used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the
measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2013

Experience Study July 1, 2006, through June 30, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service
Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchasing

Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies 2.75% thereafter
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The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer
to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase,
mortality and retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’
website.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 47% 5.25%
Global Fixed Income 19 0.99
Inflation Sensitive 6 0.45
Private Equity 12 6.83
Real Estate 1 4.50
Infrastructure & Forestland 3 4.50
Liquidity 2 (0.55)

* 10-year geometric average

Discount_Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. A
projection of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets
would run out. The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a
detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used
in the actuarial valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be
15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent.
Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension
liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the Plan and the District.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-

block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE 10 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued)

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected cash flows of the Plan. Such cash flows
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the Plan’s asset classes, expected
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11-80 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest
one quarter of one percent.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate: The following presents the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent)
or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 107.480,000 $ 61440000 $ 22389000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 11 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Plan Description: Sacramento City Unified School District's Retired Employees Healthcare Plan (REHP),
is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Sacramento City Unified School
District. REHP provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees. Benefits are a negotiated
component of each bargaining unit agreement. Currently, eligible retirees receive health care benefits
that are paid 100% by the District. District teachers qualify for these benefits after attaining age 55 with at
least five years of consecutive service to the District, age 50 with 30 years of service (if a member prior to
January 1, 2013), or approved disability retirement with 5 years of service. CalPERS employees qualify
for benefits after attaining age 50 (age 52, if a new CalPERS member on or after January 1, 2013) with 5
years of State or public agency service or approved disability and meeting the requirements outlined in
their respective bargaining agreements.

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the District are established and may be amended by
the Board of Education. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing

requirements, with an amount to fund the actuarial accrued liability as determined annually by the Board.
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District contributed $27,830,973 to the plan.

(Continued)
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NOTE 11 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The District's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Cod. Sec. P50.108-.109. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 51,337,739
Interest on net OPEB obligation 7,962,059
Adjustment to annual required contribution (9.263,983)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 50,035,815
Contributions made (27.830,973)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 22,204,842
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 181,623,823
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 203,728,665

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2015 and preceding two years were as follows:

Percentage
of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2013 $ 46,785,275 62.0% $ 151,760,155
June 30, 2014 $ 49,074,045 39.3% $ 181,523,823
June 30, 2015 $ 50,035,815 55.6% $ 203,728,665

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was unfunded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $615.2 million, and the actuarial value
of assets was $3.8 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $611.4 million.
For fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, the covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the plan) was $218.4 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 36 percent. The OPEB
plan is currently operated as a pay-as-you-go plan and contributions toward prefunding began during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The District signed an irrevocable trust agreement on October 18, 2012
and began accumulating funds in a Trust Fund, presented as the Retiree Benefits Trust Fund.

(Continued)
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NOTE 11 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the July 1, 2013, actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.75 percent initially, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.64 percent after twelve years and a discount rate of 4.39 percent.
The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2015, was 23 years.

See required supplementary information following the notes to the basic financial statements, which
presents multi-year trend information on whether assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the plan liabilities.

NOTE 12 — JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

Schools Insurance Authority: The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers
Authority, Schools Insurance Authority (SIA), for the operation of a common risk management and
insurance program for property and liability coverage. The joint powers agency is to be self-sustaining
through member premiums. SIA enters into insurance agreements for coverage above self-insured
retention layers, whereby it cedes various amounts of risk to other insurance companies or joint power
authorities. SIA's Property, Liability and Workers' Compensation Programs provide self-insured retention
of $100,000, $750,000 and $1,000,000 per incident, respectively. The District continues to carry
commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in
the prior year. The following is a summary of financial information for SIA at June 30, 2015:

Total assets $ 121,132,593
Deferred outflows $ 590,244
Total liabilities $ 58,450,882
Deferred inflows $ 1,112,114
Total net position $ 61792415
Total revenues $ 49,370,021
Total expenses $ 48,719,900
Change in net position $ 650,121

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the Joint Powers
Authority is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

(Continued)
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NOTE 12 — JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Self-Insured Schools of California: The District is 2 member with other school districts of a Joint Powers
Authority, Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC). SISC provides a means of combining the
administration of claims and obtains lower insurance rates for the benefit of public schools, colleges or
other educational agencies. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. The following is a summary of financial information
for SISC at September 30, 2014:

Total assets $ 304,614,232
Total liabilities $ 159,022,820
Total net position $ 145,591,412
Total revenues $ 1,519,341,871
Total expenses $ 1,541,013,235
Change in net position $ (21,671,364)

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the Joint Powers
Authority is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially
affect the financial position or results of operations of the District.

The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under terms of
the grants, it is management's opinion that any required reimbursements of future revenue offsets
subsequently determined will not have a material effect on the District's financial position or results of
operations.

At June 30, 2015 the District had approximately $ 11,300,000 in outstanding construction contract
commitments.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budget Variance
Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
LCFF:
State apportionment $ 259,918,708 $ 254,373,609 $ 253,388,065 $ (985,544)
Local sources 56.746.632 62,139,575 62,151,276 11,701
Total LCFF 316,665,340 316,513,184 315,539.341 (973,843)
Federal sources 47,850,912 48,034,211 43,153,693 (4,880,518)
Other state sources 43,568,653 79,070,297 62,827,008 (16,243,289)
Other local sources 6.550.559 10,595,831 11,130,531 534,700
Total revenues 414 635 464 454 213,623 432,650,573 (21,562,950)
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 171,535,936 167,973,410 165,315,040 2,658,370
Classified salaries 57,197,760 53,805,341 51,468,603 2,336,738
Employee benefits 122,455,834 135,771,975 134,164,354 1,607,621
Books and supplies 18,489,350 21,041,105 14,881,152 6,159,953
Contract services and operating
expenditures 52,681,439 60,395,917 57,364,014 3,031,903
Other outgo - 1,397 240,854 (239,457)
Capital outlay 748,868 20,928,399 2,576,920 18,351,479
Debt service:
Principal retirement 5,283 117,688 115,184 2,504
Interest 3,061,383 3,012,061 2,706,011 306,050
Total expenditures 426.175.853 463,047,293 428,832,132 34,215,161
(Deficiency) excess of revenues
(under) over expenditures (11.540.389) (8,833,770) 3,818,441 12,652,211
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,500,643 2,705,816 3,007,486 301,670
Transfers out (34,874) (3,775,417) (3,762,319) 13,098
Proceeds from the issuance of debt - 226,249 226,249 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,465,769 (843,352) (528,584) 314,768
Change in fund balance (9,074,620) (9,677,122) 3,289,857 12,966,979
Fund balance, July 1, 2014 41,494,440 41,494 440 41,494,440 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2015 $ 32419820 § 31.817.318 $ 44784297 $ 12966979

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date

December 1, 2010
December 1, 2012
July 1, 2013

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

& PP

3,760,628

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)
$566,291,438

$632,679,806
$615,169,050

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(UAAL)
$566,291,438

$632,679,806
$611,408,422

Funded
Ratio

0%
0%
1%

Covered
Payroll

$227,500,000
$217,700,000
$218,400,000

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

UAAL as a
Percentage
of
Covered

Payroll
248.9%

290.6%
279.9%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

State Teachers' Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.382%
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 233,056,000
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability

associated with the District 134,692,000

Total net pension liability $§ 367,748,000

District's covered-employee payroll $ 170,012,000
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 137.082%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 76.520%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year
prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.541%
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 61,440,000
District's covered-employee payroll $ 56,813,000
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 108.14%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 83.38%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year
prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

State Teachers' Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
District's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

(Continued)

2015

$ 15,447,858

15,447 858
s -
$ 173,962,000

8.88%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

2015
$ 6,954,207
6,954,207
- M. T
$ 59,079,000
11.77%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A - Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets
are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Education to provide for
revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. The
originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as Required
Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Excess
Fund Expenditures
General Fund:
Capital outlay $ (18,351,479)

These excesses are not in accordance with education Code 42600,

B - Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress

The Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information
which compares, over time, the actuarially accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of
accumulated plan assets.

C - Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate
the elements of the District's Net Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10
years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those
years for which information is available.

D — Schedule of the District's Contributions

The Schedule of the District's Contributions is presented to illustrate the District’s required contributions
relating to the pensions. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is
available.

E — Changes of Benefit Terms

There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required Supplementary Information.

F - Changes of Assumptions

There are no changes in assumptions reported in the Required Supplementary Information.

66.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



/9

96089508 & 25.€9F 8 vove § Zvlcblel $ ¥aLl § Z20eble OIGgee & ZvOOtI Pl § 0cCS6L1 © 7l6¥0v § 1OLOEcv § Seoueeq puny
661199 0€ FLPA] ¥ove GoVIGL LI FTAL 161 ¢0L € 95002¢ I€Zvi0Ch 0gc0¢ 9¥8'1G 65l cece s80UBlRq pUNy |BI0 |
£82°08¢ 0 I IA ¥ore S6v LG 1) oLl 161 20k € 9500¢e OL6SPI LI WA 9¥8"15 0ZG01CE palouisay
916'08¢ - - - = = - 12£'89¢ - - 68521 a|qepuadsuoN
:S80UEejeq pun4
160°268°C - = v ive - 1€8'68 YevaLl G08SIe 06069t 8ZI'EGE AN son|Iqey| [ejo L
€91289¢ - - ovbe = - - G5v'G96 GIG €98 BGE GO ¥6EGv. Spuny 18Y}0 0} 8NQ
168121 = - = # = = - £22'8Ll = 829°¢ anuaAas pauseaun
£80'¢60'c $ - $ < $ J08'8er $ - 1£8'68 $S¥'8LL  $ 0GE'06L'L $ 26E'€8. 0§ 69Li¥Z S 02SV9T 8 ajqeAed sjunosoy
‘sangern
S3IONVIVE ANNd ANV S3LLITIAVIT
9629659 § /G2€9l S P9ve § Zblebleh 3 VoLl § Zeocere 01G8ce & Zv00c/ v, § OCEG6Lt $ ViI6WOF S 1OL9SEV § SJossE [Bj0 1
A - - m - = ~ - = - 686'¢CL saunjipuadxa piedaid
12£'99¢ . - = = < # 12€'99¢ - - - fuojusaul s210}S
Leevi'e - s 4 8v0'LL - - 986'G) LIELTY geL'elLl 790°08S') spuny Jayjo woy anQg
£16'v98°9 - = £€6'0¢ ¥oL'L zie'er £99 020'8eL'€ 6EY'€69°) GZb'Z86 118'€L€ S9|qeAIS0RY
0002 B _ B L N = 000'Z - - - JUN022E BUIAjOAS) Ul YSBD
22.'66S'S - - = - 18922 - ¥16'9¢6°Z PrO0LL L 9/0'082°1 L SHUBQ Ul PUB pUBY UO YSeD
¥£6'026°12 $ LGL'E9L  § VOP'T $ 6081912l $ (8¥0°LL) £96'G18°2 128'2€€ $ 662'0L0°L $ (ovs'eekl) § (592°Li6°L) $ 2L1'0.8'C 8 Kinseas) Qunod urysen
s13ssv
e L punj punj punj puny pung pung punj punj pung pung
apIIBNY sayoey saioey $994 S0UBUSJUIBN eusjalen juawdojanaq uopeonp3y sjooyos
Xe| 19)20d Ajunwuion looyos Jadojanag pausjeq pIuD Nnpy 18peyn
yinog funoo

S10Z ‘o€ sunp

SANNL HOrvW-NON 1TV
133HS 30NV 1vd ONINIGWOO
1301d1SI1a TOOHIS d3I4INN ALID OLNIWVHOVS



‘89

G102 ‘0€ dunr 'seduefeq pun4
$10Z ‘1L AInr ‘seouejeq pun4

saoue|eq puny
ul abueyd JoN

(sesn) saounos
Buroueuly Jaylo |ejo )

1IN0 SI9JSuBL|
u| Sigjsuel|

:(sasn) s921nos Bupueuy 1BYIO

sainypuadxs

(Japun) JOAO sBNUBADL
10 (Aouaioyap) ss99x]

66L1000E S ZGL'€OL ¥ore $ G6VIGL L S ¥9LL $ 16Lcole $ 9500¢cZ §$ Ltcwi0ch$ 0geog $ Ob8'1LG § BGlceee o
IS LVE €L 167¢al 001 G998 vl - FISVSVE 625 vve 99191 L1 9E0'6.€ EIgT.S 896°820°¢C
(e19'089'2) = 09¥'L (0L2'se+'2) oLl (ege'zse) (eLv'vel) LLY'2G8 (908'8¥c) (296'615) LBS'¥¥E
(G0ES0E2) - = - = - 6Sl¢L (01%°508) (0g°Z1S) 922 9¢ (0c¥'06¢ 1)
(98%°200°5) - - - = - = (G¥9'6€6) (t29'8el) (80L°Z€) (zZ1gee )
181°20L - = £ 2 - 6€12L SezTvel 162°02F PE6'EL 780'}
(805 E) - 09%"1 (01zsev'e) ¥oIv (€8E2SE) (Zroo61) 18872691 (92670¢) (€61°959) 120°GEG |
IGEBPE LL ] - I8V 1¥6'E 705966 6¥Z ¥95 € 0€6°¢61 yssGeviz ISV OLLBL 68.72¢ 8 yov'88Z vi
000005 = - - - 0007008 - - - ) =
000°506'} - = = - 000'606'L - = - - S
£8€'GYb'9 - - ¥81'89v'¢ 105'966 900'2G1'L 0sL'L 911'98% 1£6'661 % 68t°08
00+°096'¥ - - FAXAA ] - 900°L 052°'s 622'¢6l 26L°60% 10V'v9L°T ¥8Z'6vY'L
620°'808'Z} - = 128'GEE = 1€2'L 085181 £EP'200°LL 8E2'81¢€ 768'652 82¢°20L
¥.9'666'9} - = . - 2 = 6GL'€GS'E L0L'6L1°L £86°606'1 GZZ' LYY
GEEv.8°T) s - - = - = £10°680'9 960'68¥%'% LoV L8e'L 128'916
9£5'658' 1 - - = - - - - €LL'€LL'O 905'916'L 152'69/°‘9
6v0°€/60Z - 0%y 12905} 112'866 99811z € (Z89°2) GEVe80ce 19v'620°81 966 119 GZP'Eeg st
809°€cc ¢l = Tl 12905 1 9771 CEETE A (28972) 029€S0'1 Z6V'6€0¢ GlZZoE ¥ 96€6G
SLLLBE'S - . - 106'966 - = ¥90'c/E') 916'689'G 165'06€ 690°L¥6
181'66L vE - - * - - . 165'959'02 £60'056°01 #9.'816'2 €18'eLe
yL'evs'yl $ + . $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - S IbL'6¥S'PL S
[ punj puny punj pung pungj puny pung puny punj pung
BpUIBAD sanoey 1084 $994 aoueusjulep euajale) juswdojanaq uoneosnp3 sjooyos
xe] 195004 Aunwwo) s|ooyss Jadojaasq pausaq piuD Inpy Jsyey)
yinog Ajuno)

S10Z ‘0€ aunr papu3 JeaA ay; Jo4
SANNd JOrvW-NON 11V
SIONVIVE ANNH NI IONYHO ANV STHNLIANIAXT ‘STNNIATH 40 LNIWILVYLS ONINISNOD
10141S1a TOOHJS d3IdINN ALID OLNIWVHOVS

salnjpuadxa |Bjo |

Jsaiayy
swainal fedouud

:901M8S 199

Aepno |epden

sainjyipuadxa Bunesado

pUB $321ASS JOBJJUOD
sa)ddns pue s)oog
sjyauaq aakoldw3
salees payisse|D
SaUB[es pajesyiua)

Juaung

:sainypuadxy

SONUBAaI [BJO ]

$901N0S |E20| JAYIO
$90IN0S 9B)S JAYI0
$90JN0S |eJapa
e|NwIo4
Buipun4 [0J3U0) [E907
:$aNUBADY



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Student Body Funds

C.K. McClatchy High School

Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks
Receivables
Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

Hiram Johnson High School

Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks
Receivables
Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
$ 248,604 $ 359,576 $ 406,063 $ 202,117
$ 248604 $ 359576 $ 406,063 $ 202,117
$ - $ - $ - $ -
248.604 359,576 406,063 202,117
$ 248604 $ 350576 $ 406,063 $ 202,117
$ 51220 $ 104,526 $ 107,515 $ 48,231
3,500 - - 3,500
9470 - - 9470
3 64190 $ 104526 $ 107,515 § 61.201
$ 318 § 645 $ 381 $ 582
63.872 103.881 107,134 60.619
3 64,190 $ 104,526 % 107,515 $ 61,201
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
Luther Burbank High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks 3 103,499 $ 181,324 $ 163,844 $ 120,979
Receivables - - - -
Stores inventory 1,041 343 - 1,384
Capital assets - - - -
Total assets 3 104540 $ 181,667 $ 163,844 3 122,363
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8 $ 561 $ 32 3 537
Due to student groups 104,632 181,106 163.812 121,826
Total liabilities $ 104540 $ 181,667 $ 163,844 $ 122,363
John F. Kennedy High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 156,303 $ 371,574 $ 330,266 $ 197,611
Receivables - 1,177 - 1,177
Stores inventory - - - -
Capital assets - - - -
Total assets $ 156303 $ 372751 § 330266 $ 198,788
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 29316 $ 2,365 $ 1293 $ 30,388
Due to student groups 126,987 370.386 328,973 168.400
Total liabilities 3 156,303 $ 372751 $ 330266 $ 198,788
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
Rosemont High School
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 49904 $ 203,532 $ 194,046 $ 59,390
Receivables - - - -

Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Due to student groups

Total liabilities

$ 49904 3§ 203532 $ 194046 $ 59.390

49,904 194.046

$ 49804 $ 203532 §$ 194,046 $ 59,390

Hiram Johnson West Campus

Assets:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 81978 $ 282382 $§ 259,061 $ 105,299

Receivables
Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Due to student groups

Total liabilities

$ 81978 § 282382 $ 259,061 § 105,299

$

81,978 282,382 259.061 105,299

$ 81,978 $ 282382 § 250061 §$ 105299

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Charles A. Jones Skills and Education Center

Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks
Receivables
Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups
Total liabilities

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center

Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks
Receivables
Stores inventory
Capital assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
$ 23,816 8,212 8,082 23,946
$ 23,816 8212 8,082 23,946
$ - - - -
23.816 8212 8,082 23,946
$ 23,816 8212 8,082 23,946
$ 66,124 36,488 23,741 78,871
$ 66,124 36,488 23,741 78.871
66.124 36,488 23,741 78.871
$ 66,124 36,488 23741 78,871

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
Elementary and Middle Schools
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 620484 $ 1191250 $ 1,273,149 $ 538,585
Receivables - - - -
Stores inventory - - - -
Capital assets - - - -
Total assets 3 620484 $ 1191250 $ 1273149 § 538,585
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ -
Due to student groups 620.484 1,191,250 1,273,149 538.585
Total liabilities 3 620484 $ 1191250 § 1273149 538,585
Total Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash on hand and in banks $ 1401832 $ 2,738,864 $ 2,765,767 $ 1,375,029
Receivables - 1,177 - 1,177
Stores inventory 4,541 343 - 4,884
Capital assets 9.470 - - 9470
Total assets $ 1415943 §$ 2740384 $ 2765767 $ 1,390,560
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 29642 $ 3571 % 1,706 $ 31,507
Due to student groups 1,386,301 2,736,813 2,764,061 1.359.053
Total liabilities $ 1415943 §$ 2740384 $§ 2765767 $ 1,390,560
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2015

Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of California, was established
on July 7, 1936. The territory covered by the District does not include certain areas of the City of
Sacramento, but does include some contiguous territory located outside city boundaries, but within
Sacramento County boundaries. The District operated forty elementary schools (grades K-6), eight
elementary/middle schools (grades K-8), six middle schools (grades 7-8), one middle school (grades 7-9)
one 7-12 middle/high school, seven high schools (grades 9-12), one independent study school, two
continuation/alternative schools, two adult education centers, two special education centers and forty-four
children's centers and preschools, serving infants through age 12. Fourteen charter schools also
operated in the District serving kindergarten though grade twelve, five of which were governed by the
District Board of Education.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires
Darrel Woo President November 2018
Christina Pritchett Vice President November 2016
Jay Hansen Second Vice President November 2018
Gustavo Arroyo Member November 2016
Ellen Cochrane Member November 2018*
Diana Rodriguez Member November 2016
Jessie Ryan Member November 2016**
Asami Saito Student Member June 2015***

ADMINISTRATION

José L. Banda*™**
Superintendent

Lisa Allen
Interim Deputy Superintendent

Iris Taylor, Ed.D.
Interim Chief Academic Officer

Gerardo Castillo, CPAT
Chief Business Officer

Gabe Ross
Chief Communications Officer

Cancy McArn
Chief Human Resources Officer

Elliot Lopez
Chief Information Officer

Cathy Allen
Chief Operations Officer

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2015

ADMINISTRATION
(Continued)

Al Rogers, Ed.D.11
Chief Strategy Officer

Doug Huscher
Interim Assistant Superintendent of Equity

*Jeff Cuneo — Term ended November 2014. Ellen Cochrane voted into office December 2014.
**Patrick Kennedy resigned effective August 8, 2014. Member Jessie Ryan voted into office December

2014.
***Elizabeth Barry voted into office as the student member in June 2015 for the 2015-16 fiscal year.

****Dr. Sara Noguchi — through July 17, 2014. José L. Banda — July 17, 2014 — present.
tKen Forrest resigned effective August 31, 2014. Gerardo Castillo, CPA is Chief Business Officer.

11Al Rogers, effective on July 1, 2015.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revised
Second Second
Period Period Annual
Report Report* Report
District
Elementary:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third 12,657 12,668
Fourth through Sixth 9,531 9,502
Seventh and Eighth 6,179 6,167
Special Education 220 221
Community Day School 12 16
28,5989 28,574
Secondary:
Ninth through Twelfth 10,135 9,959
Special Education 167 152
Compulsory Continuation Education 222 208
Total Secondary 10,514 10,319
District ADA Totals 39,113 38,893
Charter Schools
Bowling Green Elementary - Classroom-Based:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third 473 473 476
Fourth through Sixth 344 344 344
Total Bowling Green Elementary Charter 817 817 820
George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science -
Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth 279 279 279
New Joseph Bonnheim - Classroom-Based:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third 154 154 154
Fourth through Sixth 85 85 83
Total New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 239 239 237
New Technology High - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth 253 253 250
The MET - Non-Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth 292 -
The MET - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth - 292 287

Total Charter Schools

1,880 1,880 1,873

* |Includes the effect of ADA adjustments identified in Finding 2014-003, as well as other adjustments
from the District's internal inspection of attendance documents.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Statutory Reduced

Minutes Minutes

Require- Require-

Grade Level ment ment

District
Kindergarten 36,000 35,000
Grade 1 50,400 49,000
Grade 2 50,400 49,000
Grade 3 50,400 49,000
Grade 4 54,000 52,500
Grade 5 54,000 52,500
Grade 6 54,000 52,500
Grade 7 54,000 52,500
Grade 8 54,000 52,500
Grade 9 64,800 63,000
Grade 10 64,800 63,000
Grade 11 64,800 63,000
Grade 12 64,800 63,000

Bowling Green Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 34,971
Grade 1 50,400 48,960
Grade 2 50,400 48,960
Grade 3 50,400 48,960
Grade 4 54,000 52,457
Grade 5 54,000 52,457
Grade 6 54,000 52,457

George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science - Classroom Based

2014-2015
Actual
Minutes

35,600
49,540
49,540
49,540
52,560
52,560
52,560
55,680
55,680
63,416
63,416
63,416
63,416

35,600
50,030
50,030
50,030
53,380
53,380
53,380

Grade 9 64,800 62,949
Grade 10 64,800 62,949
Grade 11 64,800 62,949
Grade 12 64,800 62,949

New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 34,971
Grade 1 50,400 48,960
Grade 2 50,400 48,960
Grade 3 50,400 48,960
Grade 4 54,000 52,457
Grade 5 54,000 52,457
Grade 6 54,000 52,457

New Technology High School - Classroom Based

Grade 9 64,800 62,949
Grade 10 64,800 62,949
Grade 11 64,800 62,949
Grade 12 64,800 62,949

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.

63,601
63,601
63,601
63,601

39,160
59,162
59,162
59,162
59,162
59,162
59,162

65,971
65,971
65,971
65,971

Number
of Days
Traditional
Calendar

178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178
178

178
178
178
178
178
178
178

178
178
178
178

178
178
178
178
178
178
178

175
175
175
175

Number
of Days
Multitrack
Calendar

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Status

In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
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Federal
Catalog
Number

U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

of Education

84.027
84.173
84.027A
84.173A

84.027

84.010
84.010
84.010

84.010

84.002A
84.002

84.002A

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education IDEA: Basic and Local Assistance

Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611
Special Education: IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B,
Section 619 (Age 3-5)

Special Education IDEA: Preschool Local Entitlement,

Part B, Sec 611 (Age 3-5)

Special Education: Alternative Dispute Resolution,
Part B, Sec 611

Special Education; IDEA, Mental Health Services,
Part B, Sec 611

Subtotal Special Education Cluster

NCLB: Title | Program:

NCLB: Title |, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income
and Neglected

NCLB: Title I, Part D, Subpart 2, Local Delinquent
Program

NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income
and Neglected

NCLB: Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent
Programs

Subtotal NCLB: Title | Program

Adult Education Program:
Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL
Section 231
Adult Education: Adult Basic Secondary Education
Section 231
Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics
Education Local Grant

Subtotal Adult Education Program

(Continued)

Pass-

Through

Entity

Identifying
Number

13379
13430
13682
13007

14468

14329
14357
14329

14357

14508
13978

14109

Federal
Expend-
itures

$ 8391977
253,641
396,246

30,274

477,510

9.549.648

18,337,276
313,752
247,706

43817

-

18,942 551

131,575
41,621
60,359

233,555
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Pass-
Through
Federal Entity Federal
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures
U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education (Continued)
Carl D. Perkins Program:
84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education: Adult,
Sec. 132 (Vocational Education) 14893 $ 978,641
84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education:
Secondary, Sec 131 (Vocational Education) 14894 550,904
Subtotal Carl D. Perkins Program 1,529,545
84.215L Smaller Learning Community * 6,464
84.367 NCLB: Title Il, Part A, Improving Teacher Quality
Local Grants 14341 3,333,083
84.184 Safe and Supportive Schools Programmatic Intervention
(S3) 15164 144,796
84.126 Department of Rehabilitation: Workability I, Transitions
Partnership Program 10006 191,566
84.181 Special Education: Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761 139,420
84.365 NCLB: Title Ill, Limited English Proficiency (LEP)
Student Program 14346 976,680
84.060 Indian Education (From Federal Government) 10011 31,593
84.063 Pell Grants * 1,513,725
84.196 NCLB: Title X, McKinney-Vento Homeless Children
Assistance Grants 14332 113,179
84.287 NCLB: Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community
Learning Centers Program 14535, 14349 5,398,633
84.330 NCLB: Title |, Part G: Advanced Placement (AP)
Test Fee Reimbursement Program * 179,923
84.377 NCLB: Title I, School Improvement Grant (SIG)
for QEIA Schools 14971 1,026,527
Total U.S. Department of Education 43,310,888
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
California Department of Education

93.600 Head Start

93.243 Good Behavior

93.576 Refugee Children Supplemental Assistance Program

93.596 Child Development: Federal General (CCTR) and State
Preschool (CSPP); Rs 5026, Family Child Care Home
(CFCC)

93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living

93.778 Medi-Cal Billing Option

Total U.S. Department Health and Human Services

U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed through
California Department of Education

Child Nutrition Cluster:

10.555 National School Lunch Program
10.559 Child Nutrition: Summer Food Service Program
Operations

Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster
10.558 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Defense

12.UKN ROTC

U.S. Department of Labor

17.259 A Title | Youth-Out-of-School Ind. Ser
Total Federal Programs

*

District is unable to provide PCA numbers.

Pass-

Through

Entity

Identifying
Number

10016

24791

13609
10013

13396

13004

13666

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.

Federal
Expend-
itures

$ 10,192,768
86,318
64,683

757,285
113,746
2.332.375

13,547,175

15,621,988
589,559
16,111,547
3,640,393

19.751.940

321.664

211,800

$§ 77143467
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

There were no audit adjustments proposed to any funds of the District.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

(UNAUDITED)
(Budget)
2016 015 2014 2013

General Fund
Revenues and other

financing sources $ 469223723 $ 435658059 $ 409365428 § 382,236,274
Expenditures 470,327,796 428,832,132 386,209,029 383,940,424
Other uses and transfers out 1,730,000 3.762.319 1.071,304 -
Total outgo 472,057,796 432.594.451 387,280,333 383.940.424
Change in fund balance $ (2834073) $ 3063608 $ 22085095 $§ (1.704.150)
Ending fund balance $ 41723975 § 44558048 § 41 494440 $ 19,409,345
Available reserves $ 20204020 $ 12763133 $ 17876795 $ 8,007,454
Designated for economic

uncertainties $§ 18763133 $ 12763133 §$ 13,876,133 § 8007454
Undesignated fund balance $ 1440887 3 - $ 3900662 $ -
Available reserves as

percentages of total

outgo 4.3% 2.9% 4.6% 21%
All Funds
Total long-term liabilities $1.007,708,987 $1.042411,701 $ 661,146,173 $ 576,149,370
Average daily attendance

at P-2, excluding Adult

and Charter School 38,173 39,113 39,985 40,449

The General Fund fund balance has increased by $23,444,553 over the past three years. The District
has incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an operating deficit
during the 2014-2015 fiscal year. The fiscal year 2015-2016 budget projects a decrease of $2,834,073.
For a district this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least 2% of total General Fund
expenditures, transfers out, and other uses. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District has met this
requirement.

Total long-term liabilities have increased by $466,262,331 over the past two years, due primarily to the
issuance of General Obligation Bonds and Lease Revenue Bonds (Note 7 to the financial statements).

Average daily attendance has decreased by 1,336 over the past two years. The District anticipates a
decrease of 940 ADA for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Included in District
Financial Statements, or

Charter Schools Chartered by District Separate Report
Aspire Capitol Heights Academy Separate Report
Bowling Green Charter Elementary Included as Charter Schools Fund
California Montessori Project Capitol Campus Separate Report
Capitol Collegiate Academy Separate Report

George Washington Carver School of Arts and

Science Included as Charter Schools Fund
Language Academy of Sacramento Separate Report
MET Sacramento Charter High School Included as Charter Schools Fund
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School Included as Charter Schools Fund
New Technology High School Included as Charter Schools Fund
Oak Park Preparatory Academy Separate Report
Sacramento Charter High School Separate Report
Sol Aureus College Preparatory Separate Report
St. HOPE Public School 7 Separate Report

Yav Pem Suab Academy

Separate Report

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FIRST 5 REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Academic
and Support Child
Services* Care*
Revenues
Other local sources $ 238010 § 741,626
Expenditures:
Certificated salaries 118,394 150,712
Classified salaries 30,794 253,069
Employee benefits 41,934 259,108
Books and supplies 45,313 16,852
Contract services and operating
expenditures 1,575 29,391
Indirect costs 32,494
Total expenditures 238.010 741,626
Change in fund balance - -
Fund balance, July 1, 2014 - -
Fund balance, June 30, 2015 $ - $ -

*

Revenues and expenditures for the First 5 Grant are reflected in the District's Child Development
Fund. See page ___ of the financial statements for a complete presentation of the Child Development
Fund.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A - Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding
the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

B - Schedule of Instructional Time

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives
for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time
offered by the District, and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections
46201 through 46206.

C - Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards

OMB Circular A-133 requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all federally funded programs. This
schedule was prepared to comply with A-133 requirements, and is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

The following schedule provides a reconciliation between revenues reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances and the related expenditures reported on the
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The reconciling amounts represent Federal funds that have
been recorded as revenues that have not been expended by June 30, 2015.

CFDA
Description Number Amount
Total Federal revenues, Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances $ 77,952,874
Plus: Vocational programs spent from prior year awards 84.048 19,007
Chafee Foster Care funds spent from prior year
awards 93.674 106,454
Special Education funds spend from prior year
awards 84.173 7,998
Less: Child Nutrition: Summer Food Service Program
Operations Funds not spent 10.559 (904,611)
Medi-Cal Billing Option spent from prior year
awards 93.778 (38,255)
Total Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards $ 77143467
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (Continued)

D - Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Financial Report to
the audited financial statements.

E - Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis - Unaudited

This schedule provides information on the District's financial condition over the past three years and its
anticipated condition for the 2015-2016 fiscal year, as required by the State Controller's Office. The
information in this schedule has been derived from audited information.

F - Schedule of Charter Schools

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial
reporting by Charter Schools.

G - Schedule of First 5 Revenues and Expenses

This schedule provides information about the First 5 Sacramento County Program.

NOTE 2 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM
Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of districts which

adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714 and 44929. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District did not adopt this program.
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Crowe Horwath.
Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Harwaih International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the State of California's 2014-15 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (the "Audit Guide") to the state laws and
regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Procedures

Description Performed
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study Yes
Continuation Education Yes
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive No, see below
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools No, see below
Middle or Early College High Schools No, see below
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Regional Occupational Centers or Programs Maintenance of Effort Yes
Adult Education Maintenance of Effort Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After School Education and Safety Program:

General requirements Yes

After school Yes

Before school Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Common Core Implementation Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Attendance, for charter schools Yes
Mode of Instruction, for charter schools Yes
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study,

for charter schools Yes
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction, for charter schools Yes
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom-Based,

for charter schools Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program No, see below

(Continued)
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The District did not offer an Early Retirement Incentive Program; therefore, we did not perform any
procedures related to the Early Retirement Incentive Program.

The District does not have any Juvenile Court Schools; therefore, we did not perform any procedures
related to Juvenile Court Schools.

The District does not have any Middle or Early College High Schools; therefore, we did not perform any
procedures related to Middle or Early College High Schools.

The District did not receive Charter School Facility Grant Program funding in the current year; therefore,
we did not perform any procedures related to the Charter School Facility Grant Program.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations, as listed
above.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations as listed above,
of Sacramento City Unified School District. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the State of California's 2074-15 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the state laws and regulations listed
above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sacramento City Unified
School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with state laws and
regulations. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sacramento City Unified
School District's compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

As described in Finding 2015-002 in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned
Costs, Sacramento City Unified School District did not comply with the requirements regarding Regional
Occupational Centers or Programs Maintenance of Effort. Compliance with such requirements is
necessary, in our opinion, for Sacramento City Unified School District to comply with state laws and
regulations applicable to Regional Occupational Centers or Programs Maintenance of Effort.

Qualified Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the state laws and
regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2015. Further, based on our examination, for

items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate that Sacramento City Unified School District
had not complied with the state laws and regulations.

(Continued)
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Other Matter

Sacramento City Unified School District's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is
included in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Sacramento City
Unified School District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
State Compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and
the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of California's 2014-15 Guide for Annual

Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

C(owe’ Horwan LLE

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sacramento City Unified
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sacramento City Unified
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento
City Unified School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

We identified a deficiency involving internal control that we communicated to management as identified in
the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2015-001.

(Continued)
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sacramento City Unified School District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Response to Finding

Sacramento City Unified School District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Sacramento City Unified School
District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

c(owb Horwasts LLE

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
THE FIRST 5§ SACRAMENTO COUNTY PROGRAM

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance on First 5 Sacramento County Program

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Program Guidelines for the First 5 Sacramento County Program that couid
have a direct and material effect on the First 5 Sacramento County Program for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its First 5 Sacramento County Program.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance on Sacramento City Unified School District's
First 5 Sacramento County Program based on our audit of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on First 5
Sacramento County Program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on First 5 Sacramento County Program

In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its First 5
Sacramento County Program for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing over compliance

and results of that testing based on requirements of the First 5 Sacramento County Program.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable of any other purposes.

C{ow& Horwasts LLE

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Sacramento City Unified School District's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2015. Sacramento City Unified School District’'s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sacramento City Unified School
District's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sacramento City Unified
School District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

(Continued)
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Sacramento City Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sacramento City Unified School
District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified
School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

(Caowe Horwars L

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



SACRAMENTOQ CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? Yes X _No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)? Yes X __No

Identification of major programs:

CFEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster
84.287 NCLB: Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community
Learning Centers Program
93.778 Medi-Cal Billing Option
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $ 2,314,304
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
STATE AWARDS
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
state programs: Qualified
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUEST!ONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SECTION |l - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2015-001 DEFICIENCY - STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTING (30000)
Criteria

Education Code Section 48930 (and California Department of Education’s “Accounting Procedures for
Student Organization Handbook”) requires student body organizations to follow the regulations set by the
Governing Board of the school district.

Condition

Bowling Green Charter Elementary School:

. No record of receipt books issued to teachers.

. Deposits are not supported by detailed schedules defining the number of items receipted and the unit
price per item.

. Deposits are not performed on a timely basis.

C.K. McClatchy High School:
No receipts are issued when funds are turned in to ASB coordinator.
Deposits are not double-counted or properly approved.
. Student store inventories are not reviewed periodically to determine propriety as to character and
quantities.
. Lack of proper approval for revenue-producing activities; no principal or district approval.

Camelia Basic Elementary School:

. No record of receipt books issued to student clubs.

. Deposits are not supported by detailed schedules defining the number of items receipted and the unit
price per item.

. Receipts are not issued when funds are turned in to the ASB intermediate coordinator.

. ASB intermediate coordinator performs counts and deposits; improper segregation of duties.

Isador Cohen Elementary School:
. Deposits are not supported by detailed schedules defining the number of items receipted and the unit
price per item.

Phoebe Hearst Elementary School:
. Deposits are not supported by detailed schedules defining the number of items receipted and the unit
price per item.

Sam Brannan Middle School:
« No record of receipt books issued to student clubs.

West Campus High School:
« No record of receipt books issued to student clubs.
. Receipts are not issued when funds turned in to the ASB intermediate coordinator.
. Lack of proper approval for revenue-producing activities; no principal or district approval.
. Student store inventories are not reviewed periodically to determine propriety as to character and
quantities.
Profit and loss statements for the student store are not reviewed.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2015-001 DEFICIENCY - STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTING (30000) (Continued)
Effect

ASB funds couid potentially be misappropriated.

Cause

Adequate internal control procedures surrounding ASB accounts have not been implemented and
enforced.

Fiscal Impact

Not determinable.
Recommendation

The District should implement and enforce internal controls, including:
. Maintain a record of receipt books issued to student clubs and/or teachers for fundraiser's.
Receipts should be issued and a dual count should be performed when funds are turned into the ASB
secretary by the club advisors and teachers.
. Cash should be deposited on a timely basis.
Revenue-producing activities should be approved by the Principal, student council/advisor, where
applicable, and in accordance with District policy.
. Student store inventory counts and profit-loss and monthly activity summaries should be performed
regularly and reviewed/approved by the Principal or other designated site personnel.

Corrective Action Plan

Management acknowledged the lack of controls documented above and noted that these controls will be
implemented going forward.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SECTION lil - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2015-002 DEFICIENCY - REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL CENTERS OR PROGRAMS MAINTENANCE
OF EFFORT (40000)

Criteria

The LEA is required to expend regional occupational centers or programs funds in the 2014-15 fiscal year
of at least the amount expended or amount of revenue received for that purpose in 2012-13 if that is less.

Condition

In 2014-15 the District did not expend more than the amount expended or received in 2012-13. In
2014-15 the District expended $1,652,104, however, in 2012-13 the District expended $1,819,598 and
received $1,805,360 in funding.

Effect

Based on the finding we have determined that the District is out of compliance with the Regional
Occupational Centers or Programs Maintenance of Effort requirement.

Cause

The District did not have a control in place to ensure that the maintenance of effort was met.
Fiscal Impact

There is no fiscal impact for this finding.

Recommendation

We recommend that the District implement procedures to ensure they meet the maintenance of effort
requirement for ROC/P.

Corrective Action Plan

The District will review the maintenance of effort requirement during the year to ensure they are in
compliance.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation
2014-001

At various school sites selected for testing
the following issues were noted:

Rosa Parks K-8 School:

. There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being performed.

. There is no evidence of student store
profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

« Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. Collections are not supported by
detailed schedules defining the number
of items receipted and the unit price per
item.

. There is no evidence of district approval
of fundraising activities.

. There is no evidence of approval for
purchases in the ASB minutes.

Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary School:

- Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. Collections are not supported by
detailed schedules defining the number
of items receipted and the unit price per
item.

. As there were no supporting deposit
receipts, it could not be determined if
deposits were being made on a timely
basis.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

- A  monthly report of financial
transactions of the various club
accounts is not reviewed on timely
basis.

George Washington Carver School of Arts

and Science;

. Collections are not supported by
detailed schedules defining the number
of items receipted and the unit price per
item.

. There is no evidence of approval for
purchases in the ASB minutes.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

Current Status

Partially implemented

(Continued)

District Explanation
If Not Implemented

See current year finding
2015-001.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation

2014-001 (Continued)

Albert Einstein Middle School:

. There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being performed.

. There is no evidence of student store
profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

. Daily sales logs for the student store did
not tie to the Daily Cash repont.

. There is no evidence of approval for
purchases in the ASB minutes.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

American Legion High School:

Deposits are not made in a timely
manner.

. There is no evidence of approval for
purchases in the ASB minutes.

. A monthly report of financial
transactions of the various club
accounts is not reviewed on timely
basis.

Elder Creek Elementary School:

« Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. Deposits are not supported by detailed
schedules defining the number of items
receipted and the unit price per item.

.A monthly report of financial
transactions of the wvarious club
accounts is not reviewed on timely
basis.

Hiram Johnson High School:

. Cash receipts are not recorded into a
separate log when issued for funds
turned into the office.

. The ASB secretary does not maintain a
record of receipt books issued to the
student clubs for the receipt of cash.

. There is no evidence of site and district

approval of fundraising activities.

There is no evidence of student store

inventory counts being performed.

There is no evidence of student store

profit and loss statements being

reviewed.

Current Status

(Continued)

District Explanation
If Not Implemented
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation

2014-001 (Continued)

Caroline Wenzel Elementary School:

. Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. Supporting receipts are not maintained
separately for each fundraiser.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.
Fundraising activites are approved
verbally by the Principal.

School of Engineering and Sciences:

. Cash turned in from fundraising are not
recorded for individual activities.

« There is no evidence of district approval
of fundraising activities.

. There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being performed.

. There is no evidence of student store
profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

. There is no evidence of approval for
purchases in the ASB minutes.

John F. Kennedy High School:

. Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being performed.

. There is no evidence of student store
profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

.A monthly report of financial
transactions of the various club
accounts is not prepared and reviewed.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

Sutter Middle School:

. There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being reviewed.

. There is no evidence of student store
profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

Matsuyama Elementary School:

. Receipts are not issued when funds are
turned into the Secretary.

. There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

Current Status

(Continued)

District Explanation
If Not Implemented
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation

2014-001 (Continued)

Arthur A. Benjamin Health Professions
High School:

Supporting receipts are not maintained
separately for each fundraiser.

Cash turned in from fundraising are not
recorded for individual activities.

There is no evidence of site and district
approval of fundraising activities.

There is no evidence of student store
inventory counts being performed.

. There is no evidence of student store

profit and loss statements being
prepared and reviewed.

There is no evidence that student store
tally sheets are reconciled to cash
collected.

A monthly report of financial
transactions of the wvarious club
accounts is not reviewed on timely
basis.

John Cabrillo Elementary School:
. A monthly report of financial

transactions of the wvarious club
accounts is not reviewed by the
principal.

Receipts are not recorded when issued
by the Secretary.

Student store inventory counts and
profit-loss and  monthly  activity
summaries should be performed
regularly and reviewed/approved by the
Principal or other designated site
personnel.

Monthly report of financial transaction of
the various club accounts should be
prepared and reviewed by school site on
timely basis.

Receipts should be issued and signed
when funds are deposited into the ASB
office.

Deposits should be supported by
detailed schedules defining the number
of items receipted and unit price per
item.

Current Status

(Continued)

District Explanation
If Not Implemented
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation

2014-001 (Continued)

. Formal approval for fundraising activities
by the Student council, Principal, and
District should be performed as
applicable.

. Supporting  receipts  should be
maintained  separately for each
fundraiser and should total to the cash
collection from each fundraiser.

. Cash turned in from fundraising should
be recorded for individual activities.

. Student Store tally sheets should be
reconciled to cash collected.

.ASB funds spent should be
appropriately approved and documented
in the ASB minutes.

2014-002

Eight students were improperly included
in the Free and Reduced Meal Program,
at multiple school sites. The District was
unable to provide any documentation that
the students were approved in the current
year for FRMP.

The District should ensure that all
appropriate documentation is retained
and updated for all students receiving
Free and Reduced lunches.

2014-003

Caleb Greenwood Elementary School -

Grades TK/KN-3:

. One student was improperly counted as
present for two days.

Albert Einstein Middle School - Grades

7-8:

. One student was improperly counted as
present for one day.

John F. Kennedy High School - Grades

9-12:

. One student was improperly counted as
present for one day.

Current Status

Implemented

Implemented

(Continued)

District Explanation
If Not Implemented
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Finding/Recommendation

2014-003 (Continued)

George Washington Carver School of Arts

and Science:

. One student was improperly counted as
present for one day.

We recommend that the attendance clerk
reconciles attendance log with attendance
records to ensure attendance is
accurately recorded. The District should
revise and resubmit the Second Period
Report of Attendance, reflecting the
disallowance of ADA.

2014-004

At Nicholas Elementary School, we noted
one student attended Kindergarten from
9/4/12-12/12/12 then he was dis-enrolled.
The student re-enrolled in Kindergarten at
the school for the 2013-14 school year;
however, a continuation form was not
signed for him to continue past 180 days.
Total disallowed ADA was .09.

At Susan B. Anthony Elementary School,
we noted the student continuation form
utilized was not approved by CDE. We
noted the form did not include the
anniversary date or the date to which the
student would continue. It was further
noted, this school site did not use the
approved form  for  Kindergarten
continuance for all students and as such,
all ADA generated from students who are
attending kindergarten for the second
time during the 2013-14 school year is
disallowed. Total disallowed ADA was
1.98.

We recommend the school sites prepare
the correct form for all students continuing
in kindergarten for a second year. The
form can be found at the CDE website.
Additionally, the District should revise the
Period Two Report of Attendance to
properly reflect the disallowed ADA.

District Explanation
Current Status If Not Implemented

Implemented
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Crowe Horwath.
Crowe Horwath LLP
independent Member Crowe Horwath Intemational

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Professional standards require that we communicate certain matters to keep you adequately informed
about matters related to the financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant
and relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. We communicate such
matters in this report.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Our responsibility is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities and does not relieve management of
their responsibilities. Refer to our engagement letter with the District for further information on the
responsibilities of management and of Crowe Horwath LLP.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY UNDER GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of the Districts compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or disclosures. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT

We are to communicate an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Accordingly, the
following matters will be discussed during our meeting with you.

o How we addressed the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
e Our approach to internal control relevant to the audit.

e The concept of materiality in planning and executing the audit, focusing on the factors considered
rather than on specific thresholds or amounts.



¢ Your views and knowledge about matters you consider warrant our attention during the audit, as well
as your views on;
o The allocation of responsibilities between you and management.
o The entity's objectives and strategies, and the related business risks that may result in
material misstatements.
o Significant communications with regulators.
Other matters you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

Significant Accounting Policies: The Board of Education should be informed of the initial selection of and
changes in significant accounting policies or their application. Also, the Board of Education should be
aware of methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas where there is a lack of authoritative consensus.
We believe management has the primary responsibility to inform the Board of Education about such

matters. To assist the Board of Education in its oversight role, we also provide the following.

Accounting Standard

Impact of Adoption

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The
primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support
for pensions that is provided by other entities.

The District has retroactively implemented this
Statement for the year ended June 30, 2015
resulting in restated net position at July 1, 2014,
as described in Note 1 to the Financial
Statements. The District modified its presentation
of pension liabilities in the footnotes to meet the
new GASB requirements. In addition, required
supplementary information was included in the
financial statements in accordance with the new
GASB requirements.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. The objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments that
extend and receive nonexchange financial
guarantees.

Adoption of this Statement did not have a material
impact on the District’s financial position or results
of operations.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition
for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date — an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68. This standard requires a
government to recognize a beginning deferred
outflow of resources for its pension contributions
made during the time between the measurement
date of the beginning net pension liability and the
beginning of the initial fiscal year of
implementation of the new pension standards.
Recognition of this amount will eliminate a
potential source of understatement of restated
beginning net position and expense in the first
year of a government’s implementation of GASB
Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions.”

The District has recorded deferred outflow of
resources for its pension contributions made
during the time between the measurement date of
the beginning net position liability and the
beginning of the initial fiscal year of
implementation of the new pension standards.




Accounting Standard

Impact of Adoption

Significant Unusual Transactions.

No such matters noted.

Significant Accounting Policies in
Controversial or Emerging Areas.

No such matters noted.

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates: Further, accounting estimates are an integral part of

the financial statements prepared by management and are based upon management’s current
judgments. These judgments are based upon knowledge and experience about past and current events

and assumptions about future events.

Certain estimates are particularly sensitive because of their

significance and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management'’s current judgments and may be subject to significant change in the near term.

The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the District’s year-end financial
statements, the process used by management in formulating these particularly sensitive accounting
estimates and the primary basis for our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates.

Significant Accounting
Estimate

Process Used by Management

Basis for Our Conclusions

Local Control Funding
Formula

Management calculates an LCFF
Target and LCFF Floor to determine
their funding amount. The LCFF
Target is calculated using a Base
Grant Funding, Supplemental Grant
Funding, Concentration Grant
Funding, and Add-On Funding. The
LFCC Floor is calculated using a
Floor Entitlement, Current Year Gap
Funding, Economic Recovery
Target, and Additional LCFF State
Aid to Meet the Minimum. The LCFF
calculation also assumes a cost-of-
living adjustment.

We tested the propriety of
information underlying
management’s estimates.

Useful Lives of Fixed
Assets

Management has determined the
economic useful lives of fixed assets
based on past history of similar
types of assets, future plans as to
their use, and other factors that
impact their economic value to the
District.

We tested the propriety of
information underlying
management's estimates.

Claims Liability

The claims liability was determined
by management by a process of
applying third party actuarial studies
and rolling forward their assumptions
to the end of the fiscal year.

We tested this accounting
estimate by evaluating, on a test
basis, the information listed and
by recalculating the factors
applied by management.




Significant Accounting

Estimate Process Used by Management Basis for Our Conclusions
Pension and Amounts reported for pension and We evaluated the
Postretirement Obligations | postretirement obligations require reasonableness of these

management to use estimates that estimates and assumptions.
may be subject to significant change
in the near term. These estimates
are based on projection of the
weighted average discount rate, rate
of increase in future compensation
levels, and weighted average
expected long-term rate of return on
pension assets.

AUDITOR’S JUDGMENTS ABOUT QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PRACTICES

We are to discuss with you our comments about the following matters related to the District’s accounting
policies and financial statement disclosures. Accordingly, these matters will be discussed during our
meeting with you.

o The appropriateness of the accounting policies to the particular circumstances of the entity,
considering the need to balance the cost of providing information with the likely benefit to users of the
entity's financial statements.

s The overall neutrality, consistency, and clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements.
e The effect of the timing of transactions in relation to the period in which they are recorded.

e The potential effect on the financial statements of significant risks and exposures, and uncertainties
that are disclosed in the financial statements.

e The extent to which the financial statements are affected by unusual transactions including
nonrecurring amounts recognized during the period, and the extent to which such transactions are
separately disclosed in the financial statements.

e The issues involved, and related judgments made, in formulating particularly sensitive financial
statement disclosures.

e The factors affecting asset and liability carrying values, including the entity's basis for determining
useful lives assigned to tangible and intangible assets.

e The selective correction of misstatements, for example, correcting misstatements with the effect of
increasing reported earnings, but not those that have the effect of decreasing reported earnings.

CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Corrected Misstatements: We are to inform you of material corrected misstatements that were brought to
the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.

There were no such misstatements.

Uncorrected Misstatements: We are to inform you of uncorrected misstatements that were aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest and prior period(s) presented that were
determined by management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole. For your consideration, we have distinguished misstatements between
known misstatements and likely misstatements.

There was one uncorrected misstatement of $5,856,000 related to decrease in net pension liability as a
resuit of an incorrect discount rate used in determination of net pension liability.



OTHER COMMUNICATIONS

Communication ltem

Results

Other Information In Documents Containing
Audited Financial Statements

Information may be prepared by management that
accompanies the financial statements. To assist
your consideration of this information, you should
know that we are required by audit standards to
read such information and consider whether such
information, or the manner of its presentation, is
materially inconsistent with information in the
financial statements. If we consider the
information materially inconsistent based on this
reading, we are to seek a resolution of the matter.

We read the following items and noted no material
inconsistencies or misstatement of facts in such
information based on our reading thereof.

s Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the
Audit
We are to inform you of any significant difficulties

encountered in dealing with management related
to the performance of the audit.

There were no significant difficulties encountered
in dealing with management related to the
performance of the audit.

Disagreements With Management

We are to discuss with you any disagreements
with management, whether or not satisfactorily
resolved, about matters that individually or in the
aggregate could be significant to the District’s
financial statements or the auditor’s report.

During our audit, there were no such
disagreements with management.

Consultations With Other Accountants

If management consulted with other accountants
about auditing and accounting matters, we are to
inform you of such consultation, if we are aware of
it, and provide our views on the significant matters
that were the subject of such consultation.

We are not aware of any instances where
management consulted with other accountants
about auditing or accounting matters since no
other accountants contacted us, which they are
required to do by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 50, before they provide written or
oral advice.

Representations The Auditor Is Requesting
From Management

We are to provide you with a copy of
management’s requested written representations
to us.

We direct your attention to a copy of the letter of
management’s representation to us provided
separately.

Significant Issues Discussed, or Subject to
Correspondence, With Management

We are to communicate to you any significant
issues that were discussed or were the subject of
correspondence with management.

There were no such significant issues discussed,
or subject to correspondence, with management.

Significant Related Party Findings and Issues

We are to communicate to you significant findings
and issues arising during the audit in connection
with the District’s related parties.

There were no such findings or issues that are, in
our judgment, significant and relevant to you
regarding your oversight of the financial reporting
process.




Communication item

Results

Other Findings or Issues We Find Relevant or
Significant

We are to communicate to you other findings or
issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in
our professional judgment, significant and relevant
to you regarding your oversight of the financial
reporting process.

There were no such other findings or issues that
are, in our judgment, significant and relevant to
you regarding your oversight of the financial
reporting process.

We are pleased to serve your District as its independent auditors and look forward to our continued
relationship. We provide the above information to assist you in performing your oversight responsibilities,
and would be pleased to discuss this letter or any matters further, should you desire. This letter is
intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education and, if appropriate, management,

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sacramento, California
December 14, 2015

Crowe Hocwarts LLE

Crowe Horwath LLP
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Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the fihancial statements of
Sacramento City Unified School District as of June 30, 2015 and for the year then ended for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School
District and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

Except where otherwise stated below, immaterial matters less than $2,381,000 for the
government activities, $940,000 for the General Fund, $260,000 for the Building Fund, $130,000
for the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund, $350,000 for the aggregate remaining fund
information collectively are not considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the
purpose of the following representations. These amounts are not necessarily indicative of
amounts that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this letter, the following
representations made to you during your audit:

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
dated February 12, 2014 for the preparation and fair presentation of the previously
mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and we believe the financial statements are fairly
presented and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the
primary government required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States to be included in the financial reporting entity.

2. We are responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. We acknowledge our
responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

3. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt
contracts and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, including legal and



contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have provided you --

a. Access to all financial records, documentation and other information that is relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. All minutes of Board of Education or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.

e. Audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

f. Results of the assessment of risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning
noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting
records underlying the financial statements or the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards.

We have no plans or intentions that might materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows.

We have identified all accounting estimates that materially affect recorded amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, and the key factors and significant assumptions
underlying those estimates. We believe the estimates are reasonable in the
circumstances.

These estimates include:

a. Valuation of long lived assets.

b. Disclosure of pension plans or other post-retirement benefits.

¢. Local Control Funding Formula recorded revenue and association receivable.

d. Useful life of capital assets.

e. Claims liability.

Adequate consideration and provision has been made, when necessary, for any
material losses likely to be sustained from:

a. Sales commitments.
b. Sale of inventory, including excess or obsolete inventories on hand.

c. Purchase commitments for inventory quantities in excess of normal requirements
or at a price in excess of market.

d. Impairment of long-lived assets when the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
e. Collection of receivables.

f. Environmental remediation liabilities.

10. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, or directly to you, there are or have

been no material:

a. Arrangements, either written or oral, with financial institutions involving



1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

compensating balances or other arrangements involving restrictions on cash
balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements.

b. Oral or written guarantees under which the entity is contingently liable.

¢. Other financial instruments with significant “off-balance-sheet’ risk of accounting
loss to which the entity is a party.

d. Concentrations that make the entity vulnerable to the risk of a severe impact within
one year from the balance sheet date (including, for example, individual or group
concentrations of customers, suppliers, lenders, products, services, sources of
labor or materials, licenses or other rights, operating areas or markets).

e. Significant accounting estimates that are susceptible to changing materially as a
result of an event or change in conditions that is reasonably possible of occurrence
within one year from the balance sheet date.

f. Liens, encumbrances or other title impairments, such as pledges as collateral, on
entity assets at the balance sheet date.

g. Restrictions under borrowing agreements.
h. Unrecorded transactions.

i. Significant events that have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the
financial statements.

j. Declines in market value of investments that are not temporary.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims and
assessments whose effects should be considered by management when preparing the
financial statements. These matters have been accounted for and disclosed in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and GASB
62.

Related parties and all related party relationships and transactions, and related amounts
receivable or payable, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements and guarantees, have been disclosed to you, and have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Except as disclosed to you, we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the entity involving:

a. Management, whether material or not.
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, whether material or not.
c. Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Except as disclosed to you, we have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or
suspected fraud affecting the entity’s financial statements received in communications
from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

Except as disclosed to you, there have been no:

a. Instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with budget
ordinances, laws or regulations (including those pertaining to adopting, approving,
and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt
limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.

b. Other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be
accrued or disclosed by GASB 62.



C.

Communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Reservations or designations of fund equity that was not properly authorized and
approved.

16. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

17. With respect to the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards:

a.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to the Entity.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that have
a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, and that
warrant the attention of those charged with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that have a material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely
to have occurred of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the
financial statements.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, and contracts, or abuse that the auditor reports.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

If applicable, we have identified for you any previous audits, attestation
engagements, and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related
recommendations have been implemented.

We have provided views on the reported findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as management's planned corrective actions, for the
report.

In regards to the following non-audit services performed by you we acknowledge our
as follows:

¢ we assume all management responsibilities for these services;

e we oversaw these services by designating an individual within senior
management who possessed suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;

¢ we have evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed;

s we accept responsibility for the results of these services

18. With respect to the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133
related to federal awards:

a.

b.

We are responsible for complying, and have complied, with the requirements of
Circular A-133.

We are responsible for the presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and believe the SEFA,
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with these
criteria. The methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from
those used in the prior period. All significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement and presentation of the SEFA have been identified and
disclosed to you. If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements,
we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users
of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance of the
supplementary information and the auditor's report thereon.

We are responsible for understanding complying with the requirements of laws,



regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements related to each of
its federal programs.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that the
organization is managing federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and
the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on
its federal programs.

We have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of laws, regulations and
the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that are considered to have a
direct and material effect on each major program.

We have made available all contracts and grant agreements (including amendments,
if any) and any other correspondences that have taken place with federal agencies
or pass-through entities and are related to federal programs.

We have complied, in all material respects, with the direct and material compliance
requirements of federal award programs, except as disclosed to you.

We have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and any known
noncompliance with the direct and material requirements of federal awards.

We have made available to you all documentation related to the compliance with the
direct and material compliance requirements, including information related to federal
program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

If applicable, we have provided our interpretations of any compliance requirements
that are subject to varying interpretations.

If applicable, we have disclosed communications from grantors and pass-through
entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance
requirements, including communications received from the end of the period covered
by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.

If applicable, we have disclosed the findings received and the related corrective
actions taken for previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external
monitoring that directly relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including the
findings received and corrective actions taken from the end of the period coverad by
the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.

. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings reported in
connection with the compliance audit.

If applicable, we have disclosed the nature of any subsequent events that provide
additional evidence with respect to conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period that affect noncompliance during the reporting period.

We have disclosed any known noncompliance occurring subsequent to the period for
which compliance is audited.

We have disclosed whether any changes in internal control over compliance or other
factors that might significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action
taken by management with regard to deficiencies, significant deficiencies, and
material weaknesses have occurred subsequent to the date as of which compliance
is audited.

We have complied with reporting requirements in connection with federal awards,
and information presented in federal financial reports and claims for advances and
reimbursements is supported by the accounting records from which the financial
statements prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the
reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the federal agency or
pass-through entity, as applicable.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior
audit findings to include all findings required to be included by Circular A-133.

We have accurately completed the appropriate sections of the data collection form,
or have reviewed those sections as prepared by you.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24

25.
26.

27.

28.

u. If applicable, we have disclosed all contracts or other agreements with the service
organizations.

v. If applicable, we have disclosed to you all communications from the service
organization relating to noncompliance at the service organization.

w. Costs charged to federal awards are in accordance with applicable cost principles.

We are responsible for the presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with
the applicable criteria and believe the supplementary information, including its form and
content, is fairly presented in accordance with these criteria. The methods of measurement
and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. All significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information have been identified and disclosed to you. If the supplementary
information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited
financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information
no later than the date of issuance of the supplementary information and the auditor's report
thereon.

We are responsible for the required supplementary information, including that such
information is measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines. The
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period. All significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the required supplementary information have been disclosed to you.

We understand that during the course of your audit, you have relied on work performed by
the following specialists. We confirm that we have no relationships with those specialists that
may bear on their objectivity, such as the ability through employment, ownership, contractual
right, family relationship or otherwise to directly or indirectly control or significantly influence
the specialist.

a. AON Actuarial Services
b. Bickmore Risk Services

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the CalSTRS and CalPERS pension
liability, pension expense, and deferred items and have adequately considered the
qualifications of the specialist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the
financial statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any
instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of matters that have had an effect
on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

During the course of your audit, we have provided to you physical or electronic copies of
various original documents. We understand that you are relying on such copies as audit
evidence in your audit and represent that copies provide are an accurate and completed
representation of the original documentation and that the copies have not been modified from
their original version.

The financial statements include all component units that meet the criteria of financial
accountability or which are otherwise considered misleading to exclude, the classification of
these component units as discretely presented or blended is appropriate, and the
relationships and criteria for inclusion are properly disclosed.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statements Nos. 34 and 37 for
presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are
presented as major are particularly important to the financial statement users.

Net position components (invested in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) are properly
classified and fund balance types (including minimum fund balance policies and/or
stabilization agreements, if applicable) are properly presented and disclosed pursuant to
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

Expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the



29.

30.

31.
32.

33.

34.

35.

statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are properly classified in the statement of activities within program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to
permanent fund principal.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been properly classified and
reported.

Deposits and investment securities are properly classified in category of custodial credit risk.

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if
applicable, depreciated.

All suggested adjusting journal entries, as discussed and approved, will be recorded in the
accounting records.

We believe that the effect of the uncorrected financial statement misstatement of $5,856,000
related to decrease in the estimated net pension liability and resulting increase in net position
as a result of an incorrect discount rate used in determination of net pension liability is
immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole.

We understand that you have assisted us with the preparation of our financial statements
and footnotes and we have reviewed and approved the financial statements and footnotes

and take full responsibility for them.

Gerardo Castillo, CPA
Chief Business Officer

Qfnar ke

Amari Watkins, CPA, Inactive
Director, Accounting Services

[{

Michael Smith
Director, Budget Services
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNSFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015
TRADITIONAL SCHOCLS

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL Special |TOTAL MONTH
Education END
Grades K-6 | ENROLLMENT ;
Kdgn Grades 1-3 | Grades 4-6 2015-2016 Cum Attd PERCENTAGE
Actual Days /55 2015-2016
Attendance 2015-2016

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 47 137 13¢ 16 330 95.46% 323.26 95.84%
Abraham Linccln Elementary 68 188 189 0 445 95.33% 426.27 96.02%
Alice Birney Waldorf-inspired K8 94 187 188 0 469 95.27% 448.33 96.34%
Bret Harte Elementary 30 113 138 29 310 94.46% 294.47 95.44%
Caleb Greenwood 77 222 166 10 475 96.00% 457.66 56._86%
Camellia Basic Elementary 89 170 191 9 459 98.10% 449,69 58.25%
Capital City School 2 13 35 0 50 97.79% 48.18 97.97%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 30 a3 116 54 283 95.48% 273.95 95.91%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 o] 338 10 348 95.46% 334.76 96.47%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 83 258 290 0 631 96.51% 615.96 97.20%
David Lubin Elementary 84 216 233 3 564 95.28% 525.35 95,89%
Earl Warren Elementary 59 186 237 u 493 97.22% 476.58 97.43%
Edward Kernble Elementary 139 384 0 12 535 94.22% 520.76 95.43%
Elder Creek Elementary 109 315 350 o] 774 96.99% 762.60 57.33%
Ethel | Baker Elementary 111 313 336 0 760 95.31% 727.24 95.93%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 77 241 213 24 555 96.07% 530.75 56.20%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 71 176 148 1 356 ©94.28% 365.76 95.21%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 61 202 257 11 531 57.16% 510.49 07.31%
Golden Empire Elementary 77 241 255 15 588 $7.15% 571.9% 97.56%
H W Harkness Elementary 82 144 124 14 364 55.67% 349.86 96.24%
Hollyweod Park Elementary 51 136 128 36 351 95.32% 344.18 96.10%
Home/Hospital 6 16 30 11 63 100.00% 21.82 100.00%
Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary 73 191 216 23 497 95.11% 470.80 95.83%
Isador Cohen Elernentary 24 90 97 11 222 94.45% 217.71 95.30%
James W Marshall Elermentary 57 159 166 25 447 96.2%% 3591.69 97.03%
fohn Bidwell Elementary 49 153 161 15 378 97.05% 362.46 97.68%
fohn Cabrillo Elementary 37 148 144 53 382 95.58% 368.18 96.12%
lohh D Sloat Elementary 31 84 95 20 231 96.30% 215.09 96.37%
John H. 5till K-8 94 279 274 0 647 95.58% 619.18 96.06%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 37 37 95.12% 37.71 94.23%
Leataata Ftoyd Elementary 58 157 116 22 353 94,15% 342,24 95.34%
Leonarde da Vinci K - 8 School 114 271 280 35 700 97.40% 682.87 97.81%
Mark Twain Elementary 44 117 157 28 346 95.71% 336.36 96.64%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 50 138 174 37 399 95.33% 381.24 96.02%
Matsuyama Elementary 88 274 283 7 652 96.55% 632.89 $6.96%
Nicholas Elementary 86 266 270 27 649 95.45% 628.22 96.25%
O W Erlewine Elementary 34 131 147 18 330 96.76% 318.93 57.10%
Oak Ridge Elementary 87 243 248 6 584 95.08% 551.95 96.16%
Pacific Elementary 110 321 254 0 685 95.22% 662.95 $6.16%
Parkway Elementary School 86 250 231 32 599 94.87% 563.91 95.80%
Peter Burnett Elermentary 63 236 292 23 614 96.33% 597.33 96.86%
Fhoebe A Hearst Elementary 84 268 288 o] 640 96.95% 625.36 97.48%
Pony Express Elementary 49 167 204 14 434 96.13% 415.06 96.54%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 54 139 176 4 383 95.08% 372,71 95.77%
Seguaia Elementary 58 194 224 9 485 96.59% 465.58 96.91%
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 o] 10 94.97% 6.82 96.15%
Susan 8 Anthony Elementary 65 137 115 o 317 97.28% 302.44 97.63%
Sutterville Elementary 75 223 274 7 579 96.47% 555.26 96.73%
Tahoe Elementary 37 144 125 18 324 94.20% 309.07 95.65%
Theodore Judah Elementary 108 255 230 19 612 95.72% 553.36 96.16%
William Land Elementary 7 222 168 0 461 96.93% 436.24 97.07%
Woodbine Elementary 29 125 141 20 315 05.09% 306.29 95.84%
TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 3,262 9,323 9,647 814 23,046 95.92% 22,113.80 96.53%
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MIDDLE SCHOOLS

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Special |TOTAL MONTH
Education END
Grade 7 | Grade 8 | Total Grades Grades 7-8 | ENROLLMENT 2015-2016 Cum Attd | PERCENTAGE
7-8 Actual Days/55 2015-2016
Attendance | 2015-2016
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 19 10 29 0 29 95.10% 27.73 95.07%
Albert Einstein MS 336 366 702 37 739 96.48% 720.09 96.87%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 62 54 116 a 116 94.74% 111.27 95.92%
California MS 423 397 220 26 846 96.08% 820.31 96.62%
Capital City School 14 i8 32 0 32 93.43% 23.42 96.48%
Father Keith 8 Kenny K-8 School 22 23 45 0 45 93.67% 44.40 95.99%
Fern Bacon MS 380 345 725 19 744 96.22% 714.60 96.94%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 52 59 111 0 i1 97.80% 106.53 97.44%
Home/Hospital 6 6 12 3 15 100.00% 4.24 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 125 113 238 23 261 96.37% 253.40 96.60%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 15 15 94.74% 14.11 93.95%
Kit Carson MS 142 127 269 32 301 95.07% 284.29 95.64%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 Schoo! 69 55 124 15 139 97.73% 135.20 97.55%
Martin Luther King Ir Elementary 37 51 88 o] 88 96.48% 86.13 96.89%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 186 210 396 36 432 95.53% 418.80 95,79%
Sam Brannan M5 245 246 491 48 539 96.80% 517.42 96.89%
School of Engineering and Science 126 131 257 0 257 97.79% 251,75 97.67%
Success Academy K-8 2 6 8 o] 8 90.00% 6.00 91.41%
Sutter MS 588 573 1161 37 1198 97.49% 1173.78 97.70%
Wwill C Wood MS 311 325 636 28 664 96.89% 640.55 97.31%
TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 3,145 3,115 6,260 319 6,579 96.54% 6,354.00 96.92%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPCORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015 %
TRADITHONAL SCHOOLS

HIGH SCHOOLS Total Grade| Special |TOTAL MONTH-EBER
9-12 Education END
& Grades 9-12 | ENROLLMENT [
Continuation | Grade 8 | Grade 13 Grade 11| Grade 12 2015-2016 Cum Attd | PERCENTAGE
Actual Days/55 2015-2016
Attendance | 2015-2016

American Legicn HS 282 0 0 0 0 0 0 282 79.09% 211.38 80.46%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 53 55 45 44 197 21 218 92.97% 204.93 93.51%
C K McClatchy HS 0 556 57% 530 494 7159 65 2224 95.45% 2098.40 96.27%
Capital City School 0 24 58 82 152 316 1 317 86.36% 279.96 85.94%
Hiram W Johnson HS o 346 355 336 328 1365 133 1498 93.90% 1371.45 94.80%
Home/Hospital o 7 8 6 [ 27 19 45 100.00% 26.53 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS Q 593 500 516 495 2108 o2 2200 G6.78% 2103.75 97.16%
Kit Carson M5 1] 5t 43 0 [v] 94 0 9q 54.97% 92.53 95.77%
Luther Burbank HS i 436 417 384 340 1577 124 1701 92.29% 1555.25 93.89%
Rosemont HS 4] 356 339 274 299 1268 50 1358 95.00% 1264.08 95.81%
School of Engineering and Science 0 92 a1 58 46 277 0 277 97.25% 269.62 96.86%
The Academy 0 5 13 o ] 18 o] 18 80.33% 10.96 85.41%
West Campus HS 0 219 234 201 197 851 D 851 98.04% 834.69 98.10%
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 282 | 2738| 2682] 2432 2,405 10,257 545 11,084 94.45%| 10,327.89 95,23%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS
TOTAL MONTH-
DISTRICT TOTALS END
ENROLLMENT 2015-2016 Cum Attd PERCENTAGE
Actual Days/55 2015-2016
Attendance | 2015-2016

ELEMENTARY 23,046 95.,92% 22,114 96.53%

MIDDLE 6,579 96.54% 6,354 96.92%

HIGH SCHOOL 11,084 94.45% 10,328 95.23%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 40,709 95.63% 38,796 96.24%
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SACRAMENTQ CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015

CHARTER SCHOOLS
Special FOTAL
2015-2016 DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS Education | MONTH-END |
Kdgn | Grades 1-3 | Grades 4-6 | Grades 7-8 |Grades 9-12 Grades K-12 | ENROLLMENT 2015-2016 §2015-2016 | PERCENTAGE
Actual 2015-2016
Attendance
Bowling Green-Mc Coy 78 214 197 0 ] 12 501 96.54% 485.66 96.91%
Bowling Green-Chacon 56 153 154 0 0 0 363 96.56% 354,71 97.33%
George W. Carver SA5 0 0 0 0 302 4 311 94.77% 298.46 05.93%
New Jeseph Bonnheim Charter 37 135 87 ] 0 1 260 96.17% 240.63 96.79%
New Tech High 0 0 0 V] 230 9 239 95.20% 225.24 G5.66%
The Met High School a 0 0 0 301 1 302 98.42% 292.89 97.37%
TOTAL DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 171 502 433 - 833 32 1,976 96.33%| 1,397.57 96.73%

2015-2016 INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS Special TOTAL
“Y  Education | MONTH-END ~
Kdgn | Grades 1-3 | Grades 4-6 [ Grades 7-8 | Grades 9-12 Grades K-12 | ENROLLMENT 2015-2016 | 2015-2016 | PERCENTAGE
Actual 2015-2016
Attendance

CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 44 133 111 11 329 95.73% 320.70 96.53%

Capitol Collegiate Academy 70 148 40 258 93.67% 245.88 95.23%

Aspire Capitod Heights Academy 47 139 107 203 96.87% 283.63 97.14%

Language Academy 83 198 178 a2 541 97.26% 527.55 97.66%

Oak Park Prep 123 123 98.38% 118.06 96.88%

PS 7 Elementary 64 160 216 157 597 94.77% 572.87 95.43%

Sacramentc Charter HS 949 949 96.38% 928.78 96.02%
Sol Aureus College Preparatory 50 146 72 42 310 83.84% 27107 89.98% L
Yav Pemn Suab Academy 62 188 179 429 97.33% 409.24 97.51%

TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 420 1,112 903 445 949 - 3,829 94.91%) 3,677.88 95.82%
[roTaL cHARTER SCHOOLS [ s=m 1614 1,341 | 235 1,782 | 32 | 5,805 | 95.62%] 5,575.45 | 96.27%|
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015
ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOLS

ADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HQURS EARNED
CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT | OTHER TOTAL
A. Warren McUaskey Adult Center 586 21,533.20 21,533.20 174.56 174.56
Charles A, Jones Career & Education Center 783 44,359.30 44,359.30 359.56 359.56
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 1,369 65,892.50 65,892.50 534.12 534.12
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015

GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

REGULAR CLASS ENROLLMENT TOTAL
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS Kdgn Grade 1l |Grade2 |Grade3 |Graded |Grade5 |Grade6 |REGULAR
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 47 48 a2 a7 54 43 33 314
Abraham Lincoln Elementary 68 61 66 61 71 59 59 445
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 94 63 63 61 64 62 62 465
Bret Harte Elementary 30 35 34 44 53 44 41 281
Caleb Greenwood 77 88 66 68 58 55 53 465
Camellia Basic Elementary 89 55 56 59 60 72 59 450
Capital City School 2 6 4 3 7 12 16 50
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 30 35 29 19 50 34 32 229
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 129 96 113 338
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 83 88 83 87 98 a5 97 631
David Lubin Elementary 84 54 78 84 79 74 80 533
Earl Warren Elementary 59 56 64 66 75 33 79 482
Edward Kemble Elementary 139 140 106 138 0 0 0 523
Elder Creek Elementary 109 100 107 108 119 117 114 774
Ethel | Baker Elementary 111 97 99 117 115 104 117 760
Ethel Phillips Elementary 77 82 76 83 65 82 66 531
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 71 69 54 53 62 41 45 395
Genevieve Didion Elementary 61 a0 62 60 81 77 99 520
Golden Empire Elementary 77 79 80 82 30 87 78 573
H W Harkness Elementary 82 50 45 49 45 46 33 350
Hollywood Park Elementary 51 47 42 47 33 50 45 315
Home/Hospital & 8 4 4 13 7 10 52
Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary 73 55 62 74 62 84 64 474
Isador Cohen Elementary 24 25 35 30 31 36 30 211
James W Marshall Elementary 57 52 51 56 67 57 42 382
John Bidwell Elementary 49 49 49 55 47 60 54 363
lohn Cabrillo Elementary 37 45 51 52 45 54 45 329
John D Sloat Elementary 31 23 36 25 36 35 25 211
John H. Still K-8 94 a7 84 98 93 83 98 647
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G
Leataata Floyd Elementary 58 59 46 52 44 41 31 331
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 114 92 89 90 93 91 96 665
| Mark Twain Elementary 44 38 39 40 58 44 55 318
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 50 34 53 51 61 48 65 362
Matsuyama Elementary 83 82 93 59 97 87 a9 645
Nicholas Elementary 86 85 81 100 99 a7 84 622
O W Erlewine Elementary 34 43 45 43 48 51 48 312
Oak Ridge Elementary 87 77 84 82 86 85 77 578
Pacific Elementary 110 112 103 106 82 93 79 685
Parkway Elementary School 86 86 73 81 81 85 65 567
Peter Burnett Elementary 63 a0 81 75 103 96 93 591
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 84 a8 92 88 98 97 93 640
Pony Express Elementary 49 a3 50 54 72 70 62 420
Rosa Parks K-8 School 54 43 50 a6 65 56 55 369
Sequoia Elementary 58 62 60 72 88 70 66 476
Success Academy K-8 a 0 0 0 1 6 3 10
Susan B Anthony Elementary 65 53 37 47 49 37 29 317
Sutterville Elementary 75 34 55 84 92 86 96 572
Tahoe Elementary 37 50 37 57 46 38 41 306
Theodore ludah Elementary 108 83 80 92 &0 78 72 593
William Land Elementary 71 68 85 69 71 49 43 461
Woodbine Elementary 29 40 38 47 43 48 50 285
TOTAL 3,262 3,119 2,999 3,205 3,359 3,192 3,096 22,232
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENRCLLMENT | TOTAL ABSENCES | ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLEED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE
A M Winn Etementary K-8 Waldorf 330 771 17,779 18,550 95.84%
Abraham Lincoln Elementary 445 972 23,445 24,417 96.02%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 469 936 24,658 25,594 96.34%
Bret Harte Elementary 310 773 16,186 16,963 95.44%
Caleb Greenwood 475 815 25,171 25,986 96.86%
Camellia Basic Elementary 459 446G 24,733 25,173 98.25%
Capital City School 50 55 2,650 2,705 97.97%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 283 642 15,067 15,709 95.91%
Cesar Chavez ES 348 673 13,412 19,085 96.47%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 631 976 33,878 34,854 97.20%
David Lubin Elementary 564 1,238 28,894 30,132 55.89%
Earl Warren Elementary 493 691 26,212 26,903 97.43%
Edward Kemble Elementary 535 1,373 28,642 30,015 95.43%
Elder Creek Elementary 774 1,149 41,943 43,092 97.33%
Ethel | Baker Elementary 760 1,697 39,998 41,695 95.93%
Ethel Bhilfips Elementary 555 1,153 29,191 30,344 96.20%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 356 1,013 20,117 21,130 95.21%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 531 775 28,077 28,852 97.31%
Golden Empire Elerentary 588 786 31,455 32,241 97.56%
H W Harkness Elementary 364 752 19,248 20,000 96.24%
Hollyweod Park Elementary 351 769 18,930 19,699 96.10%
Home/Haspitaf 63 1] 1,200 1,200 100.00%
Hubert H. Barcroft Elementary 497 1,127 25,894 27,021 95.83%
Isador Cohen Elementary 222 5e1 11,974 12,565 95.30%
James W Marshall Elementary 497 659 21,543 22,202 97.03%
lohn Bidwell Elementary 378 474 19,535 20,409 97.68%
Joha Cabrillo Elementary 382 817 20,250 21,067 96.12%
John D Sleat Elementary 231 454 12,050 12,504 96.37%
John H. Still K-8 647 1,398 34,055 35,453 96.06%
lohn Morse Therapeutic Center 37 127 2,074 2,201 94.23%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 353 919 18,823 19,742 95.34%
teonarde da Vinci K - 8 School 700 839 37,558 38,397 97.81%
Mark Twain Elementary 346 643 18,500 19,143 96.64%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 3s9 870 20,968 21,838 96.02%
Matsuyama Elemeantary 652 1,092 34,809 35,901 96.96%
Nicholas Elementary 649 1,346 34,552 35,893 96.25%
O W Erlewine Elementary 330 523 17,541 18,064 97.10%
Qak Ridge Elementary 584 1,213 30,357 31,570 96.16%
Pacific Elementary 685 1,457 36,462 37,919 96.16%
Parkway Elementary School 539 1,361 31,015 32,376 95.80%
Peter Burnett Elementary 514 1,066 32,853 33,919 96.86%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 640 889 34,395 35,284 97.48%
Pony Express Elementary 434 818 22,828 23,646 95.54%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 383 906 20,499 21,405 95.77%
Sequeia Elerentary 485 817 25,607 26,424 $6.91%
Success Academy K-8 10 15 375 380 96.15%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 317 403 16,634 17,037 97.63%
Sutterville Elermentary 579 1,031 30,539 31,570 96.73%
Tahoe Elementary 324 773 16,999 17,772 95.65%
Theodore Judah Elementary 612 1,214 30,435 31,645 96.16%
William Land Elementary 461 723 23,993 24,716 97.07%
Woodbine Elementary 315 731 16,846 17,577 95.84%
TOTAL 23,046 43,745 1,216,259 1,260,004 96.53%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOGL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 28, 2015
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

MIGDLE TOTAL ENROLEMENT | TOTAL ABSENCES | ACTUAL DAYS OF ATFENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 29 79 1,525 1,604 85.07%
Albert Einstein MS 739 1,281 39,605 40,886 65.87%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 116 260 6,120 6,380 §5.92%
California mMS 846 1,579 45,117 46,696 96,62%
Capital City School 32 47 1,288 1,335 96.48%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 Schoaol 45 102 2,442 2,544 95.99%
Fern Bacon M5 744 1,240 39,303 40,543 96.94%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 111 154 5,859 6,013 97.44%
Home/Hospitat 15 Q 233 233 100.00%
John H. Still -8 261 490 13,937 14,427 96.60%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 15 50 776 826 93.95%
Kit Carson MS 301 713 15,636 16,349 95.64%
Leonarda da Vinci K - 8 Schaot 139 187 7436 7,623 97.55%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 88 152 4,737 4,889 56.89%
Rosa Parks K-8 Schoof 432 1,012 23,034 24,046 95.79%
Sam Brannan MS 539 012 28,458 25,370 96.89%
School of Engineering and Science 257 330 13,846 14,176 97.67%
Success Academy K-8 8 31 330 361 91.41%
Sutter M5 1,198 1,518 63,558 66,076 97.70%
Will C Wood MS 664 974 35,230 36,204 97.31%
TOTAL 6,579 11,111 349,470 360,581 96.92%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENRCLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 3, ENDING FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2015

CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

HiGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT | TOTAL ABSENCES | ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENRCLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE
American Legion HS 282 2,823 11,626 14,449 80.46%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 213 732 11,271 12,053 93.51%
CK McClatchy HS 2,224 4,468 115,412 119,880 86.27%
Capita) City Schoof 317 2,520 15,398 17,918 85.94%
Hirarm W Jehnsen HS 1,458 4,136 75,430 79,566 94.80%
Home/Hospital 46 0 1,459 1,459 100.00%
John F Kennady HS 2,200 3,385 115,706 119,091 97.16%
Kit Carsen MS 94 226 5111 5,337 95.77%
Luther Burbank HS 1,701 5,579 85,759 91,338 93.89%.
Rasement HS 1,358 3,038 69,522 72,560 95.81%
School of Engineering and Science 277 481 14,829 15,310 96.86%
The Academy 18 103 603 706 85.41%
West Camnpus HS 451 888 45,908 46,796 98.10%
TOTAL 11,084 28,429 568,034 596,463 i 95.23%
TOTAL TOTAL ABSENCES | ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE
ENROLLMENT
TOTAL ALL SCHCOLS 40,709 83,285 2,133,763 2,217,048 96.24%
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